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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Qingling Motors Co. Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”) is principally engaged in the production and sale of Isuzu light,
medium and heavy-duty trucks, pick-up trucks, automobile parts and
accessories. All of the production facilities of the Group are located in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and substantially all the sales
of the Group are also made in the PRC. The Group had export sales to
overseas countries during the year, which accounted for approximately
1.37% of the Group's turnover for the year.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The Group had 2,934 employees as at 31 December 2021.
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

| am pleased to present the annual report of Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
(the”Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group") for the year
ended 31 December 2021 for your review.

2021 RESULTS

As of 31 December 2021, the Company sold 43,876 vehicles,
representing a decrease of 4.34% over 45,869 vehicles sold last year.
Revenue was RMB4,828 million, representing a decrease of 5.12% over
RMB5,089 million as recorded last year. Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year was RMB331 million, representing an increase of
7.97% over RMB306 million as recorded last year.

REVIEW OF RESULTS

In 2021, China's COVID-19 prevention and control encountered double
risk challenges of “preventing the coronavirus from spreading within
the city/region or beyond”. The price of bulk materials rose sharply, and
the sales volume and efficiency of commercial trucks decreased. The
shortage of wafers, power rationing and the introduction of many new
policies, regulations and industry standards had certain impacts on the
industry. Over the past year, the Company has overcome the impact of
the pandemic and the downward difficulties of the industry, practised
the new development concept, and promoted innovation-driven and
enterprise reform, resulting in stable production and operation.

1. New achievements have been made in product innovation
and technological innovation. The rapid development was
corresponding to the new blue-brand new policy and self-owned
brand light trucks; Isuzu and self-owned brand pick-up models
were innovated; new energy and smart connected vehicles
were fully promoted; hydrogen-powered vehicle research and
development and industrial ecology cultivation have achieved
initial results; breakthroughs have been made in the research
and development of key assemblies and parts; the reform of
R&D innovation organizations and mechanism has continued to
deepen.

2. Withstood the downward pressure on the commercial vehicle
industry and stabilized the marketing situation. Established
rules and regulations, introduced a number of systems,
standardized and strengthened the construction of the marketing
network; optimized the tripartite financing plan, and introduced
customer-oriented financing schemes to reduce the cost of car
purchase; strengthened product and brand publicity, and deeply
cultivated the main commercial vehicle market; accurate efforts
have been made in the oil, electricity and hydrogen vehicle market
to attract customers; we also continued to strengthen overseas
marketing and after-sales capacity-building, seized the overseas
mid-market, continuously expanded the overseas customer base,
and the export of complete vehicles increased significantly.

B2 /3E MM AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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3. The basic management of quality, cost and delivery time
showed a new look. Quality management has been continuously
strengthened; the production system has continued to implement
automation and intelligent transformation, and new progress has
been made in on-site management; the procurement system
has built a supply management information system, and the
supply chain support capability has continued to improve; capital
management has achieved remarkable results.

4. Deepened reform and stimulated the creativity of all staff.
Through the normalization of the declaration and review of
national titles, we strengthened the training of staff and the
support of talents; increased the incentives for innovation,
continued to reward new product development, process and
management innovation, and stimulated innovation vitality.

5. Fully implemented the main responsibility of safety and
environmental protection. We revised and improved the
rules and regulations on safety and environmental protection,
strictly implemented the dual prevention and control mechanism
of “classified management and control of safety risks and
investigation and management of hidden dangers of accidents”,
and organized safety and environmental protection education
and training for several times throughout the year to improve the
safety and environmental protection awareness of employees, so
as to achieve safe and stable production, environmental protection
and standard emissions.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

The current macro-economy is facing triple pressures of demand
contraction, supply shock and weakening expectations. The automobile
industry will speed up the pace of the dual carbon goals, and accelerate
its progress towards “electrification, networking, intelligence, and
sharing”. The emission and fuel consumption regulations will be more
stringent and strictly supervised. The R&D and application of energy
conservation and efficiency enhancement, low-carbon decarbonization
and smart networking technology will change with each passing day,
and the industrial ecology will accelerate the change. According to
the prediction of China Automobile Association, the policy dividend
supporting the growth of commercial vehicle market will weaken in 2022,
the market will enter a period of adjustment, and the sales volume will
continue to decline. The key tasks of the Company in 2022 are as follows:

1. To focus on key development tasks and strengthen
innovation drive. The Company will be efficient and ahead
of schedule to complete the study and development of new
regulations on pick-up trucks and heavy trucks; combine research
and sales, accurately correspond to the market, and create key
products; make breakthroughs on forward-looking technologies
and cultivate new industries to realize sustainable development;
develop independent brands and ensure industrial safety.
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2. To improve marketing capabilities. The Company will
strengthen the construction of “two teams” of marketing
personnel and resellers and strengthen the construction of “two
networks” of marketing and after-sales service of Isuzu brand
and self-owned brands to increase the popularity and meeting
rate, focus on the construction of “two brands” of Isuzu and
self-owned brands and strengthen after-sales service capacity
building.

3. To enhance the competitiveness of the hydrogen power
industry. The Company will focus on key regions and key
markets, to continue to expand application scenarios and establish
a brand image. We will seize industrial high points, speed up
industrial cultivation, and to enhance market competitiveness
through technological upgrade and repeated product calculations.

4. To continuously strengthen the basic management of quality,
cost and delivery time. Through the horizontal deployment of
Isuzu’s advanced IM management activities, personnel training,
etc., the Company will continue to strengthen production
system management, improve quality and efficiency; establish a
whole-process quality management system, and improve quality
management methods and capabilities; continue to focus on
guarantees and cost-control for the procurement system, improve
the collaborative ability to support development and quality;
improve the level of informatization, and enhance the “processing
capability” of each system to realize the “value-added” of data.

In the new year, the Company will further strengthen various basic
management, continue to consolidate and enhance the core competitiveness
of the enterprise, adhere to and carry forward the fine style and excellent
culture of the enterprise, adhere to the new development concept,
strengthen innovation and creation, and strive for practical results. We
will stabilize the production and operation of the enterprise and realize
sustainable and high-quality development!

25 March 2022
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DIRECTORS

Mr. LUO Yuguang, aged 52, has been an executive director, the
Chairman, a member of the remuneration committee and the chairman
and a member of the nomination committee of the Company since 22
December 2016. He graduated from Beijing Agricultural Engineering
University (bR BE T AE) in 1992, specialized in Construction
and Environmental Engineering (28R T#2) with a Bachelor's
degree in engineering. Mr. LUO also completed and graduated from
an undergraduate program in Chongqging Normal University (A&
AE) in 2008, majoring in Accounting. He joined the Company after
obtaining his Bachelor’'s degree and has a consecutive period of more
than 20 years of experience in the car industry. At the early stage, Mr.
LUO underwent an internship at the Assemble Workshop (#8225 f),
Repair Workshop (#{£E ), Infrastructure Department (FE#ZZB) and
Procurement Department (E£#%EB) of the Company. Later he was the
Deputy Head of the Planning and Construction Department (7 &2 5% 50
2l&6 ), Deputy Head of Secondary Pressing Vehicles Workshop (=7
BB RIg|E1T), Deputy Head of the Finance Department (817530828 K)
and Deputy Head of the Integrated Planning Department (424 5+ E1 20 &
). In 2009, he joined the management team of the Company and was
the Deputy Chief Economist and the Head of Procurement Department
(BI4AL RN SR ERAB S50 £K), and the Deputy General Manager of Qingling
Motors (Group) Company Limited (“Qingling Group”), the substantial
Shareholder of the Company, responsible for the production, logistics,
domestic support and import, etc.. He took up the post of the Director
and the General Manager of Qingling Group in September 2016. Mr.
LUO studied abroad for several times, including the Advanced Course in
Corporate Governance organized by the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Studies on Special Topics such as production, quality,
development and sales organized by Japan Isuzu. Mr. LUO has been the
Chairman of the Qingling Isuzu (Chongging) Engine Co., Ltd. from April
2015 to 30 November 2016.

YASUTA Tatsuya, aged 58, has been an executive director, the vice
chairman and the general manager of the Company since 30 July 2021.
He graduated from the Faculty of Foreign Language, Tokyo University
of Foreign Studies. Mr. YASUTA joined Isuzu Motors Limited (“Isuzu”)
in April 1986, and has held various positions such as a middle manager,
team leader and director in various departments. He was assigned
to work for Isuzu Sub-Saharan Africa and GMICA Colombia Ltd. from
March 2015 to November 2018. Mr. YASUTA served as the assistant to
the head of Business Department of Isuzu, the assistant to the head of
First Section of Business Department and the assistant to the head of
the Industry SolutionePT Business Department from December 2018 to
March 2020. He was currently an S expert in the head office of China
Business Department from April 2021 to May 2021.
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MASUDA Yoichi, aged 64, has been an executive director of the
Company since 30 July 2021. He graduated from Meiji University
majoring in political economy. Mr. MASUDA joined Isuzu in April 1981,
and has held various positions such as Division Director and team leader
in various departments. He worked in various departments including Isuzu
(China) Holding Co., Ltd. (13 (FE)HKREF/R AR, Isuzu (Shanghai)
Technology & Trade Industrial Co., Ltd. (A +#(E8)HRZEEBEERA
7)), Isuzu (Thailand) Motors International Operations Company (f+%%
(=R B B EFRES A7) and Isuzu Headquarters from April 1999 to
May 2013. Mr. MASUDA served as general manager of Isuzu (Thailand)
Motors International Operations Company, general manager of Isuzu
(Thailand) International Operations Company (F 185 (ZeBl) R EE A
7)), executive officer, managing executive officer, acting head and head
of Business Department of Isuzu from October 2014 to April 2020. Mr.
MASUDA is currently the head of the Second Region Head Office of
Business Department, the director and managing executive officer of
China Head Office.

YAGI Naoto, aged 58, has been an executive director of the Company
since 30 July 2021. He graduated from the Faculty of Science and
Technology of Nihon University. Mr. YAGI joined Isuzu in April 1987, and
worked in various departments. From July 1997 to April 2015, he worked
at IC Engineer Corporation, ISPOL Company, Isuzu Engine Manufacturing
Hokkaido Corporation (1 1#2 8 B 80E I 8B i (5 A 7)), PT Technology
Department, and held several positions such as mlddle manager and
team leader. From April 2016, he served as director of PT Technology
Department and the First Department of PT Manufacturing, and S expert
of the Fifth Department of Overseas Business Department, and worked
at Isuzu Indonesia Engine Plant. Mr. YAGI is currently the executive
officer of PT Public Works Department and PT Quality Management
Department.

Mr. LI Juxing, aged 56, has been an executive director of the Company
since 28 May 2015. He graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology,
majoring in casting. He holds a bachelor degree of engineering and is a
senior engineer. Mr. LI successively served as a technician of a foundry
of Chongging Automobile Manufacturing Plant (& 5B £LE 42/, a
head of the biotechnology department, a head of the quality department,
a deputy chief engineer and a deputy general manager of Chongging
Qingling Casting Company Limited (EEER#EBEBR A F]) since July
1990. He became a deputy chief engineer of Qingling Group since 2005
and concurrently served as the general managers of Chongging Qingling
Aluminium Casting Co. Ltd. (EEE$#ERAR 2 F]) and Chongging
Qingling Forging Co. Ltd. (EEE%BEARRAR]). Since 2010, he has
been working as a deputy general manager of Qingling Group and he
also serves as the chairman of Chongging Qingling Forging Co. Ltd. and
vice chairman of Isuzu (China) Engine Co., Ltd.. During the period from
26 September 2016 to 22 December 2016, Mr. LI served as the acting
Chairman of the Company.

B2 /3E MM AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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Mr. XU Song, aged 54, has been an executive director of the Company
since 15 June 2016. He is a senior engineer. Mr. XU joined the Chinese
Communist Party in June 1988. He graduated from the Faculty of
Engineering Machinery of Jilin University of Technology in July 1989,
majoring in crane transport and engineering machinery. Mr. XU was
awarded a bachelor degree in Engineering and a master degree in
Business Administration. He worked in the equipment department of
Chongging Automobile Manufacturing Plant as an internship in 1989 and
successively served as an assistant engineer and the deputy head of
manufacturing factory. From 1995 to 2004, he worked at the Company
and successively served as the deputy head, the head of manufacturing
factory and the head of the product development department. Since
2004, Mr. XU served as an assistant to general manager of Qingling
Group and the Company, and successively served as the head of the
business planning department of Qingling Group and the Company and
the director of chief engineer office of the Company. Since 2005, he
served as an assistant to general manager of Qingling Group and the
vice general manager of the Company, and also served as the head of
the business planning department of Qingling Group and the Company.
He also served as the head of the procurement department of Qingling
Group in November 2005. From 2009 to 2012, he successively served
as the deputy general manager and a member of the Party Committee
of Qingling Group, the general manager, the secretary and a member of
the Party Committee of Chongging Qingling Casting Company Limited.
From 2012 till now, Mr. XU served as the deputy general manager and
a member of the Party Committee of Qingling Group. Mr. XU ceased to
serve as the deputy general manager of the Company since 25 February
2020.

Mr. LI Xiaodong, aged 55, has been an executive director of the
Company since 30 May 2019. He is a member of the Communist Party
of China and holds the university graduate. He joined the Company
in September 1986. From September 1986 to October 2017, he was
successively a teacher at the Technical School, Youth League officer,
deputy secretary of Youth League, director of the engine manufacturing
department and deputy head of the coating workshop of Chongging
Automobile Manufacturing Plant (during his tenure, he graduated from
Chongaging Radio & TV University (majoring in law)); a deputy head of
the coating workshop, a deputy director of coating and manufacturing
department, deputy head and head of No. 2 welding workshop, director
of car body welding and manufacturing department of the Company;
vice general manager and general manager of Chongging Qingling
Forging Co. Ltd; assistant to general manager of Qingling Group; general
manager of Chongging Qingling Automobile Manufacture and Assembly
Co. Ltd.; person-in-charge of Northeast China and North China Sales
Region and chairman of Qingling Isuzu (Chongging) Automobile Sales and
Service Co., Ltd.. Mr. LI currently served as a vice general manager and
member of the party committee of Qingling Group (during his tenure, he
obtained a bachelor’s degree in mechanical design and manufacturing
and automation from Chongging University and a bachelor’'s degree
in business administration from China Central Radio & TV University),
chairman and secretary of the Party Committee of Chongging Qingling
Casting Company Limited. Mr. LI ceased to serve as the deputy general
manager of the Company since 25 February 2020.
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Mr. LONG Tao, aged 70, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 28 April 1994. He is also a member of
the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. LONG graduated from Research
Institute for Fiscal Science, Ministry of Finance, majoring in accounting.
Mr. LONG holds a master’'s degree in Economics. He had served at
Accountancy Division of Central University of Finance and Economics,
and New York office of KPMG Peat Marwick. Mr. LONG had acted
as a member of Securities Issue and Approval Committee of China
Securities Regulatory Commission and member of Chinese technology
expert panel for China-Hong Kong Securities Team. Mr. LONG also
served as the independent director of Luoyang Glass Company Limited,
Beijing Hua'er Company Limited (Jt 7/t —f%1n HBR A 7)), Beijing Capital
International Airport Co., Ltd., Baotou Iron and Steel Co. Ltd., China Asset
Management Co., Ltd., Beijing Bashi Company Limited, Jiangxi Copper
Company Limited, Beijing North Star Company Limited, Wangfujing
Department Store Co., Ltd. (EIFHBERERMDBRAF) and the
chairman of Beijing Haiwen Investment Consulting Co., Ltd. (1t 58/
A FHABRRAR). Mr. LONG has extensive knowledge and experience
in corporate finance, accounting, audit, assets appraisal, restructuring
of enterprise and listing. Mr. LONG currently serves as the chairman
of Beijing Haiwen Entrepreneurship New Technology Investment
Management Co., Ltd. At B AIZEFH MK EEREGRAF]), an
independent director of Beijing Whoswho Culture and Media Co., Ltd.,
UBS SDIC Fund Management Co., Ltd., Crown International Corporation
Limited (a local company in Hong Kong) and Aimer Co., Ltd. (BR&HE
RAA]).

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang, aged 71, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 28 April 1994. He is also the chairman and
a member of the audit committee and the remuneration committee and a
member of the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. SONG is the
general manager of Chongqging Ping Zheng Law Office, a member of the
China Economic Law Association and the China Lawyers Association. Mr.
SONG has been a lawyer and notary for 30 years. Mr. SONG graduated
from South West Institute of Political Science and Law and also studied
international law in the China University of Political Science and Law
and foreign economic law at Shenzhen University. He was formerly vice
chairman of Chongging Notary Office and vice chairman of Chongging
Foreign Law Office.

B2 /3E MM AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

)



10

55 EEReREEBASZBEEAAER
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BIXR%EE 58 BE_FT——FA0A
=+ —HEEARNRAEILIFMITES © KT
REARBEZEBEE FHERESRIEEEER
BXE - BIEETTRERIEEBZERAR
RE (RN BB LT - BRORE
1260) 2HTESF « TRMITHAE - HAET
BHETRRAEEGRER  EETRBEE
ZB AEBHASRKREIEER BELE
RREHagRESR  TRTEMHBELSE
IR o BIEAERIE RSB ARRRE - 1558
{15t IVARY

BoMxE 63 BT AFAHA
ZHN\HRERARREIFMTESE - EEX
ZEg FHMEZEGMRERZEGNKE - KE
E NI GPNETSE= i IS St VA
TR — N N\LFEEZPNM R AR L
MEERRERSELEM RN —NAN—FEER
EFIIBEBRBEF - BIFE BRAERRE
MEBTEREIERTERELE  YEES

SERA -~ EREAR - REPIEHEE -
FERGERRITEESE - fERETREAR
MERERARBRIITE @ GRELAEEER
RABIES  HRKERITBYEZALTA
MEBRDF(HEBRMONEBBRZMET - IR
R - 358) 2 B IEHITES o

3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

Mr. LIU Tianni, aged 58, has been an independent non-executive director
of the Company since 31 May 2011. He is also a member of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination committee
of the Company. Mr. LIU is also the executive director, the chairman
and the chief executive officer of Wonderful Sky Financial Group
Holdings Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, Stock Code: 1260), the chairman of The Listed Companies
Council of Chinese Enterprises Association (Hong Kong) (B8 {1 0
AalZ B ), a Hong Kong member of Chongaing Municipal Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (EE MBI E
BZ B), executive vice chairman of the Hong Kong Island Federation (&
B EHA ), the honorary chairman of Shandong Hong Kong Overseas
Investment and Financing Association (B8 ™% REIER A ), and vice
chairman of China Mergers and Acquisition Association (Kong Kong) (&
R EIHTEEAE). Mr. LIU graduated from Beijing Normal University with
a master degree in science.

Mr. LIU Erh Fei, aged 63, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company and a member of the audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company
since 28 May 2015. He graduated from Harvard Business School with a
master degree in Business Administration. He graduated from Brandeis
University with a bachelor degree in Economics and International
Relations in 1984 and from Beijing Foreign Studies University, majoring in
English, in 1981. Mr. LIU has served as the chairman of China region and
the general manager of China region of Bank of America Merrill Lynch
Group, and served as senior management in Goldman Sachs Group
Company, Morgan Stanley, Salomon Smith Barney International and
Calyon Credit Agricole of France. He is currently a founding partner and
CEO of Asian Investment Capital (253% & 7K), a director of Cindat Capital
Management Limited, an independent director of CMB Wing Lung Bank
Limited and an independent non-executive director of Jiangxi Copper
Company Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, stock code: 358).
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SUPERVISORS

Ms. MIN Qing, aged 54, has been the supervisor representing the
Shareholders since 15 June 2006. Ms. MIN ceased to be the Chairman of
the Supervisory Committee on 28 May 2015. Ms. MIN is a director, the
deputy secretary of the Party Committee and the Chairman of the Trade
Union of Qingling Group, and has many years of experience in corporate
management. Ms. MIN graduated from Chongging Communication
College in Mechanical Engineering in 1988 and had undergraduate
education. She also studied corporate management in Japan.

PU Qing, aged 49, has been a supervisor representing the staffs and
workers of the Company since 15 December 2021. She graduated
from Chongging University with a bachelor’'s degree in thermal power
engineering and as a master in business administration. Ms. PU joined
the Company in 1996 and worked in the Equipment Department, Kinetic
Energy Department and Sales Department of the Group. From March
2003 to October 2021, Ms. PU served as the person in charge of the
Personnel Department of Qingling Group, a substantial Shareholder
of the Company, and the person in charge of the Secondary Pressing
Vehicles Workshop (— &/ EfH) of the Company; the assistant to general
manager and deputy secretary of the Party branch of EEEXIEAER
[R727]; the deputy head of the Planning Department of Qingling Group
and the Company, the deputy head of the Finance Department and the
head of the Finance Department of the Company and the secretary of
Party Branch for General Management. Ms. PU is currently the head of
the Audit Department and the director of Supervisors Office of Qingling
Group.

B2 /3E MM AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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Dear Shareholders:

Since the establishment of the Supervisory Committee, each member
has been performing his duty in accordance with the Company's Articles
of Association with a view of protecting the interests of Shareholders
and the Company. We have attended the board meetings and have
given our opinions regarding the business development, market
expansion, technological reform, basic management and team building
of the Company. We have also monitored the guiding ideology of the
management and considered whether the decisions made by the
management were in compliance with state laws and whether they
were appropriate for the development of the Company and were in the
interests of Shareholders.

According to its power, the Supervisory Committee has reviewed
evidence of the Company’s accounts, books, reports and other
accounting information in a timely manner. In our opinion, the financial
statements have been properly prepared while the accounting principles
and the method of financial management adopted are in compliance with
relevant rules and regulations and no issues were identified.

The Supervisory Committee have carefully examined the financial
statements, the Directors’ Report and the proposal for appropriation of
profit to be presented before the annual general meeting by the Board of
Directors. In our opinion, the chairman of the Board, directors, managers
and senior management have not engaged in any malpractices which
would be prejudicial to the interests of Shareholders and employees of
the Company.

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the performance as well as
the economic results of the Company, and we are confident about the
future development of the Company.

Supervisor
MIN Qing
Chongging, the PRC, 25 March 2022
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The Board is pleased to present its annual report and audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the production and sale of Isuzu light,
medium and heavy-duty trucks, pick-up trucks as well as automobile
parts and accessories. The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures of the Company are set out in notes 41, 22 and 23
respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis of the business review as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a fair view
of the business and a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year 2021 and an
indication of likely future development in the Group’s business are set
out in the “Chairman’s Statement”, “Directors’ Report”, “Corporate
Governance Report” and “Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements” sections of this annual report. In addition, a discussion of
the Company's environmental policies and performance, the Company’s
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Company and the relationship between the Company and
significant stakeholders are set out in “Directors’ Report” and “Corporate
Governance Report” sections of this annual report. The business review
in the above sections comprise part of this report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 70. The directors recommend the
payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.11 per share to the Shareholders
whose names appear in the register of members of the Company on 16
June 2022, amounting to approximately RMB273,050,000 in total.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to environmental protection, energy-saving and
emission reduction, and the integrated use of resources. Adhering to the
principles of making production and operation harmony to the ecological
environment, the Group has adopted the concept of environmental
protection, energy-saving and emission reduction and the integrated use
of resources in its production and operating activities through reducing
emission, protecting the environment and saving of resources while
putting into practice the scientific concepts of environmental protection
and integrated use of resources.

B2 /3E MM AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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The Group keeps placing strong emphasis on environmental protection
issues and coordinates the relationship between production development
and environmental protection, with the aim to develop pollution-free
production modes. The successive operation of the newly-installed
environmental protection facilities, the improvement of working
environment and the integrated measures adopted to prevent and
mitigate pollution have made the pollutants produced not exceeding
the standards set by local environmental authorities. The Group strives
to protect and improve the environment, enhance the environmental
awareness of our staff, ensure the well-being of our staff and builds a
clean and favorable production and working environment. With various
measures such as resources recycling and reusing and energy-saving
and emission reduction putting in place in the production process, the
Group endeavors to produce energy-saving and environmentally-friendly
products while keeping in mind the well-being of the production workers.
The implementation of the above measures fully demonstrates the
Group’s sustainable development strategies and its determination on
environmental protection.

COMPLIANCE OF RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

With regard to the protection of intellectual properties — The Group has
complied with the terms stipulated under the Trademark Law of the
People’s Republic of China and its Regulation for the Implementation of
the Trademark Law and the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China
and Rules for the Implementation of the Patent Law and the specific
requirements of the city to carry out the work in relation to the design
and file registration of trademarks and patents and has actively taken
measures to protect the trademarks and patents of other interested
stakeholders.

With regard to the product quality and consumer rights — The Group
has strictly complied with the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Product Quality and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests in the manufacturing and
selling procedures of automobile products and automobile parts. With
respect to product quality, the Group strengthens source management
and formulates stringent standard in evaluating parts suppliers to ensure
the quality of parts products and prevent substandard goods being
passed off as high-quality ones while purchasing automobile products
and parts. During the production process, standardized management
is strictly implemented with an emphasis on the management of
craftsmanship quality, and defective and substandard parts are prohibited
to be assembled at the production line in order to ensure the satisfactory
rate at the production line. Before the products are transferred into the
warehouses, product quality inspection system was strictly put in place
to forbid defective products being launched. In terms of protection of
consumers’ rights, we have complied with the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Protection of Consumer Rights, and product
manuals with full details are provided to consumers while advertisements
are tailored to truly reflect the authentic characteristics of products.
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With regard to the interests of the employees — The Group strives
to comply with the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Social Insurance
Law of the People’s Republic of China, so as to safeguard the legitimate
interests of workers. All full-time employees are entitled to work-related
injury insurance, unemployment insurance, medical insurance, pension
insurance, and maternity insurance and housing fund as required by the
state regulations. The Group has also arranged annual body check for
all of its staff, and this further protects the legitimate interests of the
employees. Moreover, the Group also actively organizes activities for its
employees with regard to the education of prevention of occupational
disease and other safety and health related issues.

With regard to tax payment — The Group complies with specific
regulations of the People’s Republic of China on various taxes, and
pays taxes according to the law for the purpose of ensuring that all
tax payment made by the Group is in compliance with the laws and
regulations.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES

Risks relating to the decline in sales and profit as a result of
weakened market environment

As China’'s economy is turning into “new normal” amid the cross
impact of the “overlapping of the three phases”, the sales of domestic
commercial vehicles decline as a result of the overall decline in demand
for commercial vehicles. With the protracted economic downturn, the
competition in the domestic commercial vehicles market may further
exacerbate, causing impact to the Group's sales for commercial vehicles
and hence affecting the Group's profit.

Risks relating to the insufficient research and development and
the increase in costs in order to adapt to the tightened national
regulations on emission and consumer demand

Taken into the consideration of environmental protection, the national
regulations on emission tend to be tightened and the switching time
tends to be shortened while the consumer demand tends to be more
diversified and competitors tend to launch new products more frequently,
this has put forward higher requirement for the Group’s research and
development capability. However, there exists lead time from research
and development to commercial production of replacement products,
the Group's capability in research and development is crucial in
satisfying national and consumer requirements while outperforming the
competitors. Nevertheless, it may not be possible to timely launch new
products that can outperform competitors every time due to constraints
on capital, time, and ability. Since the Group’s costs on research and
development will be driven up by the launching of new products, such
research and development costs may have to transfer to the product
price to the extent not offset by the reasonable reduction of the Group's
internal costs, and this will inevitably weaken the Group’s product
competitiveness.

E$2/5H A1 B PR A R Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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Risks relating to the fall of products’ popularity and reputation
arising from consumers’ comment

In recent years, the competition among domestic commercial vehicles
enterprises intensifies as the market environment deteriorates.
Competitors keep launching mid-to-high end commercial trucks into the
market, causing unfavorable impact to the Group’s dominant position in
the mid-to-high end commercial truck market.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group incurred approximately RMB150,999,000
on acquisition of property, plant and equipment for expansion of its
production facilities.

Details of these and other movements during the year in property, plant
and equipment and investment properties of the Group are set out in
note 18 and note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUID FUNDS
SITUATION

Financial Performance

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue of the Group was
RMB4,828,237,000 representing a decrease of 5.12% as compared to
last year mainly due to the decrease of sales volume.

Gross profit for the period was RMB554,344,000 representing a decrease
of 20.74% as compared to last year. Gross profit margin of the Group
for the period was 11.48% as compared with 13.74% last year. Profit
and total comprehensive income for the year was RMB330,886,000
representing an increase of 7.97% as compared to last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, other income and expenses
mainly included government grants, interest income, rental income and
miscellaneous service income and expense was RMB453,790,000,
representing an increase of 62.54% as compared to last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's expenses, including
distribution and selling expenses, administrative expenses and research
expenses, increased by 5.15% as compared to last year, principally due
to the increase in research activities expenses for the year as compared
to last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the share of results of joint
ventures of the Group was RMB4,306,000, representing an increase of
77.42% as compared to last year, mainly due to the profit increase of &
BRARTRER)AEHEERBER AT (“Qingling Sales”), which is a joint
venture that was established in December 2007.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, basic earnings per share was
RMBO0.13. The Company did not issue any new shares and the basic
earnings per share was comparable with last year.

Financial Position

As at 31 December 2021, the total assets and total liabilities of the Group
were RMB10,905,911,000 and RMB2,838,689,000 respectively.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s non-current assets amounted to
RMB4,988,506,000 which mainly included property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, investment properties, intangible assets, interests in
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets and time deposits.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's current assets amounted to
RMB5,917,405,000 which mainly included inventories, trade, bills and
other receivables and prepayments, tax recoverable, time deposits, bank
balances and cash.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's current liabilities amounted to
RMB2,829,614,000 which mainly includes trade, bills and other payables,
lease liabilities, tax liabilities, contract liabilities and refund liabilities.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's non-current liability amounted to
RMB9,075,000 which mainly included deferred income — governments
grants and lease liabilities.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's net current assets was RMB3,087,791,000
(2020: RMB3,919,383,000), representing a decrease of 21.22% as
compared to last year, mainly due to the liquidity classification of time
deposits.

Liquidity and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2021, the time deposits, bank balances and cash
retained by the Group due within one year were RMB2,273,060,000 and
decreased by 30.75% as compared with the balances on 31 December
2020. The Group's working capital requirement was financed by its own
cash flow. Gearing ratio represented the percentage of total liabilities
over total equity as per consolidated statement of financial position. The
gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2021 was 35.19% (as at 31
December 2020: 37.30%). Issued share capital as at 31 December 2021
maintained at the level of RMB2,482,268,000 as no share was issued
during this year.

B2 /3E MM AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no material change in
the financing strategies of the Group and the Group did not incur any bank
borrowings nor any non-current liabilities. The Company would closely
monitor the financial and liquidity position of the Group and financial
market from time to time in order to formulate financing strategies
appropriate to the Group. The total equity attributable to owners of the
Company as at 31 December 2021 was RMB7,739,697,000. The net
assets value per share (representing total equity attributable to owners
of the Company divided by number of shares of the Company as at 31
December 2021) as at 31 December 2021 was RMB3.12.

Significant Investment

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's interests in joint ventures were
RMB489,471,000 and interest in associates was RMB51,131,000
which mainly included the interest in B#&ZFAEAR AT (“Qingling
Shinenary”), a joint venture, of RMB42,115,000. For the year ended 31
December 2021, the joint ventures and associate of the Group were
under normal operation.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no significant
acquisition and disposal of the Group.

Segment Information

The revenue contributed by light-duty trucks and medium and heavy-duty
trucks were RMB2,662,521,000 and RMB1,063,858,000 respectively,
representing 77.18% of the total revenue and 97.39% of the total
segment profit. Light-duty trucks and medium and heavy-duty trucks are
currently the major products accounting for the highest contribution to
the Group.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2021, no asset of the Group was pledged for financial
facilities (for the year ended 31 December 2020: Nil).

Effects of Foreign Exchange Rate Changes

The major foreign currency transactions of the Group are relating to
purchasing automobile parts denominated in Japanese Yen. The Group

did not encounter any difficulty or suffer any significant impact in its
operations or liquidity as a result of fluctuation in the exchange rate.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year or at any
time during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, the amount
of profit available for distribution shall be deemed to be the lesser
of the amount of profit determined in accordance with the relevant
accounting principles and financial regulations applicable to companies
established in the PRC ("PRC GAAP"). The Company's profit available
for distribution to shareholders as at 31 December 2021 was the
retained profit of approximately RMB1,518,696,000 (2020: approximately
RMB1,478,406,000).

The profit of the Company for a financial year shall be applied in
accordance with the following order:

(i)  making up losses;
(i) allocation to statutory surplus reserve fund;

(i) if there are preference shares, payment of dividends in respect of
preference shares;

(iv)  allocation to discretionary surplus reserve fund; and
(v)  payment of dividends in respect of ordinary shares.
The detailed proportion of distribution in respect of items (ii) to (v) above
for any financial year shall be formulated by the Board in accordance
with the operational conditions of the Company and its development

requirements and shall be submitted to shareholders’ general meeting for
approval.

E$2/5H A1 B PR A R Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The directors and supervisors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

LUO Yuguang (Chairman)

HAYASHI Shuichi (resigned on 30 July 2021)
MAEGAKI Keiichiro (resigned on 30 July 2021)
ADACHI Katsumi (resigned on 30 July 2021)
YASUTA Tatsuya (appointed on 30 July 2021)
MASUDA Yoichi (appointed on 30 July 2021)
YAGI Naoto (appointed on 30 July 2021)

LI Juxing

XU Song

LI Xiaodong

Independent Non-executive Directors:

LONG Tao
SONG Xiaojiang
LIU Erh Fei

LIU Tianni

Supervisors:

MIN Qing
ZHANG Yongning (resigned on 15 December 2021)
PU Qing (appointed on 15 December 2021)

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All the executive directors and independent non-executive directors that
were re-elected and appointed renewed or entered into service contracts
or appointment letters with the Company for a term of three years on 2
June 2021 and 30 July 2021 respectively.

All the supervisors that were re-elected and appointed renewed or
entered into appointment letters with the Company for a term of three
years on 2 June 2021 and 15 December 2021 respectively.

None of the directors or supervisors has a service contract with the
Company or its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive directors as regards to their independence to
the Company and considers that each of the independent non-executive
directors is independent to the Company.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS" AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, none of the directors or the supervisors and
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in
any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations as defined under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO") as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors and supervisors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ MATERIAL
INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation
to which the Company, its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which any directors or supervisors or their
connected entities had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at any time during the year or at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts other than employment contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into by the Group or existed
during the year.

B2 /AHE D AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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EEREFNRIUERBT IR INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

RAFERN » ARRZEFREFWRNER During the year, none of the directors or supervisors of the Company had

NAIEBBFH R e T 2 EBP R aE any interest in any business which compete or may compete with the
= o business of the Company.

EE EFERESTHRAAM&R DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS" AND CHIEF
EEfFMAL EXECUTIVES’ REMUNERATION AND THE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

B  EIEREaTBRAEMERESHIA The details of directors’, supervisors’ and chief executives’ remuneration
T2 HBERGREMBEREMT1S - RME and the highest paid individuals are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
N 2ERERARBRSTMALTHRES - financial statements. Within two years, all of the five highest paid

individuals of the Company are directors.

BERAB R EZRRE NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS AND SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

RZE-—F+-A=1+—0 ' ARaREH As at 31 December 2021, there were 167 Shareholders recorded in the
it ERBERABAE167E  MARRESE -« B register of Shareholders of the Company and the Shareholders other
S mETHABUIN REREERIEE S & than a director, supervisor or chief executive of the Company, having

BRI ZE 33618 T AR AR R HETFKG an interest and short positions in 5% or more of the relevant class of
IR ECMARSE AR AREBERNS the issued share capital of the Company as recorded in the register of
BT AE% A E R AR AT ¢ interests in the shares and short positions required to be kept by the

Company under Section 336 of SFO were as follows:

RARRGOEFEER - Long positions in the shares of the Company:

EHERERN
BEXEESL {L#8RF
Percentage of B
FRriSAEnEHE the relevant Percentage of
BEREE B4R Number of &3 class of entire share
Name of Shareholders Class of Shares shares held Capacity share capital capital
ERREE&EE)ARAR NE I 1,243,616,4030% Em#EHB A 100.00% 50.10%
Qingling Motors (Group) Domestic shares  1,243,616,403 shares Beneficial owner 100.00% 50.10%

Company Limited

HEHRIREARRAR HA&% 496,453,654 EmEA A 40.08% 20.00%
Isuzu Motors Limited H shares 496,453,654 shares Beneficial owner 40.08% 20.00%

R EXFIIBEZEEN RARBE_ZS=—%F Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of any other

T A=+ —AUEEEANERARATEE relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the
FTRAS R B9 (R B Ab AR R R 2 SO B RO © Company as of 31 December 2021.

3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee (composed of one executive director and
four independent non-executive directors) on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

DIVIDEND POLICY

A dividend policy is adopted by the Company which aims at setting out
the principles to be followed for paying dividends to the Shareholders of
the Company. When considering the dividend payment, the Board shall
take into account the factors including but not limited to the Company's
financial results, general business conditions and strategies, and statutory
and regulatory restrictions. There is no assurance that dividends will be
declared or distributed in any particular amount or in any form for each
year or in any year.

E$2/5H A1 B PR A R Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had continuing connected transactions with
(a) Qingling Group and its subsidiaries EEE 5§54 AR A alChongging
Qingling Casting Company Limited (“CQCC"), EEE K IBEER QA
Chongging Qingling Forging Co. Ltd. (“CQFC"), EEEXEBER AT
Chongging Qingling Axle Co. Ltd. ("CQAC"), EEE B ERFARAR]
Chongging Qingling NHK Seat Co. Ltd. (“CONHK"), EEERERARA
&lChongaing Qingling Plastic Co. Ltd. (“CQPC"), EEEXEIRAR A
Chongging Qingling Aluminium Casting Co. Ltd. (“CQACL"), EEE$%A
BE &I E PR A "]Chongging Qingling Automobile Chassis Parts Co.
Ltd. (“QAC"), EEE =7 PR 2 FChongging Qingling Machinery
Parts Co. Ltd. ("QM") and EEEREMTEAR AR (“Qingling Zhuan
Yong”, formerly known as EEE$ 98 FREIEHFR A FChongging
Qingling Automobile Manufacture and Assembly Co. Ltd.), EEESA
BRHREAR AR (“Qingling Parts”), EEEXEMBMEEGRA
A)(“Qingling Vehicle Parts Manufacturing”) and EEE$EH e TEHA
HABMBAF("Keyu Parts”), (b) Isuzu, (c) I+ (FE)BEBEAER QT
("Isuzu China Engine”), an entity established and jointly controlled by the
Company and Isuzu, formerly known as E#:h+8 (EE) B FHEAER A
A, (d) B R +8(EE) AEHE R AR A FQingling Isuzu (Chongging)
Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (“Qingling Isuzu Sales”), an entity
established and jointly controlled by the Company and Isuzu, (e) T+ 55
8% (BB /RERITHAEE AR AR Isuzu Qingling (Chongging) Engineering
Co., Ltd ("Isuzu Qingling Engineering”), an associate controlled by Isuzu
and (f) BHEEE HEL(EE)ER A FBosch Hydrogen Powertrain
Systems (Chongging) Co., Ltd. (“Bosch”), 40% equity interest of which is
owned by the Qingling Group. Qingling Group and Isuzu held 50.10% and
20.00% of the equity of the Company respectively as at 31 December
2021. Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the above parties are connected
persons of the Group. Details of the continuing connected transactions
with the parties are as follows:
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(@)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling Group
and its subsidiaries:

(i

On 26 November 2019, the Company entered into the New
Parts Supply Agreements with Qingling Group (on behalf of
itself and its subsidiaries - QM, Qingling Zhuan Yong, QAC,
Qingling Parts and Keyu Parts), CQCC (on behalf of itself
and its subsidiaries - Qingling Vehicle Parts Manufacturing),
CQFC, CQAC, CONHK, CQPC and CQACL, respectively,
relating to the supply of certain automobile parts by Qingling
Group, CQCC, CQFC, CQAC, CQNHK, CQPC and CQACL,
respectively, to the Company, and the supply of certain
consolidated services by the Company to CQFC and the
lease of certain machineries by the Company to CQAC. With
respect to the automobile parts provided to the Company,
the price is based on actual costs incurred or reasonable
costs (whichever is lower) plus no more than 8% profit
margin determined in the following order: at prices not higher
than market prices; or if no comparable market price, at
prices based on actual costs or reasonable costs (whichever
is lower) incurred plus no more than 8% profit margin, and
in any event, at prices no less favourable than those offered
to independent third parties. The payment shall be made
within one month after receipt of bill. With respect to the
consolidated services provided by the Company to CQFC, the
price is determined based on actual costs incurred plus taxes
payable. With respect to the lease of machineries by the
Company to CQAC, the rental payable is determined based
on normal commercial terms no less favorable than terms
offered by CQAC to independent third parties.

B2 /3E MM AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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On 26 November 2019, the Company also entered into the
New Autoparts and Materials Agreement with CQCC, CQFC,
CQACL, CQAC, CQPC, CONHK, QAC, QM, Qingling Zhuan
Yong and Qingling Parts respectively. The Company will
sell to CQCC the scrap metal left over from the Company’s
manufacturing process and the prices shall not be lower
than the market price of scrap metal of the same type
and the price of such scrap metal sold by the Company to
independent third parties (if any); the Company will supply
to CONHK, Qingling Zhuan Yong and Qingling Parts semi-
finished auto parts and the prices of which will be determined
based on costs incurred by the Company plus a profit margin
of not exceeding 8%; and the Company will supply to all
Qingling Autoparts Companies (referring to all subsidiaries of
Qingling Group in the abovementioned agreements) crafting
materials including but not limited to gasoline, diesel, cutting
fluid, tools and equipment, and machinery spare parts which
will be sourced by the Company from suppliers which are
independent and not connected persons to the Company,
and the prices of which will be equivalent to the cost of
sourcing such materials from independent third parties plus
no more than 8% profit margin.

During the year, the amount for the above continuing
connected transactions are as follows:

Sales of automobile parts and others:

with respect to Qingling Group (Note 1): approximately

RMB7,617,000;

with respect to CQCC: approximately RMB18,570,000;

with respect to CQFC: approximately RMB1,863,000;

with respect to CQAC: approximately RMB7,501,000;

with respect to CONHK: approximately RMB11,064,000;

with respect to CQPC: approximately RMB744,000; and

with respect to CQACL: approximately RMB936,000.
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Purchases of automobile parts:

with respect to Qingling Group (Note 2): approximately
RMB68,296,000;

with respect to CQCC: approximately RMB21,250,000;
with respect to CQFC: approximately RMB33,462,000;
with respect to CQAC: approximately RMB397,435,000;
with respect to CONHK: approximately RMB61,775,000;
with respect to CQPC: approximately RMB69,663,000; and
with respect to CQACL: approximately RMB9,737,000.

Supply of consolidated services:

With respect to CQFC: approximately RMB1,616,000.

Lease of machineries:

With respect to CQAC: approximately RMB383,000.

Note 1: Including approximately RMB2,159,000, approximately
RMB2,240,000, approximately RMB1,200,000 and
approximately RMB2,018,000 representing the sales of
parts and raw materials to QM, Qingling Zhuan Yong,
QAC and Qingling Parts respectively during the year.

Note 2: Including approximately RMBO, approximately RMB9,134,000,
approximately RMB50,228,000, approximately RMB3,823,000,
approximately RMB5,111,000 and approximately RMBO
representing the purchases of automobile parts from Qingling
Vehicle Parts Manufacturing, QM, Qingling Zhuan Yong, QAC,
Qingling Parts and Keyu Parts respectively during the year.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Qingling Moulds entered into the New Qingling Group Moulds
Supply Agreement with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries
CQCC, CQFC, CQPC, CQACL, CONHK, Isuzu China Engine
and CQAC at a price determined on normal commercial terms
on 26 November 2019, relating to the supply of moulds and
related products and maintenance and/or processing services
by Qingling Moulds to the aforesaid companies. As there are
no sufficient comparable transactions, the price is determined
after arm’s length negotiations between the parties thereto
with reference to reasonable costs incurred, plus a profit
margin of not exceeding 8% and the consideration payable,
the terms offered to Qingling Moulds shall be no less
favourable than terms offered to independent third parties.
During the year, the amount of the continuing connected
transaction was RMBO.

The Company entered into the New Chassis Supply Agreement
with the Qingling Group (on behalf of itself and its
subsidiaries - Qingling Zhuan Yong) on 26 November 2019,
relating to the sale of automobile chassis and related
components by the Company to Qingling Group, the price
is determined with reference to the market price of chassis
and related components with a credit period of three to
six months after the sale. During the year, the amount of
the continuing connected transaction was approximately
RMB1,056,133,000.

The Company entered into the New Warehouse Leasing
Agreement on 26 November 2019 with Qingling Group (for
itself and on behalf of its wholly-owned subsidiary-Keyu
Parts), relating to the lease of (i) warehouse: an open-air
warehouse with an area of approximately 25,833.51 m?, an
indoor warehouse with an area of approximately 50,000 m?,
(i) a parcel of land with an area of approximately 20,697 m? to
be used as site for auto parts test, experiment and operation,
(iii) a parcel of land with an area of approximately 19,880.4 m?
to be used as site for storage of auto parts and raw materials,
(iv) a parcel of land with an area of approximately 10,000 m?,
(v) a house used as cultural and educational center with an
area of approximately 4,784.28 m?; and (vi) a parcel of land
located at the east of Chongging Qingling Forging Co. Ltd.
with an area of approximately 22,507.7 m? by Qingling Group
(or its wholly-owned subsidiary-Keyu Parts) to the Company
at a consideration of approximately RMB5,840,000,
RMB961,000, RMB923,000, RMB464,000, RMB830,000,
and RMB1,029,000 (VAT exclusive), respectively per annum.



(v)

(vi)

MEMEBEREEREBNIRESN
kAR EEGRETT - B
AARME) BETERHESR TG
REREERBYE =Rt
BRMET - M EMFEHEESE
(iv)IBRHER - RETIRESHE
N—RREEgTET  T2ER
IS RBEREMRNHANE
BEREMOERES - BEAQF
ME) I TERERNERER
E@EBELE =R BRE
Feo g EMEVEARENVIENLT
i, E  RELXERETHE
MR EGTET  BEAR
AME)TEBERARARMBBILE
ZHHRENELBMEZBRE
FeoEE(PEBYIFNITES)
REHAERORFELE 5
RHERAEB —R LB EER
BREREER M EGETT
BEBR S (BEARAREMNHAE
SIFAEAR A MR EREFIZS -

ARalR_FTE—NLF+—A4
T+ AHEEEERBERR]T
WAL RBERARTR
EEERBENAEERBES
HE— S I TR - FERHR
BIEIRI A SR EEER—
BEEGERREARQBmME) T
BREEERBENBYE=F
REBZHAERAMET - ~FE
N ABEBHEISNSREY
B ARE4,500,0007T °

KRRAR_-_ZE-—NAF+—A
“tARBEEREERIERSE
B R EEL - ABRBEERQEIR
EREEBARME  B110TRK
REBIL N EABRERE -
ERB(EREBR)WERTIETH
TRAFHEBRIZ - REEER
REAERRME) NERE®KE
B [FBI % = TRt 2 IR
E o ARREREBFETHR—
BAANBZFzZES  HE8
FABKREBEEENRITEHRS ©
RERR > AAFEREIZN
SRX R AKE875,0007T °

(vi)

EEERE
DIRECTORS' REPORT

For the above item (i), the leasing consideration is determined
after negotiations between the parties, on normal commercial
terms, and (for the Company) at prices not higher than
market prices or no less favourable than those offered by
Qingling Group to independent third parties. For the above
lands mentioned in item (ii) to item (iv), the considerations
are determined after negotiations between the parties, on
normal commercial terms with reference to the prevailing
market rent and current rent payable by the Group under the
warehouses leasing agreements, and (for the Company) at
prices not higher than market prices or no less favourable
than those offered by Qingling Group to independent third
parties. For the above lands/properties mentioned in item
(v) and Item (vi), the considerations are determined after
negotiations between the parties, on normal commercial
terms, and (for the Company) at prices no less favourable
than those offered by the Company for leasing of comparable
properties from independent third parties. The directors
(including independent non-executive directors) are of the
view that the New Warehouse Leasing Agreement is fair and
reasonable, such transactions will continue to be conducted
on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, and, such transactions
(including the rents payable by the Company), are in the
interest of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company entered into the New Machinery Leasing
Agreement with CQFC on 26 November 2019, relating to the
lease of machineries for further processing of casting and
forging parts from CQFC by the Company. The considerations
payable are determined after arm’s length negotiations
between the parties thereto, on normal commercial terms,
and (for the Company) with leasing terms no less favourable
than those offered by CQFC to independent third parties.
During the year, the amount of the continuing connected
transaction was approximately RMB4,500,000.

The Company entered into the New Qingling Group Equipment
Lease with the Qingling Group on 26 November 2019,
relating to the lease of equipment, namely the 110kVA
electrical substation and its ancillary facilities from Qingling
Group by the Company. The rent for the Leased Equipment
(Qingling Group) is determined after arm’s length negotiations
between the parties thereto, on normal commercial terms,
and (for the Company) with terms no less favourable than
those offered by Qingling Group to independent third parties.
The Company shall pay the rent for the quarter within one
month after the end of such quarter by crediting a bank
account specified by the Qingling Group. During the year,
the amount of the continuing connected transaction was
approximately RMB875,000.
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TR AFERNEEREERERBA The details and amount of the above connected transactions with
Al BER ZFIE RS EINENERE I Qingling Group and its subsidiaries during the year are set out in
TERERMIEEI70) note 37(i) to the consolidated financial statements.

b) HEEREAESEFEMELS (b)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling Moulds:
RZE-—NFE+—AZ+"H KRQF On 26 November 2019, the Company and Qingling Moulds entered
HEREASETOTHE - into the following agreements:

() HFERELHERE  ATER () The New Qingling Moulds Supply Agreement, relating to the

EREARAQRREER XA supply of moulds and related products and maintenance and
FAE mAMEES R IN TR - A processing services by Qingling Moulds to the Company,
NEFEREEREERER - T the supply of raw materials, processing services, and
IR Mz & RS - BRFENRR consolidated services by the Company to Qingling Moulds
KB REERYG - RERE including but not limited to water, electricity and gas supply
MIRERT - BEMEERSE R services, equipment repair and maintenance services,
“TERBRS - TEER—REE medical and hygiene services and the Three Warranties. The
BRETE  MERRIELERR price is determined on normal commercial terms, or if there
SHEERTE —MEERNE are no sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
E o BIRBEARRRFAREZIK they are on normal commercial terms, on terms fair and
RERE ° reasonable to the Company.
RAFER  RIEBEFEBE During the year, the purchase amount of the continuing
REMNEESBHOAARE connected transaction was approximately R\MB34,640,000,
34,640,0007C ' SEES RN AA the sales amount was approximately RMB659,000 and the
R #659,0007t MirA RE WA consolidated services income was RMB1,309,000.

AE#1,309,0007T °

(i) FEKREBEAEMEY RABERER (i)  The New Qingling Moulds Lease, relating to the lease of
BEMAQRRERUAEES a parcel of land with an area of 7,420 m? on the Land from
7,420 F FoRkey L - LARERE the Company to be used for the production of Qingling
REAEZHEERE  A8HARZ Moulds, and the effective period is from 1 January 2020 to
TEF-A—HEZZT=-= 31 December 2022. The rent for the Land (Qingling Moulds)
+—A=+—H - £ (EKIE is determined with reference to the prevailing market rent
BWHE H2ERTMSHES R and the rent paid by Qingling Moulds under the Qingling
EREAREBEERELBOIN Moulds Lease, after arm'’s length negotiations between the
MEE WIS AFEREE parties thereto and on normal commercial terms, and (for the
E—REEREZRERRAMm Company) with terms no less favourable than those offered
B)NBRARBRBLIE=F1R by the Company to independent third parties. The monthly
HZIERMETE - RIBHFERER rent under the New Qingling Moulds Lease is RMB3,587.35
A% - AR ARYK3,687.35 per month. During the year, the amount of the continuing
JCo AFEA F RERFEBER connected transaction was approximately RMB43,000.

SHE L B AREA3,0007T °
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(c)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Isuzu:

(i

(ii)

(iif)

On 26 November 2019, the Company entered into the
New lIsuzu Supply Agreement with Isuzu whereby Isuzu
provides the Company with certain automobile parts and
components produced by Isuzu and which are required in the
production processes. As there are no sufficient comparable
transactions, the price of the Company’s purchases of
automobile parts and components is determined with
reference to actual or reasonable costs (whichever is lower)
incurred plus a profit margin of not more than 10%, and the
payment shall be made at the time of delivery. During the
year, the amount of the continuing connected transaction
was approximately RMB154,852,000.

On 26 November 2019, the Company entered into the
New Company Supply Agreement with Isuzu whereby the
Company provides Isuzu and/or its wholly-owned subsidiaries
with complete vehicle, set of components and other
automobile parts. As there are no sufficient comparable
transactions, the price is determined in accordance with
actual or reasonable costs (whichever is lower) incurred
plus a profit margin of not more than 10%, and the payment
shall be made within 40 days after delivery. During the year,
the amount of the continuing connected transaction was
approximately RMB5,014,000.

During the year, the Company continued the transactions
under the technology transfer agreements and technology
licensing agreements with Isuzu entered on 20 February
2000, 23 May 2008, and 27 April 2016 for the transfer of
technology and provision of technical know-how and the
permission to use the trademark of Isuzu by Isuzu to the
Company for the production and sales of F series Chassis and
related parts and components, 700P3X series vehicles and
related parts and components, CYH vehicles, CYZ vehicles
and EXR/EXZ vehicles.

Pursuant to the F Chassis Technology Transfer Agreement,
the price is set at an initial fee (which has already been
fully paid by the Company to Isuzu), plus royalties, which
is determined with reference to the price of the parts
and components manufactured and sold by the Company
pursuant to the agreement, staff training fees and technical
assistance fees.
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Pursuant to the 700P3X Series Technology Transfer Agreement,
the price is set as the product development and production
technical support fee (which has already been fully paid by
the Company to Isuzu) plus a commission fee calculated at
3% of the on-site added value of each vehicle. The on-site
added value is determined by reference to the wholesale
price of the vehicle less the aggregate of the import price
of relevant parts and components, the price of parts and
components with standard specifications and the price of
engine assembly and parts.

Pursuant to the Technology Licence Agreements, for the sale
of each CYH, CYZ and EXR/EXZ vehicles, the price is set as
3% of the on-site added value of each vehicle. The on-site
added value is determined by reference to the wholesale
price of the vehicle less the aggregate of the import price
of relevant parts and components, the price of parts and
components with standard specifications and the price of
licensed engines.

In addition, the Company entered into the 3XCAB Agreement
with Isuzu on 23 June 2016, pursuant to which, Isuzu will
continue to provide technology and technical know-how, staff
training and technical assistance in relation to the Company’s
production of driving cabs as defined under the relevant
agreement in respect of the licensed vehicles as defined
under the agreement on production and sale and permit the
Company to use the trademark and emblem of “ISUZU". The
transaction pricing with respect to the transfer of technology
and provision of technical know-how is set as commission
fee, payable by the Company to Isuzu in relation to the sale
of each permitted vehicle, which is calculated at 3% of the
on-site added value of each vehicle (the on-site added value is
determined by reference to the wholesale price of the vehicle
less the aggregate of the import price of relevant parts and
components and the price of parts and components with
standard specifications). For the use of the trademark of Isuzu,
JPY2,000 is payable to Isuzu in relation to the sale of each
permitted vehicle.

Also, the Company and Isuzu made the Trademark Licensing
Agreement on 26 March 2021. Isuzu continues to grant the
Company a non-transferable right to use the trademarks and
emblems of Isuzu, “ISUZU" and “F+#5", in the sale of
the 600P, 100P and TF/UC series vehicles produced by the
Company from 28 March 2021 to the expiry date of the term
as stipulated by relevant PRC rules or regulations, and the
License fee for each series of vehicle is as follows: JPY2,000
for each 600P series vehicle sold, JPY1,500 for each 100P
series vehicle sold and JPY1,500 for each TF/UC series
vehicle sold.
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During the year, the amount incurred for the continuing
connected transaction under the technology transfer
agreements, technology licensing agreements and Trademark
Licensing Agreement was approximately RMB17,655,000.

The details and amount of the above connected transactions with
Isuzu during the year are set out in note 37(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Significant continuing connected transactions with Isuzu China
Engine:

On 26 November 2019, the Company and Isuzu China Engine
entered into the following agreements:

(i) The New Supply Agreement, relating to the provision of
parts of engines and raw materials by the Company to
Isuzu China Engine whereas Isuzu China Engine provides
engines and their parts to the Company. The Agreement shall
be effective from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022, and
may be renewed at expiration with the consent of the Parties
and with the consent of the Stock Exchange and/or the
approval of the Shareholders in accordance with the Listing
Rules, if necessary. As there are no sufficient comparable
Transactions, the selling price of the products to be supplied/
purchased shall be the actual costs of the supplying party
plus a profit margin of not exceeding 10%. Such premium
shall be finalised by both parties on the basis that it is fair and
reasonable to both parties. Payment for the previous month
shall be made to the supplier by the end of each month.
During the year, the purchase amount of the continuing
connected transaction was approximately RMB960,756,000
and the selling amount was approximately RMB387,409,000.

(i) The New Consolidated Services Agreement, relating to the
provision of certain services (including services such as
water and gas supply, transportation, equipment repair and
maintenance, medical and hygiene and three warranties) by
the Company to Isuzu China Engine. The Agreement shall
be effective from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022. The
actual price for the services to be provided by the Company
under the New Consolidated Services Agreement or any
further specific agreement(s) shall be the actual costs of the
Company plus taxes payable. During the year, the amount
of the continuing connected transaction was approximately
RMB1,609,000.
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(iii)

(iv)

The New Equipment Lease, relating to the lease of leased
equipment by the Company to Isuzu China Engine. The
Agreement shall be effective from 1 January 2020 to
31 December 2022. The rent for the Lease Equipment
(Isuzu China Engine) is determined on normal commercial
terms through arm’s length negotiations between the
parties thereto as well as (for the Company) on terms no
less favourable than those offered by the Company to
independent third parties, with reference to the market value
of Lease Equipment (Isuzu China Engine). During the year,
the amount of the continuing connected transaction was
approximately RMB42,210,000.

The New Factory Lease, relating to the lease of land and
factory buildings by the Company to Isuzu China Engine.
The Agreement shall be effective from 1 January 2020 to
31 December 2022. The monthly rent is approximately
RMB351,000 (VAT exclusive). The rents for the Lease
Land and the Factory Premises are determined on normal
commercial terms through arm’s length negotiations
between the parties thereto as well as (for the Company) on
terms no less favourable than those offered by the Company
to independent third parties. During the year, the amount
of the continuing connected transaction was approximately
RMB4,210,000.

The details and amount of the above connected transactions with

Isuzu China Engine during the year are also set out in note 37(iii) to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling Isuzu
Sales:

On 26 November 2019, the Company and Qingling Isuzu Sales
entered into the following agreements:

(i) The New Sales JV Lease, relating to the lease of the Sales
JV Leased Land and Sales JV Premises by the Company to
Qingling Isuzu Sales. The lease agreement shall be effective
from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022. The rent for
the Sales JV Leased Land and the Sales JV Premises is
determined on normal commercial terms through arm’s
length negotiations between the parties thereto as well as
(for the Company) on terms no less favourable than those
offered by the Company to independent third parties. The
monthly rent is approximately RMB130,000. On 9 November
2021, the Company entered into a termination agreement
with Sales JV Company with respect to the termination of
the New Sales JV Lease and the Lease was terminated
in advance. During the year, the amount of the continuing
connected transaction was approximately RMB1,165,000.

(i)  The New Sales JV Supply Agreement, relating to the
provision of automobiles and parts by the Company to
Qingling Isuzu Sales. The Agreement shall be effective
from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022 and may be
renewed at expiration with the consent of the Parties and
with the consent of the Stock Exchange and/or the approval
of the Shareholders in accordance with the Listing Rules,
if necessary. The actual selling prices of the automobiles
or their parts to be supplied/purchased under other related
terms in any other specific agreement shall not be lower than
the market prices of the automobiles or their parts and shall
not be lower than the prices offered to independent third
parties. If there are no comparable market prices, prices shall
be based on actual costs or reasonable costs (whichever is
lower) incurred plus a profit margin of not more than 8%.
During the year, the amount of the continuing connected
transaction was approximately RMB13,293,000.

The details and amounts of the above connected transactions with
Qingling Isuzu Sales during the year are set out in note 37(iv) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Continuing connected transactions with Isuzu Qingling Engineering:

On 26 November 2019, the Company and Isuzu Qingling
Engineering entered into the following agreements:

(i) The New Consolidated Services Agreement (Isuzu Qingling
Engineering), relating to the provision of certain services
(including services such as water, electricity and gas supply,
vehicle rental supply, telecommunication, network cable
lease and other support) by the Company to Isuzu Qingling
Engineering. The Agreement shall be effective from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2022. The price of the service
to be provided by the Company under the New Consolidated
Services Agreement (Isuzu Qingling Engineering) or any
further individual service contract is determined at the actual
costs of the Company plus taxes payable. During the year,
the amount of the continuing connected transaction was
approximately RMB101,000.

The details and amount of the above connected transaction with
Isuzu Qingling Engineering during the year are also set out in note
37(v) to the consolidated financial statements.

Continuing connected transactions with Bosch:

On 30 December 2021, the Company and Bosch entered into
the Supply Agreement in respect of the supply of hydrogen-
powered modules by Bosch to the Company. The Agreement shall
be effective from 30 August 2021 (or the date which the Supply
Agreement complies with all relevant approval formalities and/or
other approval procedures under the Listing Rules (if applicable)
whichever is later) to 31 December 2022. The price is based on
the industry benchmark price of a fair market. During the year, the
amount of the continuing connected transaction was approximately
RMB53,757,000.

The details and amounts of the above connected transactions
with Bosch during the year are also set out in note 37(vi) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Other Continuing Connected Transactions:

The Company, Isuzu China Engine and Isuzu Qingling Engineering
entered into the New Testing Agreement on 26 November 2019,
relating to the provision of testing services (including but not limited
to smoking tests, external property tests and combustion analysis
tests for full-loading and steady rolling engines; temperature
resistance tests for vehicles; and endurance tests and vibration
tests for parts) by the Company to Isuzu China Engine and Isuzu
Qingling Engineering. The Agreement shall be effective from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2022. Prices for services provided
shall not be less than the market prices. If there are no comparable
market prices, prices shall be determined based on the actual or
reasonable costs incurred (whichever is lower) plus a profit margin
of not more than 8%. During the year, the Company did not provide
the testing services to Isuzu China Engine and Isuzu Qingling
Engineering.

The details and amounts of the above connected transactions with
Isuzu China Engine during the year are also set out in note 37(iii)to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Company's auditor was engaged to conduct audit work in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Pursuant to the Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules, the auditor has issued a letter to the Board of the
Company that nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the continuing connected transactions disclosed by
the Group (except those de minimize transactions which are fully
exempted pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules):

1. have not been approved by the listed issuer’s board of directors;

2. for transactions involving the provision of goods or services
by the Group, were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

3. were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the agreements of the relevant transactions; and

4. have exceeded the annual caps set by the Company.

B2 /3E MM AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

37



38

EEERE
DIRECTORS' REPORT

RRREMIFMITESER  BRERS
TIARRRINAERBPRIL - B—RE
EIRFAEEZEF - URBEARS
2 GTETT  RRBAFEE - B
AR RAIRRA BB -

REX 5

(i)

ANEIA2016F4 A27 B B R+ 5
BRI T (O CYHBEMTRF AT ek + ()CYZHL
rEF Al #h3% R (i) EXR/EXZ T & ]
i ARBR A TREARRRER
MREMESE - B Tl REMf S
AR ARAABERR R ZAERIEZ
TR IEB (R R R B A E R EE (i)
CYH : (i)CYZ ; (i) EXR/EXZIRE ©

BRCYHREM T E s XEA
700,000,000 B EIfER AR RIIZA N
RAENFRTE : (\EREBRZI0%E
B B R & B EIE30R
RS (D ERERBEHCYHD
CYH® : CYHORCYH® » BARAFHE
A+ EAERIEHSECYHER T
o BEI30EBR BEIMNBHLE
BZ10%  a@XEXBHEZ40% : &
(I FEEAREFHCYHD » CYHD -
CYHORCYH®  BARRARIEA 1§25
EMHEREECYHEWHAEAEZ B H
30EA BREXNEHEAERAZE%
EHERBAZ20% °

BRCYZEM#FA e aXEA
700,000,000 B Bl JERA R AIZIAT A
AXMFRTHE  VERERZ40%/E
B AR BRI i B HARE308 R
TR NERBRZA0%EE KRR A
B A S ERMBRENE SRR
2 BEAE30E AT RiiVEXEBH
220%EEARAEA TR ERE
RACYZABERELEZ HE#E30BAX
o

3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

The independent non-executive directors of the Company confirm
that the transactions have been entered into by the Company in the
ordinary and usual course of its business, on normal commercial
terms or better and in accordance with the agreement governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders of the Company as a whole.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(i)

On 27 April 2016, the Company and Isuzu entered into (i) the CYH
Technology Licence Agreement; (ii) the CYZ Technology Licence
Agreement; and (i) the EXR/EXZ Technology Licence Agreement,
respectively, in relation to the provision of technology and technical
know-how, staff training and technical assistance and the licence
to use the trademark and the emblem of Isuzu by Isuzu to the
Company for the production and sale of (i) CYH; (ii) CYZ; and (iii)
EXR/EXZ vehicles in the PRC on an non-exclusive basis.

For the CYH Technology Licence Agreement, an initial fee of
JPY700,000,000 is payable by the Company to Isuzu in the
following manner: (i) 40% of the initial fee shall be payable within
30 days from the date of approval granted by the relevant PRC
authorities; (i) 10% of the initial fee for each of the sample vehicles
CYH®, CYH®, CYH® and CYH® and a total of 40% of the initial
fee shall be payable within 30 days from the date of completion
of the provision of each CYH vehicles confirmed in writing by both
the Company and Isuzu; and (iii) 5% of the initial fee for each of the
sample vehicles CYH®, CYH®, CYH® and CYH® and a total of
20% of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days from the date
of the bulk production of each CYH vehicles confirmed in writing by
both the Company and Isuzu.

For the CYZ Technology Licence Agreement, an initial fee of
JPY700,000,000 is payable by the Company to Isuzu in the
following manner: (i) 40% of the initial fee shall be payable within
30 days from the date of approval granted by the relevant PRC
authorities; (ii) 40% of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days
from the date of completion of the provision of technical know-
how confirmed in writing by both the Company and Isuzu; and (iii)
20% of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days from the date
of the bulk production of the CYZ vehicles confirmed in writing by
both the Company and Isuzu.
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For the EXR/EXZ Technology Licence Agreement, an initial fee
of JPY700,000,000 is payable by the Company to Isuzu in the
following manner: (i) 40% of the initial fee shall be payable within
30 days from the date of approval granted by the relevant PRC
authorities; (ii) 40% of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days
from the date of completion of the provision of technical know-how
confirmed in writing by both the Company and Isuzu; and (iii) 20%
of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days from the date of
the bulk production of the EXR/EXZ vehicles confirmed in writing by
both the Company and Isuzu.

The Company also has to pay royalties to Isuzu in relation to the
sale of each CYH, CYZ and EXR/EXZ vehicles, which are calculated
at 3% of the on-site added value of each vehicle.

No payment was conducted in the current period because the CYH
agreement is no longer being developed.

On 4 July 2018, the Company and Isuzu entered into ()VC66(CYH)
National VIb Technology Development Agreement; (ii)
VCB6(CYZ) National VIb Technology Development Agreement;
and (iii)VCB6(EXR/EXZ) National VIb Technology Development
Agreement, respectively. The Company engaged Isuzu to carry out
design change related development for the relevant (i)VC61(CYH),
(i)VCB1(CYZ) and (iii)VCB1(EXR/EXZ) basic vehicles so as to
allow the equipment of such vehicles with the sample engine for
VC66 series vehicles and ensure compliance with the relevant
National VIb emission regulations and other regulations required by
certifications on model (announcement), oil consumption, safety
and CCC, compliance with the same CAN (Control Area Network)
communication standard as used for the basic vehicles, and to
provide technical guidance or study services. Isuzu shall submit the
Company with the relevant technical information together with a
set of documents and electronic data recording the details of such
technical information in accordance with the agreement. The term
of the agreement is from 28 June 2017 to the date of completion
of payment of consideration under the agreement.

In respect of the VC66(CYH) National VIb Technology Development
Agreement, the Company shall pay the consideration to Isuzu in the
following way: (a) Payment of JPY 125,356,000 within 30 days from
the date of entering into of the VC66(CYH) National Vib Technology
Development Agreement; (b) Payment of JPY 125,356,000 within 30
days upon completion of Isuzu's provision of relevant information
on development technology to the Company as confirmed by both
parties in writing; (c) Payment of JPY62,678,000 within 30 days
from the date of commencement of manufacturing and assembling
vehicles using the relevant information on development technology.

B2 /3E MM AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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In respect of the VC66(CYZ) National VIb Technology Development
Agreement, the Company shall pay the consideration to Isuzu in the
following way: (a) Payment of JPY 125,356,000 within 30 days from
the date of entering into of the VC66(CYZ) National VIb Technology
Development Agreement; (b) Payment of JPY 125,356,000 within 30
days upon completion of Isuzu’s provision of relevant information
on development technology to the Company as confirmed by both
parties in writing; (c) Payment of JPY62,678,000 within 30 days
from the date of commencement of manufacturing and assembling
vehicles using the relevant information on development technology.

In respect of the VC66(EXR/EXZ) National Vib Technology
Development Agreement, the Company shall pay the consideration
to Isuzu in the following way: (a) Payment of JPY257,284,000
within 30 days from the date of entering into of the VC66(EXR/EXZ)
National VIb Technology Development Agreement; (b) Payment
of JPY257,284,000 within 30 days upon completion of Isuzu's
provision of relevant information on development technology to the
Company as confirmed by both parties in writing; (c) Payment of
JPY 128,642,000 within 30 days from the date of commencement
of manufacturing and assembling vehicles using the relevant
information on development technology.

The consideration payable under the above agreements is
determined based on the technical advancement and market
prospect of products and with reference to the consideration under
the technology licence agreements of other companies in the
industry. The above payments shall be made by the Company to
Isuzu in JPY after deduction of taxes payable by Isuzu to the PRC
government.

In 2018, the Company paid JPY 125,356,000, JPY125,356,000 and
JPY257,284,000 to Isuzu in respect of (i) VC66(CYH) National VIb
Technology Development Agreement : (ii) VC66(CYZ) National
VIb Technology Development Agreement; and (iii) VC66(EXR/EXZ)
National VIb Technology Development Agreement, respectively,
and no payment in current period about the above three contracts.

For the 700P3X (with 4JZ1 150 horsepower National VIb) Technology
Development Agreement, an initial fee of JPY580,370,000 is
payable by the Company to Isuzu in the following manners: (i)
40% of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days from the
date of approval granted by the relevant PRC authorities; (ii) 40%
of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days from the date of
completion of the provision of technical know-how confirmed in
writing by both the Company and Isuzu; and (iii) 20% of the initial
fee shall be payable within 30 days from the date of the bulk
production of the 700P vehicles confirmed in writing by both the
Company and Isuzu. The entity pays JPY232,148,000 in 2019,
which was not paid in the current period.

The details and amounts of the connected transaction with Isuzu
during the year are also set out in note 37(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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On 18 September 2018, the Company convened a Board meeting
at which the proposal regarding the Merger was considered and
approved. Isuzu China Engine and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts entered
into the Merger Agreement on 2 October 2018 (after trading hours),
pursuant to which, Isuzu China Engine will absorb and merge
with Isuzu Qingling Autoparts, and Isuzu China Engine will be the
surviving company upon completion of the Merger and assume all
the assets, liabilities, operations, qualifications, personnel, contracts
and all other rights and obligations of Isuzu Qingling Autoparts
and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts will be dissolved and deregistered.
Further, on 2 October 2018 (after trading hours), the Company,
Qingling Group and Isuzu also entered into (i) the JV Agreement
to set out their respective rights and obligations in Isuzu China
Engine in accordance with the Merger; and (ii) the Priority Supply
Memorandum to set out the agreement in relation to the priority
supply of goods by Isuzu China Engine to the Company.

The proportion of the capital contribution by the Company, Qingling
Group and Isuzu to Isuzu China Engine upon completion of the
Merger are determined with reference to their respective capital
contribution to Isuzu China Engine and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts
before the Merger and the net asset values of Isuzu China Engine
and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts as valued by the Independent
Valuer with 31 December 2017 as the valuation benchmark date.
According to the Isuzu China Engine Valuation Report and the
Isuzu Qingling Autoparts Valuation Report, the total interests of
Shareholders of Isuzu China Engine and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts
as at 31 December 2017 amounted to RMB884,919,700 and
RMB1,404,035,500, respectively. The amount and proportion of
their respective capital contribution are set out in the table below:

HE & ie1:4:0)

BREE Amount of capital Proportion of
Name of Shareholder contribution capital contribution
(1)
(USD)
142 Isuzu 164,107,986 50.61%
EREE Qingling Group 97,472,556 30.06%
PIN/NG] The Company 62,679,458 19.33%
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RNEBEAHRFPEEEH IR FE The Existing Continuing Connected Transactions entered into

FERX 5B between the Group with Isuzu China Engine include the followings:

(a) ARNTEHEATRFBEEESEN = (@) the New Supply Agreement dated 26 November 2019
- NE+—AZ+BEIZH entered into between the Company and Isuzu China Engine
RS RAERARER relating to the provision of parts of engines and raw materials
AR RSB REHEHRT by the Company to Isuzu China Engine, and the provision
HHEREME - ARBA RSP of engines and their parts by Isuzu China Engine to the
Bl B Bk R AN RIIR L EE DI 2 Company;

HEHM

(b) AAFEAELPEESHEN = (b)  the New Equipment Lease dated 26 November 2019 entered
E-NF+—AZ+RBFIX into between the Company and Isuzu China Engine relating
R ERLY  REERARQF] to the leasing of the Leased Equipment by the Company to
MA+RPEESRALEER Isuzu China Engine;

1

(c) AREHEATRPBEZESHEN= (c)  the New Factory Lease dated 26 November 2019 entered
E-NF+—AZ+RBFIX into between the Company and Isuzu China Engine relating
FIRAEL - RRERAREM to the leasing of the Leased Land and the Factory Premises
AL BI B AR A E by the Company to Isuzu China Engine;

BRI :

(d ZAAEEATRPBEESHEN (d the New Consolidated Services Agreement dated 26
E-NF+—AZ+RBFIX November 2019 entered into between the Company and Isuzu
TR e R%HE - NBBERAR China Engine relating to the provision of certain services by
Al A TR E B E IR T the Company to Isuzu China Engine; and
RS : &

(@ ARARHE(EPBE)RTRSP (g the New Testing Agreement dated 26 November 2019

BEgsHEn _——LF+—A
ZHRBRIZEFAIRGE - A
BRARARBRA+HRPEES
R HE TRISARTS -

entered into between the Company and, among others, Isuzu
China Engine and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts relating to the
provision of certain testing services by the Company to Isuzu
China Engine.

RMEEHTEME - BRAE+HHRPEE
PR AFERRL S AET TRER
METHHHNEHEE AF - ¥
BHE - AB - AREEM— YT EE
% A LBBEOMERRE RS TE
(FREZBERTEAOTHATRER
METEARAATRTEESHE) M
A+ EEBREEEETERE TR
EITHORERERS °

Following the conclusion of the Merger, Isuzu China Engine, being
the surviving company, would assume all the assets, liabilities,
operations, qualification, personnel, contracts and all other rights
and obligations of Isuzu Qingling Autoparts, all the terms under
the aforesaid agreements, therefore, will remain unchanged,
except that the name of the party to an agreement will be changed
from Isuzu Qingling Autoparts to Isuzu China Engine in certain
circumstances (as appropriate), and Isuzu China Engine will
continue to proceed with the continuing connected transactions
contemplated thereunder.
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(iv)  On 26 March 2021, the Company entered into an agreement with
Qingling Zhuan Yong, pursuant to which the Company agreed
to pay RMB89 million to Qingling Zhuan Yong regarding the
Judgment by FIITFHARER the Shenzhen Intermediate
People’'s Court on 14 May 2018 and the Judgement by BEEE S
M AREPT the Guangdong Higher People’s Court on 2 August
2019 (the”Judgments”), and Qingling Zhuan Yong also agreed to
recover the debts under the Judgments from the other debtors
in accordance with the Judgments. In the event that Qingling
Zhuan Yong successfully recovers any amount of such debts from
the other debtors, subject to the compliance with the relevant
provisions of applicable laws, regulations and rules (including
but not limited to the Listing Rules), it will, upon receipt of such
amount, return the remaining amount after deducting its cost
incurred therefrom to the Company.

The information of the related party transactions entered into by
the Group is set out in note 37(i) to (vii) to the consolidated financial
statements. Those related party transactions also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and the Board confirms
that the Company has complied with the requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for those transactions.

FIVE LARGEST SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the purchases from five largest
suppliers accounted for 15.29% of the total purchases of the Group. The
purchases from the largest supplier accounted for 5.60% of the total
purchases. Qingling Group and its subsidiaries, a joint venture of the
Company and a Japanese trading company, through which Isuzu channels
its supply of parts and components to the Group, are included in the five
largest suppliers of the Group. Details of transactions with Qingling Group
and its subsidiaries and with Isuzu are set out in the section “Connected
Transactions” above. Other than disclosed above, the Company's
directors and supervisors, their associates or any Shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital), did not have any interests in the Group's five largest
suppliers for the year ended 31 December 2021. For the year ended 31
December 2021, Qingling Zhuan Yong was the largest customer. The
aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five largest customers (except
Qingling Zhuan Yong) were less than 25.23% of the Group's total sales.
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS
OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company and its subsidiaries did not issue or grant any convertible
securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the year.

There were no outstanding or conversion of convertible securities,
options, warrants or similar rights issued or granted by the Company or
its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity during the year.

DESIGNATED DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not hold any designated deposits
or any time deposits that were overdue but could not be collected upon
maturity.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, none of the Company or its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company'’s listed securities.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 2,934 employees (2020: 2,980
employees). During the year, no material change was noted for the
number of employees or their remuneration policy. The Group actively
formulated and implemented various training to its staff of all levels.

STAFF RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the Group's staff retirement benefits scheme are set out in
note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. Based on specific enquires to all directors and
supervisors, the Company confirms that all directors and supervisors
have complied with the requirements of the Model Code during the year.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Articles
of Association.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information on the Company’s corporate governance practices is set
out in the “Corporate Governance Report” from pages 46 to 63.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its directors, there is sufficient public float as
not less than 25% of the Company's issued shares are held by the public
throughout the year 2021.

REVIEW OF ACCOUNTS

The audit committee has reviewed with the management and auditors
of the Company the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed auditing, internal controls and financial reporting
matters including the review of the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting for 2022 to
re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP
and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, during the period
from 27 August 2021 (the date of 2021 interim report of the Company)
to 25 March 2022 (the date of the 2021 annual report of the Company),
there is no change in information regarding the Directors that is required
to be disclosed pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2).

By order of the Board
LUO Yuguang
CHAIRMAN

Chongaing, the PRC
25 March 2022
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The Company puts high emphasis on and endeavors to maintain a
high standard of corporate governance. The Board believes that good
corporate governance practices are important to promote investors’
confidence and protect the interest of our Shareholders. The Company
attaches importance to our staff, our code of conduct and our corporate
policies and standards, which together form the basis of our corporate
governance practices. The Board has adopted sound corporate
governance and disclosure practices, and is committed to continuously
improving those practices and cultivating an ethical corporate culture.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has complied with
the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code that were in force
during the year (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”), save and except for the code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code as
the chairman of the Board (who was also the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company) was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 2 June 2021 due to his works.

THE BOARD

Members of the Board are accountable to the shareholders for the success
and sustainable development of the Company. The Board is responsible
for the management of all the important issues of the Company, including
the duties of convening general meetings, implementing the resolutions
passed at the general meetings, determining the operating strategies
and investment proposals of the Company, formulating the plans of the
Company for annual financial budgets and final accounts, establishing
and approving the internal control and risk management systems and
monitoring the performance of the members of the senior management.
The directors shall make objective decisions for the interests of the
Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted board diversity policy in September 2013 to comply
with the new code provisions in relation to board diversity effective from
September 2013.

When determining the composition of the Board, the Company shall
take into account our business operations and select candidates with
appropriate and necessary skills and experience and those who can
express their views in a multi-angle perspective. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.
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Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates wiill bring to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board of the Company is comprised of
11 members, including 7 executive directors and 4 independent non-
executive directors. Independent non-executive directors account for
36.4% of the number of Board members.

An analysis of the Board based on a scope of diversity perspective is set
forth below:

70-79 21-30

FRAR
Age Group

BRAS 5

Length of Service

Mr. HAYASHI Shuichi, Mr. MAEGAKI Keiichiro and Mr. ADACHI Katsumi
have tendered their resignation as executive directors of the Company
due to work reallocation. Mr. YASUTA Tatsuya, Mr. MASUDA Yoichi and
Mr. YAGI Naoto were elected as executive directors of the Company
at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 30 July
2021 to succeed Mr. HAYASHI Shuichi, Mr. MAEGAKI Keiichiro and Mr.
ADACHI Katsumi as executive directors.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board of the Company is
comprised of 11 Directors:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LUO Yuguang (Chairman)

Mr. YASUTA Tatsuya (Vice Chairman and General Manager)
Mr. MASUDA Yoichi

Mr. YAGI Naoto

Mr. LI Juxing

Mr. XU Song

Mr. LI Xiaodong

B2 /AHE D AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LONG Tao

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang
Mr. LIU Tianni

Mr. LIU Erh Fei

Biographical particulars of the Directors are set out in the section headed
"“Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management”
in this annual report.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, all the Directors,
including independent non-executive Directors, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years, and their
re-election is subject to a vote of the Shareholders.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
each of the existing independent non-executive Directors in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with
the Listing Rules.

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION OF THE
BOARD

The Board determines the overall strategies of the Company, and
monitors the performance of the senior management and the related
risks and control systems so as to achieve the development objectives
of the Company. Day-to-day management of the Company is delegated
to the executive Directors and the senior management, who are required
to report back to the Board. All the members of the Board have separate
and independent access to the senior management, and are provided
with full and timely information about the conduct of the business
and development of the Company, including monthly reports and
recommendations on significant matters.

The Board has delegated some of its functions to the committees under
the Board, and will seek independent and professional advices from them
in respect of related matters.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Company and to discuss future strategy. In 2021, the

AIBATIOREFEEE  NIASESR Company held 10 Board meetings, and the attendance record of each
ZECFHEEFERNDFLE Director at the board meetings in 2021 is set out below:
BatmE BEARHEE
= FHERY SEWRB ()
Attendance in Person/ Attendance by Proxy/
Directors Number of Meetings Number of Meetings (Note7)
RiTES
Executive Directors
BFHEE(EER) 8/8 2/2
Mr. LUO Yuguang (Chairman)
MWE— 54 (BIEF R RAFLTE) 5/5 0/0
RZZE=—F+A=THED)
Mr. HAYASHI Shuichi (Vice Chairman and General Manager)
(resigned on 30 July 2021)
L HBIRBEE (FIEFRRAELHE) 5/5 0/0
RZZB_—F+tHA=1THEZD
Mr. YASUTA Tatsuya (Vice Chairman and General Manager)
(appointed on 30 July 2021)
AEE—REdE (R —F+A=THEHI) 3/3 2/2
Mr. MAEGAKI Keiichiro (resigned on 30 July 2021)
EEEB-EER_ZE_—FtA=THEZD 4/4 ”n
Mr. MASUDA Yoichi (appointed on 30 July 2021)
ER A (RZE—FtA=+RHED) 3/3 2/2
Mr. ADACHI Katsumi (resigned on 30 July 2021)
NAREAFEERZZE_—FtA=THEZE) 4/4 171
Mr. YAGI Naoto (appointed on 30 July 2021)
FERLE 9/9 11
Mr. LI Juxing
RINE A 9/9 171
Mr. XU Song
FINREE 9/9 171
Mr. LI Xiaodong
BIUARTEE
Independent Non-executive Directors
b 10/10 0/0
Mr. LONG Tao
RANIFAE 717 3/3
Mr. SONG Xiaojiang
2 - REE 8/8 2/2
Mr. LIU Erh Fei
BIRREE 10/10 0/0
Mr. LIU Tianni

B2 /3E MM AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

49



50

TEERHRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Bt 1. REARRNARNERE-—BT=
G EREEARTELFEEESS
@ AEERREMERERR AL
FEEEE® -

2. MAME—EL - BIEE—MEL -
FlE C A REERT - ARAREIT
TEREFEEEH -

HEFeeR L EESEMNERFTHERE
AARMERERFFEPHRE  FEEH
DIRARHA R P B SR - FERENFF
EHE -FIBEFEV1ARAMBNEMBT
HRTHESSSHE  TARSHRIWER
JINGHAE - BAEHRTHESE AN
BRELREEENMHONEIIRFEREEE
F-EFENMESRCHEIARRNWER
B AMHEEEH -

EXGNEZFBEERMT £ - RKEX
HAibfAR -

LFIHE

ERAEERKEN LA _T-NEFAA=T
BE—AAOFEA - +\BDHIEZERT
BEBARMERTBEHARME - THE
ERARFERES - HERR B BEER
% WHARRNHEEEEIRH -

RESRERB BRI R ESRET
(RRREREZER) 2ERABA - URFP
BREATA - BRERESFHFASER
RETETEM - BE -+ EFRAREEM
B8 REETREZRBE LT ARNWE -
HARKLEAFFARFER  RAANERS
REZERERGEENHER - ARAIAE
EOBEARARRTEAEHEARMEE RS
o

ERAERKENRERARAN T _—F
FEEX TR+ R/ FEHBERE -

3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

Notes: 1. Pursuant to Article 103 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, where a Director is unable to attend the board
meetings due to certain cause, he may in writing appoint other
Director to attend the board meetings on his/her behalf.

2. The Company has convened 5 board meetings prior to the

resignation of Mr. HAYASHI Shuichi, Mr. MAEGAKI Keiichiro
and Mr. ADACHI Katsumi.

At the board meetings, the Board reviewed significant matters including
the Company’s annual and interim financial statements, annual budget,
proposals for final and interim dividends, annual report and interim report.
At least 14 days' notice is given to all directors for all regular board
meetings and all directors are given the opportunity to include matters for
discussion in the agenda. The agenda and board papers for each meeting
are sent to all directors at least 3 days in advance of every regular board
meeting. All minutes of the board meetings are kept by the company
secretary and are available to all directors for inspection.

There is no material financial, business, family, or other relationship
between any two members of the Board.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LEI Bin and Mr. TUNG Tat Chiu Michael were appointed as company
secretaries for PRC and Hong Kong affairs respectively on 30 May 2019
and 28 April 1994. Mr. LEI Bin is a full-time employee of the Company,
and works as a chief financial officer of the Company. He is familiar with
the daily routine of the Company.

Mr. TUNG Tat Chiu Michael is a practicing lawyer in Hong Kong and
the senior partner of Tung & Co., the Hong Kong legal adviser of the
Company, and a China Appointed Attesting officer. He holds a B.A.
degree in law and accounting from the University of Manchester, the
United Kingdom. He has over 20 years of experience as a practicing
lawyer in Hong Kong. Mr. TUNG is also the company secretary of a
number of companies listed in Hong Kong. Although Mr. TUNG is not an
employee of the Company, he has been appointed by the Board to advise
on legal and governance-related issues. The primary corporate contact
person of the Company is Mr. LEI Bin, the company secretary for the
PRC affairs.

As confirmed respectively by Mr. LEI Bin and Mr. TUNG Tat Chiu
Michael, they had taken the relevant professional trainings for no less
than 15 hours during the year of 2021.
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CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER

Mr. LUO Yuguang and Mr. HAYASHI Shuichi (resigned on 30 July 2021)
and YASUTA Tatsuya (appointed on 30 July 2021) hold the positions of
Chairman of the Board and General Manager respectively, which are two
clearly separate positions.

The Chairman is responsible for leading, and overseeing the operations of
the Board, effectively planning the board meetings and ensuring that the
Board is acting in the best interests of the Company. The Chairman shall
proactively encourage directors to fully participate in the Board's affairs
and make contribution to the functions of the Board. The Board, under
the Chairman’s leadership, has adopted good corporate governance
practices and procedures and has taken appropriate steps to maintain
effective communication with the shareholders.

The General Manager is responsible for managing the business of the
Company, as well as formulating and implementing the Company's
policies and is answerable to the Board in relation to the overall
management of the Company. The General Manager of the Company
works in close association with other executive directors and the
administration team of each core business division, ensuring the funding
requirements of the business of the Company are sufficiently met and
at the same time closely monitors the operation and financial results of
the Company according to business plans and budgets, and advises the
Board on matters in relation to the Company’s development. The General
Manager of the Company is required to keep close communication
with the Chairman and all directors to keep them fully informed of all
substantive matters relating to the Company’s business development,
and is also responsible for building and maintaining a highly efficient
administrative support team to support him to discharge the assigned
duties in this position.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company's operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities
under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Directors' training is an ongoing process. During the year, directors
are provided with monthly updates on the Company's performance,
position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each director
to discharge their duties. In addition, all directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company updates directors on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
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According to the records provided by the directors, a summary of the
trainings received by the directors for the year ended 31 December 2021

is as follows:

EE EalxEE
Directors Types of Training
RiTESE
Executive Directors
BFHEE(EER) AC
Mr. LUO Yuguang (Chairman)
MWE— k& (BIEFRREHFE) R_E-_—F+A=THET) C
Mr. HAYASHI Shuichi (Vice Chairman and General Manager)

(resigned on 30 July 2021)
THRM L (GIEFRRGEE) R_E_—FtA=THEZD) C
Mr. YASUTA Tatsuya (Vice Chairman and General Manager)

(appointed on 30 July 2021)
AEE—RAER T —FtA=+H&HD) C
Mr. MAEGAKI Keiichiro (resigned on 30 July 2021)
ARG TER_E-—FtA=1THEZD C
Mr. MASUDA Yoichi (appointed on 30 July 2021)
FEmctE(R_E—FEA=+HEHD C
Mr. ADACHI Katsumi (resigned on 30 July 2021)
SREAFERZZE_—FLA=THEZD C
Mr. YAGI Naoto (appointed on 30 July 2021)
FEELAE A,C
Mr. LI Juxing
TRINSEAE C
Mr. XU Song
FNRESE C
Mr. LI Xiaodong
WIERTESF
Independent Non-executive Directors
EELAE A,C
Mr. LONG Tao
RINIERAE AC
Mr. SONG Xiaojiang
BI=FRAEE A,C
Mr. LIU Erh Fei
BIRREHE A
Mr. LIU Tianni
et - Notes:
A. EEENE R ST E R, HRE - A.  Attending briefing sessions and/or seminars and/or forums.
B. E%ﬁ%)\ gk E R RwmiE EERE B.  Making speeches at briefing sessions and/or seminars and/or forums.
C. BIEARAAH —MRER FERE - LW C. Reading seminar materials or magazines and updates relating to

RAKEMEREERERNEROAT S

R SRR R E AR -
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economy, general business, directors’ responsibilities and the
Listing Rules or the latest development of other applicable regulatory
requirements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Three committees have been set up by the Board, namely, the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Audit Committee. The Board is responsible for discharging corporate
governance functions as set forth in the Corporate Governance Code.
Sufficient resources are provided to enable the board committees to
undertake their specific roles.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established its nomination committee on 26 March 2012
with the terms of reference. The nomination committee is comprised of
four independent non-executive Directors (namely Mr. LONG Tao, Mr.
SONG Xiaojiang, Mr. LIU Tianni and Mr. LIU Erh Fei) and one executive
director (namely Mr. LUO Yuguang). Mr. LUO Yuguang, an executive
Director, serves as the chairman of the nomination committee, and
is responsible for the nomination of the Directors. The committee is
delegated by the Board to formulate the policies for the nomination of
Directors and establish the procedures for the nomination of Directors
and the standards for the selection and recommendation of Directors. It is
also responsible for the review of the structure, size and composition of
the Board and the assessment of the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors. Directors shall be elected at the shareholders’
general meeting for a term of three years. Upon expiry of the term, a
Director shall be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, all Directors are
appointed for a specific term.

The nomination committee held two meetings in 2021. It reviewed
the structure, number and composition of the Board, assessed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors, and made
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors.
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The attendance record of the members of the nomination committee at
the meetings held in 2021 is set out below:

HEE FRRAB

Attendance/Number of Meetings

BITESE
Executive Director
BFENEE

Mr. LUO Yuguang

WIERTESE

Independent Non-executive Directors
b

Mr. LONG Tao

RNIHEE

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang

B Rt

Mr. LIU Erh Fei

BIXREE

Mr. LIU Tianni

REZBEHHN LAEARHEREENHK
% ERBEEFEXNEZTICBRNORE
BBTFREB(BREEARKEA - BRIEAMN
REASBESINNTS L BEZNESENES
ANE - EHERZABERENFAER  RBE2Z
Bl a s ey ETERNE - FHERTR
SEEEBE BEERRET  AELR K
BE - BYM - EBEAARFRRKERRE
EREHN LR RENETRERBE - )
REFENRFEBSTHE - FHETRIE
REZBENZERRFEEENESSEL
HBER -

FHEARS

RARERZBEBRFMOA - +HRLT H
ZEg -FMHEESHARTEBELIFH
TEERIAREBEL  RNTEE - 8=
REERFRERE) N —BRTEFET K
STV - HFHZEESTFEAR/ NI LR
fF o
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2/2

2/2
2/2
2/2

2/2

After discussing and understanding the demand for filling the vacancy for
directorship of the Company while balancing the board diversity policy,
the nomination committee identifies appropriate candidates for directors
through various channels (including in the Group, through the nomination
of shareholders and in the market out of the Group). After obtaining
the approval from the candidate on the nomination, the nomination
committee will assess his qualifications, academic degree, professional
ethics, relevant experience, skill, independence and whether he can
coordinate with the future development plan of the Company, devote
time and efforts in performing his duties and responsibilities as well as
the current structure of the board. The nomination committee will make
recommendations to the board on the appointment of a new director
after the completion of the assessment.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established its remuneration committee on 20 April
2006. The remuneration committee is comprised of four independent
non-executive Directors (namely Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. SONG Xiaojiang,
Mr. LIU Erh Fei and Mr. LIU Tianni) and one executive Director (namely
Mr. LUO Yuguang). The remuneration committee is chaired by Mr. SONG
Xiaojiang.



JJ:%E-/D#&I:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

FHZEeNRETERR  (RARAE
%&%,ﬁ& BEABMREHMECR RS &
AR SL 1T R T B 7 BA RO RE Fr I RT3 B ECR
MESFRLEE (b Iﬁi%‘\ﬁﬁpﬁi%
Jrt R B R ARG RAUEE IR B HINEE
CNEEZEBRETCENNMTEERSRE
BABMHFHGS  SiMEESE: 1I/”3|J$?L
TEERSREBAENEHEHGTE  (ZE
RN RIS AT EVER B ~ ZB1S A0 R ] S B A
REBREMBANRBESE  (e) iR kit
ERBITEE RS ﬁ&aﬁ)\%ﬁ%ﬁ%@%‘kﬂi
H‘ﬂzf%‘k?&ﬂﬁﬁfiﬁé’]@ffa LME%EZ:EEE!
S WG B BARBREASGR B0
BIFARNFERE - TEBRZ © (IR ﬂ‘&?tt/&l
EXTRAEMBEIBRLEMESIIS N
RRERY - NERZS LIRS ORR B
ERBEEANER 2 FERENEAEE
2R (g JRLIFRITESNHMMESTSRL
fe=3

ARFERA—BAEESEEERNTES
KR EBRABNHMTEMNEN -

HE —F+_A=+—HIEFE &
EIEAQZ%M%ES\J&DT :

FENE B (AR
Remuneration Bands (RMB)

The main duties of the remuneration committee shall be: (a) to make
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for the
remuneration of all directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy; (b) to review and approve the management's
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals
and objectives; (c) (i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management; or (ii) to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management; (d) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the group; (e) to review and approve the compensation
payable to executive Directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of their office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent
with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive; (f) to
review and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or
removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent
with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and
(g9) to make recommendations to the board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors.

The Company has adopted a model to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration package of individual executive Directors and
senior management.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for
the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

0%250,000
250,001 £360,000

Hiat . BRPARESRR
EUIMYER -

REBABTVEEENE

A®

Number of persons

0 to 250,000 7
250,001 to 360,000 1

Note: The members of the senior management disclosed above refer to
those employees other than directors and supervisors.

B2 /3E MM AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

55



56

TEERHRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

FHESER T —FRITTINGH o
BIYFNTEENFMREESRDEZS N
BERRITES ReREBRABRTEHIFEM
BERgRLER  TIAFMZEEREN
T —FHESRNLFELE

154"}

Members

The remuneration committee held three meetings in 2021. It made
recommendations to the Board on the remunerations of the independent
non-executive directors and the specific remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management. The attendance
record of the members of the remuneration committee at the meetings
held in 2021 is set out below:

HEE FRRB

Attendance/Number of Meetings

BITES
Executive Director
BTFREE

Mr. LUO Yuguang

WIERTESE

Independent Non-executive Directors
BEELAE

Mr. LONG Tao

RINIREGFRE)

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang (Chairman)

2l REE

Mr. LIU Erh Fei

BIRR LA

Mr. LIU Tianni

FREAE

ARFER EMRAIKIBZZ E@WATHE
BHEHE BRZEenIBFNITES
AP - P R SRR TR R R
BRI RMER - EREEGHR/INI LR
FEXE - Rt E A RIAEBEL - BI-RE
ERBIRERE -

ERZEeNBEHESRREERRERI
B HE  EBARRAMEAFHERE
i - BERARRNMEERRERE  BEX
RAINEGIE - BENRPREIMNEERS 2
HAE -
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3/3

3/3
3/3
3/3

3/3

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with specific terms
of reference in accordance with the Listing Rules. The audit committee
is comprised of four independent non-executive Directors, who possess
appropriate commercial and financial skills and experience to understand
financial statements. The audit committee is chaired by Mr. SONG
Xiaojiang and other members are Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. LIU Erh Fei and Mr.
LIU Tianni.

The terms of reference of the audit committee include the duties to
recommend the engagement and replacement of external audit firms,
oversee the Company’s internal auditing system and implementation,
verify the Company’s financial information and disclosure, examine
the Company’s internal control system, and take charge and act as a
communication channel between internal and external auditors.
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The audit committee held two meetings in 2021. It reviewed the final
results for 2020 and the interim results for 2021. The attendance record
of the members of the audit committee at the meetings in 2021 is set
out below:

R HESE FHERE
Members Attendance/Number of Meetings
WIAFRITES

Independent Non-executive Directors

BEEEE 2/2
Mr. LONG Tao

KRNI E(FE) 2/2
Mr. SONG Xiaojiang (Chairman)

Bl Rt 2/2
Mr. LIU Erh Fei

ZIRGTEE 2/2
Mr. LIU Tianni

EEQREE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

EFgN B —F=AZ T NERBEEE
AT SFRANEXD 3NEFENEACEE
RRENBEREEAEFTERITARE AR
BENEFRESE  ZRESEeRHIE RS
AARFNEEEBRRLER  TREEE
REEE R REREENFIREREARN
B RFEEERR R RERARREE
TERMEERESENBREER ¢ HIE
oat REERE R REFRTER RE R T
(WA) : R AR mE T (eEERTADH
BARE(RRERRE) ROEKE -

The Board adopted the Terms of Reference for Corporate Governance
set out in Code D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Code as the terms
of reference for the Board to perform their duties in relation to corporate
governance on 26 March 2012, which include developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
making recommendations to the Board; reviewing and monitoring the
training and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management; reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) for the Company’s employees and directors;
and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During 2021, the Board has performed the corporate governance function
as mentioned above.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the ultimate responsibility in overseeing the operation of
all business units under the Company’'s management. It shall appoint
suitable qualified personnel to serve on the boards of all subsidiaries
operating in key business areas, attending their board meetings to
oversee the operations of these companies. The management in each
business division is accountable for the operations and performance of
the business within its area of responsibility.

The Company’s management has implemented a system of internal
control to provide reasonable assurance that the Group’'s assets are
safeguarded, proper accounting records are maintained, applicable laws
and regulations are complied with, reliable financial information are
provided for the Company’'s management for publication purposes and
investment and business risks affecting the Group are identified and
properly managed.

The Board is responsible to ensure a sound and effective risk
management and internal control system to safeguard investments of
Shareholders and assets of the Group and provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against the risks of material misstatement or loss,
and to manage but not eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives.

The Board shall review the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries at least once every
year. The scope of a review includes financial control, operation control,
compliance control and risks management functions. The Board will also
consider the adequacy of resources, staff qualification and experience,
training programs and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function. As at 25 March 2022, the Board has completed the
aforementioned review for 2021 and the Board is of the view that the
Company'’s risk management and internal control systems can properly
and effectively safeguard the investments of the Shareholders and the
assets of the Group.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of its
obligations under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the Listing Rules and has established the inside information disclosure
policy with close regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” issued by the Securities and Futures Commission.



JL%E/EI#&E

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EFRESESTXS

ARFEHRMN ETRAMEF#z LA
ERRTESRZINRETA(RE —rﬁ“JJM’E
REZEREEETEFRHNIRTTA KA
ERESNEFFELBESHR  IEESEK
EERAN T —FEHREE T2 ETE
2T RIFTARERRE -

EEw

ARFEESHMBESAN - EhakERERA
REENEE—RERELL) BBRTIAE
HENEE—2ONEBLL) EFETRH
%Eﬂﬁiﬁf\:f NERA=THEHE - %8B
UERZER - R_T-_—FERN - NRAEE
ﬁ‘@iﬂﬁ?ﬁ*ﬂﬁé RETER - AABME
THRZEEZ - BEESSN TIFFIBIINSE
BAZEEGHSE

EEER_T_—FR{TT3REHE  TIA
EREgN T —FHESINHELE

EX

Supervisors

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors and supervisors. After specific enquiry with
all the Directors and supervisors of the Company, all Directors and
supervisors of the Company confirmed that they have completely
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout 2021.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The supervisory committee is comprised of two members, one of whom
is a representative of the Shareholders (namely Ms. MIN Qing) and one
of whom is the representative of the staff and workers (namely Ms.
PU Qing (&ME)). Mr. GUAN Jinming, the chairman of the Supervisory
Committee, resigned on 30 May 2018 and caused a temporary vacancy
for the position. In 2021, the supervisors of the Company exercised
their right of supervision in accordance with the laws to protect the
legal interests of the shareholders, the Company and the employees.
The details of the work of the Supervisory Committee are set out in the
Supervisory Committee's Report in this annual report.

The Supervisory Committee held three meetings in 2021. The attendance
record of the members of the Supervisory Committee at the meetings in
2021 is set out below:

HEE FRRE

Attendance/Number of Meetings

BRARHEHESR
Representatives of the Shareholders

REZ Lt
Ms. MIN Qing

RIAKKRHENES
Representative of the staff and workers

FKEZT(MR_FT_—F+-A+ARED

3/3

2/2

Ms. ZHANG Yongnlng (resigned on 15 December 2021)

LT T —F+-A+HARED

Ms. PU Qing (appointed on 15 December 2021)

mn
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The external auditors currently appointed by the Company are the
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP
Chongging Branch and Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as its PRC and
international auditors respectively. They were not engaged to perform
non-audit work in order to maintain their independence. The work that the
external auditors are engaged to perform must bring clear benefits and
value-added effects to the Company, and will not cause adverse effect
on the independence or independent standing of their audit function. The
remuneration of the auditor is disclosed in the financial statements.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

With the assistance of the accounting department, the Board is
responsible for preparing the financial statements for each financial year
and ensuring that, in preparing such financial statements, appropriate
accounting policies are adopted and applied and the PRC accounting
standards and systems and International Financial Reporting Standards
are observed, to give a true and fair view of the financial position and
operating results of the Company. The statement of the auditor about
their responsibilities on the Group's financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor's Report on pages 64 to 69.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS

After the announcement of the Company’s interim and annual financial
results, the Company has proactively arranged for briefing meetings for
people from the investment community at regular intervals, using the
opportunity to promote investor relations and two-way communication.
The Company, through the investor relations manager, responds to the
information requests and inquiries from the investment community.
The Company also publishes information such as the Company's
announcements and circulars on its website (www.gingling.com.cn)
in a timely manner under the requirements of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

The Company encourages shareholders to attend the annual general
meeting at which the Chairman and directors will answer questions
about the Company’s business raised by shareholders. The Company
distributes annual and interim reports to shareholders in a timely manner
for their inspection.
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RAGWLLEENT attendance record of directors at the general meetings is set out below:
1 HEE BERARRE
Directors Attendance/Number of Meetings
BITES
Executive Directors
BFHEE(EER) 1/2
Mr. LUO Yuguang (Chairman)
WE—SE (FIEFRREFE) N_E_—F+tA=+HED) 1/2
Mr. HAYASHI Shuichi (Vice Chairman and General Manager)

(resigned on 30 July 2021)
ZHRM(GIEFRRGFE) RS _—FtA=1THEZD) 0/0
Mr. YASUTA Tatsuya (Vice Chairman and General Manager)

(appointed on 30 July 2021)
AEE—RAER T —FEtA=1THED 0/2
Mr. MAEGAKI Keiichiro (resigned on 30 July 2021)
EEE—EER_ZE_—F+-A=THEZD 0/0
Mr. MASUDA Yoichi (appointed on 30 July 2021)
flERCAER-E-—FEA=1+HED 0/2
Mr. ADACHI Katsumi (resigned on 30 July 2021)
SREAFERZZZ—FEA=THEZD 0/0
Mr. YAGI Naoto (appointed on 30 July 2021)
ZEELAE 1/2
Mr. LI Juxing
TRINSEA 2/2
Mr. XU Song
TR S 2/2
Mr. LI Xiaodong
BIERTESE
Independent Non-executive Directors
v 2/2
Mr. LONG Tao
RNIHEE 0/2
Mr. SONG Xiaojiang
Bl —RxeE 2/2
Mr. LIU Erh Fei
ZIREE 2/2
Mr. LIU Tianni
BEEXH CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

RAFEN - IEEARARNEEXXMHEFT During the year, the Company did not make any amendment to its

sy . .
wE) o constitutional documents.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders of the
Company:

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

Pursuant to Article 80 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
two or more shareholders who hold an aggregate of 10% or more
of the shares carrying voting rights at the meeting proposed to be
held may, sign one or several written requisition in the same form
requesting the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting of
shareholders or a class meeting of shareholders, specifying the objects
of the meeting. Upon the receipt of the aforesaid written request(s),
the Board shall convene an extraordinary general meeting or a class
meeting of Shareholders as soon as possible. The number of the shares
held as aforesaid shall be calculated based on these shares held by the
Shareholders as at the date of the written requisition.

Where the Board fails to give a notice convening the meeting within
thirty days upon the receipt of the aforesaid written requisition, the
requisitionists may themselves convene a meeting, within four months
upon the receipt of the said requisition by the Board. A meeting convene
by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by the Board.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of
the failure of the Board duly convene a meeting, shall be borne by the
Company and be deducted from the amounts payable by the Company to
such directors who were in default.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at shareholders’ general
meetings by shareholders

The content of a proposal shall be a matter that should be determined
by shareholders’ general meeting, which shall have definite topics to be
discussed and specific matters for resolution and shall be in line with the
laws and administrative regulations.

Shareholders that independently or collectively hold more than 3% of
shares in the Company may make a temporary proposal and submit
it to the convener(s) in written form ten days prior to a shareholders’
general meeting. The convener(s) shall give a supplementary notice of
shareholders’ general meeting to announce the content of the temporary
proposal within two days upon receipt of the proposal.

Except as provided in the preceding paragraph, after sending out a notice
of shareholders’ general meeting, the convener(s) shall not make any
amendments to the proposals included in the notice or add any new
proposals.
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The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
director is made available in the website of the Company.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board of the Company in writing through Mr. LEI Bin, the company
secretary, whose contact details are as follows:

Mr. LEI Bin

Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

1 Xiexing Cun, Zhongliangshan, Jiulongpo District, Chongging,
the People's Republic of China

E-mail: hk1122@qingling.com.cn

Tel: (86) 23-65265671

Fax: (86) 23-68830397

The company secretary shall forward the shareholders’ enquiries and
concerns to the Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company,
where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’ questions.

In 2022, the Company will continue to dedicate efforts into enhancing the
standard of its corporate governance according to the ongoing regulatory
changes, development trend of the Company, and feedback opinions
from shareholders, ensuring a stable and healthy growth for the Company
while adding value to shareholders.

The Board of Directors
LEI Bin

Company Secretary

Chongaing, the PRC
25 March 2022
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF QINGLING MOTORS CO., LTD.
(a Sino-foreign joint venture joint stock limited company incorporated in
the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Qingling
Motors Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 70 to 184 which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“"HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor's Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

ESTIMATED WRITE-DOWN OF INVENTORIES

We identified the estimated write-down of inventories as a key audit
matter due to the management judgment required in the estimation
of the net realisable value, which is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

As disclosed in notes 4 and 25 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group had inventories of RMB1,035,550,000 (net of write-down for
inventories of RMB81,887,000) as at 31 December 2021. In determining
the net realisable value, the management of the Group considers the
historical selling prices of similar products, the estimated costs of
completion, the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, the current
market conditions, forecast usage and sales volume of similar products.

Our procedures in relation to the write-down of inventories included:

° Obtaining an understanding of the Group's forecast usage, selling
prices, costs of completion, costs necessary to make the sale, and
sales volume of inventories which are used by the management of
the Group in the estimation of the net realisable value;

° Considering the selling prices and sales volume of inventories
during the year ended 31 December 2021 and subsequent to the
year end, on a sample basis, and comparing this information with
the Group's expected selling prices and sales volume of inventories
at year-end date;

° Challenging the assumptions of determining the estimated selling
prices and sales volume of forecast sales, on a sample basis, with
reference to the current market conditions and historical selling
prices and sales volume of similar products; and

° Comparing the cost of inventories at year-end date, on a sample

basis, with the estimated net realisable value and checking if
adequate write-down of inventories has been made.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.



BB B M HRAIED
RiE

BHMWBER  EYHGEAVBHRREERE T
RPN EEF A RSB EASERRARIG
BERE - WIRREMHEZZBERER
BATERER LABRERMERNZEENR
& o BRULASN - ATV RS TR AR M
7 o R ARARENATHEMEMAL
BESERERER - S ERIBLSKENR
& ETRRERBEEETENETHE
it ER-ERBRRAFAERAREER - 8
ARERIL AT LA R BRFF SR ERRR 51 AR - IR A IRTEH
T PIEE K E AR AL IR A RER B AR B S IRR(E
RERBIERRAELOLERTE - AIAR
EY SRR BRI AT AR K ©

EREE SR EUETEAHBET - T
BRTERAE - RETERREEE - &M
Jn

o BAIMFFEANRAFRBERMERRS
MEBREFEEAHERRALER - &R
SERBITEZ ARSI E LA - P
REDFTRMEENENRE  (FAR
MEROER - ANERFFA Y K&
®ofnE - ERER BRI S0E
BRAESZ £ - FibREEHREKR
FEM S B E AR ER SRR
BEB IR R EARR M BB E A SRR A HY
=B

o EEMEERABEAAIIES - UREHE
EREER  BEMNLFHEEER
ARG AMMEBRERER

o  HEEFMRASHBERMNGEERE
HEFHEE R REN SR -

B Z AR S
Independent Auditor's Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Chen Ping Him.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE_FE-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2% —ERTEF
2021 2020
biaE ARSFT AREFT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
|1} g~ Revenue I5) 4,828,237 5,088,762
HEKR Cost of sales (4,273,893) (4,389,361)
EF Gross profit 554,344 699,401
E A A K Other income and expenses 7 453,790 279,182
A EEREEER TRRERE Impairment losses under expected
(F0BREE ) credit loss model, net of reversal 8 614 (218)
Eﬁﬂﬂ SRIBXRFEE Other gains and losses, net 9 85,653 2,462
788 R SHE R AR Distribution and selling expenses (244,464) (274,624)
ERER Administrative expenses (232,801) (207,003)
HRER Research expenses (269,928) (228,950)
Eﬁﬁfﬁﬁ Finance costs (1,374) (1,589)
AFRAR R Reversal of provision for litigation 40 = 53,633
DIREE D EEE Share of results of associates (5,616) 433
DIEEEDEEE Share of results of joint ventures 4,306 2,427
BRIRBIRFI Profit before tax 10 344,524 325,154
FrEfi it Income tax expense 1M (13,638) (18,692)
FRRFR Profit and total comprehensive
Faeuka income for the year 330,886 306,462
THALREERTIR Profit and total comprehensive
Feaka - income attributable to:
RAEIE=EEB A Owners of the Company 322,080 300,989
EEaliig Non-controlling interests 8,806 5,473
330,886 306,462
BRERZRN Basic earnings per share RMBO0.13 RMBO0.12
17 AR®0413T AR%0.127T

3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R-E-—Ff - A=1+—HIFFZF
At 31 December 2021

—E_—5F —ETF
2021 2020
Hiat AR¥TFIT AR¥TFr
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’'000
EREEE Non-current assets
Y - WE kB Property, plant and equipment 18 1,047,558 953,870
FHEEE Right-of-use assets 19 44,738 81,791
"EME Investment properties 20 19,235 39,382
ﬂﬁ?ﬁ? Intangible assets 21 189,659 228,581
REFE D Interests in associates 22 51,131 33,118
REELEER Interests in joint ventures 23 489,471 487,333
IRAEFI IR & B Deferred tax assets 24 13,939 18,191
TEHATFR Time deposits 27 3,132,775 2,265,640
4,988,506 4,107,906
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 25 1,035,550 841,599
FEWBRR - IEUNEIE & Trade, bills and other receivables and
At FEMGRIE R TR 3K prepayments 26 2,597,025 2,718,860
TH&@%RIE Tax recoverable 11,770 15,591
EHFER Time deposits 27 599,083 2,240,652
RITHER LR S Bank balances and cash 28 1,673,977 1,041,733
5,917,405 6,858,435
meEnafE Current liabilities
JENBRE - BN ZEREMMENFKIE  Trade, bills and other payables 29 2,119,936 2,426,653
HIBEE Tax liabilities 3,050 2,674
aRaE Contract liabilities 30 594,746 372,138
REBAE Refund liabilities 31 89,066 107,091
HEaE Lease liabilities 32 22,816 30,496
2,829,614 2,939,052
mENEERE Net current assets 3,087,791 3,919,383
HEERTEAR Total assets less current liabilities 8,076,297 8,027,289
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RoCE-——Ff+-HA=+—HIFFE
At 31 December 2021

—E_—5 —ERCEEF
2021 2020
bzt ARSFIT AREFT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
B R ks Capital and reserves
&N Share capital 33 2,482,268 2,482,268
PR AR (8 M fE 1 Share premium and reserves 5,257,429 5,183,576
NARE= A AE G Equity attributable to owners of the
Company 7,739,697 7,665,844
FEIERR A Non-controlling interests 327,525 321,581
HaME Total equity 8,067,222 7,987,425
ERBAR Non-current liabilities
HEAE Lease liabilities 32 1,923 31,882
FEIEWA — BT B Deferred income — governments
grants 34 7,152 7,982
9,075 39,864
8,076,297 8,027,289

FIOBEZEFI84B ZERAMBRENZE =
7%

FoA-ThHAESE=SIERRES
B TIIESHEREE

FEE
£ B=x
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are signed on its behalf by:

Li Juxing
DIRECTOR

Li Xiaodong
DIRECTOR

The consolidated financial statements on pages 70 to 184 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 March 2022 and
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE—FE-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

FORHEARK
Attributable to owners of the Company
tERR  HEER
B% BEER WeoWE  OWe  LWE  REEH #it FARNE it
Statutory Discretionary Non-
Share Share  Capital  surplus  surplus  Retained controlling

capital  premium  reserve reserve fund reserve fund profits Total  interests Total
NGB AREFT ARETL AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETR
VB0 RMBOO  AMBOA)  RMBUOO  AMBOAD  RMBUOO  AMBUAD  AMBUO - AMBUMD
o W W
Note) ~ fhote /4] frote 75

R-E-5E-A-H At 1 January 2020 2080268 1764905 571200 117689 2367 1764402 7762018 318832 8,080,850
EmERRGALLE Profitand total comprehensive income for the year s s s s - 0%9 0% 543 068
EEAR Appropiation for the year 5 5 - B ] s s s
ERARTH_E-NERERE A1) 2019 inal dividends recognised and paid (a0t 16/ - - - - - 3706 (397,163 S A ]
MAFERRERNRE Dividends paid to non-controling interests S S = = = . -y R
R-E-TE+-A=1-H At 31 December 2020 2482268 1764905 571200 1204923 2347 1640201 7665844 321581 7987425
EmEiRsa s Profitand total comprehensive income for the year s s = = - 3080 M08 88l 330886
Egan Appropriation for the year - - - 3en - ATy = = e
BEARRN-Z_RERERE M) 2020 finel dvidends recognised and pad fote 16/ - - - - - s (s - )
MAHERRE RS Dividends paid to non-controling nterests s - - - - - 17|
M E-E+-A=1-A At 31 December 2021 2080268 1764905 571200 1236497 2367 1682480 7739697 307526 8067202
KiaF - Note:

BRARNBEeEEER -ZARYS72,206,0007T(=
T-TH : AR¥572,206,0007T)5E - IEE
BETERMAERBEARAQREXLAIAERA
HEEARARTELRER]  DAEBHKRE
BRARRERASEARAABAXRRARNEE
FEAEAE—NMNANEEEAN—ID  LBEEAA
RSB AT 3$471,500,000,000 M E A R
1,500,000,0007C 2 B H Z 5 ©

The capital reserve mainly includes an amount of RMB572,206,000 (2020:
RMB572,206,000) which represents the excess of the value of the net assets
immediately before the establishment of the Company injected into the
Company by E#%/55E (£E)BR A A("Qingling Group” - ultimate holding
company of the Group) and E#: /78 ABR A Flas part of the reorganisation in
1994 which was approved by the State Administration of State-owned Assets,
over the nominal value of 1,500,000,000 shares issued upon establishment of
the Company of RMB1,500,000,000.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE_FE-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

B k2
2021 2020
ARBFT AREFT
RMB000 AMB'000
BEEH Operating activities
BRBE AT AR Profit before tax 344,524 325,154
EfERE Adjustments for:
BTBRCA Finance costs 1,374 1,589
FIEMA Interest income (178,357) (207,692
PEHELEREE Share of results of associates 5,616 (433)
/VE RERERE Share of results of joint ventures (4,306) (2,427)
BRI Government grants recognised (180,830) (717)
Hit UG E R EERE (R [Reversal of) impairment losses on other receivables (74) %
V W R EEE(RR) [Reversal of) impairment losses on trade receivables (540) 122
HFEMHFE Write-down of inventories, net 16,677 (9,389)
nE - BELRRENE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 45,858 36,183
TRESENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 20,660 32,292
B EEEH Amortisation of intangible assets 38,922 38,646
REMENE Depreciation of investment properties 2,159 2,466
HERBME  WEFE Gain on disposal of an investment property, net (79,566) =
HEMERREERWR)FE Loss (gain) on disposal of property and equipment, net 6,454 (699)
L EEEE Net foreign exchange loss 690 1,352
BEACHRACERER Operating cash flows before movements in working
capital 39,261 216,543
FEEM Increase in inventories (210,628) (198,914)
FENER - FEMZE RE MR FUE R Decrease (increase) in trade, bills and other receivables
TR FER A () and prepayments 303,320 (419,177)
RBRHIRITERR D Decrease in restricted bank balances s 137,633
ERRR - ENREREMEATORD)EMN (Decrease) increase in trade, bills and other payables (319,119) 188,175
AHBEEMRD) Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities 222,608 (65,885)
U&’Ef (R)Em (Decrease) increase in refund liabilities (18,025) 23,480
FRBERD Decrease in provision for litigation - (48,633)
BEEBREMR)RS Cash generated from (used in) operations 17,417 (166,778)
BN FERTE Income taxes paid (5,189) (27,031)
BELEBREFRARLPE Net cash from (used in) operating activities 12,228 (193,809)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE—FE-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

—E--% —ECFE
2021 2020
ARBFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB 000
REEH Investing activities
BAEHBER Placement of time deposits (1,921,000) (5,187,000)
REEHER Withdrawal of time deposits 2,656,000 4,963,857
BENE  BEREEUREVEE Purchases of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets (138,597) (179,004)
WEmE-FHEERrENRE Dividends received from a joint venture 2,168 5,347
R—EgErE RE Investment in an associate (24,500) (24,500)
FBWA Interest received 217,791 178,980
HENE  BERRXERGHE Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4,999 1,527
HE—RIEEMEMBTE Proceeds on disposal of an investment property 97,554 =
BAEREN E”ﬂ(ﬂ(!ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ Government grants received related to assets =
REEBRBFRA RSP Net cash from (used in) investing activities 894,415 (240,788)
MEEH Financing activities
BERRE Dividends paid (248,227) (397,163)
EN—ERBLRRFEERRERE Dividends paid to a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary (2,862) (2,724)
MEREEN Repayments of lease liabilities (21,246) (30,165)
IRMSER Payments of interest expense (1,374) (1,589)
MEEEMARLIH Net cash used in financing activities (273,709) (431,641
ReRFEERMEMED)PHE Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 632,934 (866,238)
R—B—AZRLREEEEN Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 1,041,733 1,909,323
EREBmTE Effects of foreign exchange rate changes (690) (1,352)
R+=R=+—-AZRERALERN Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December,
DRTHEBRAL represented by bank balances and cash 1,673,977 1,041,733
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Qingling Motors Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is a sino-foreign joint venture
joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company is 1 Xiexing Cun,
Zhongliangshan, Jiulongpo District, Chongqing, the PRC. The principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are the
production and sale of Isuzu light-duty trucks, pick-up trucks, medium and
heavy-duty trucks and automobile parts, accessories and others.

The parent and ultimate holding company of the Company is Qingling
Group (a state-owned enterprise established in Chongging, the PRC).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB")
which is also the functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2021 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and Phase 2
HKFRS 16

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of the IFRS
Interpretations Committee of the International Accounting Standards
Board issued in June 2021 which clarified the costs an entity should
include as “estimated costs necessary to make the sale” when
determining the net realisable value of inventories.

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group's financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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For z‘he year ended 31 December 2021

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

573

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments®

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?*

Covid-19- Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021"

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Definition of Accounting Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction®

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020?
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements, information is considered material
if such information is reasonably expected to influence decisions made by
primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis at the end of each reporting period, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.



3. RAEMEERNRREERE
EE T ER (1)

3.1 GEMBHROENELEG)

AABEREMS2EE L BEERETH
EFRSTHEBREMBEBRHERIEE AR
P HENETS - EmZERTERBRING
RERFAEAMEERMEL AR - fﬁ”rﬁ
EXRENAABER AREZEEMS2HE
2EHERANEESA BT EEREEE
BOBEBES - EAGAUBRRTAER
HRBEHN DA BEDELNER ETARE - 8
BREMBHRELNE2RIARD MR IBE RN
MBS - BRPBREE 16578
BANEEIRS  UREAREBEHRUEL
FERREENFAEDIN - BESERFE2R
[TFEIFHR R FERT LG ERE6H
[EEREIFHNEREBERIN -

AN R BHEMS - AR BEFERER
REEFENBABBIBERREERAAEE
quEE’ﬁaJ)\%w‘“ﬂ/\E ENERREESEAE

— o BoBHE=R - FBEWAT
s FRBABBEEEBNEAMTN
RSHHEREEH A BENEREM S Z R

BECRERAR)

s FE_RBABEBENEENBEBEERX
F'EH%@T%E/T\Z%J)\%M*(%—%%W”?
FEHVRERRIN)

s FERBABBEREEXRENTIUEH
R A& -

n‘/-ﬁ 7f ﬁ&#ﬁﬁ Bﬁ ;E

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE—FE-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

B8 /AE D AR A R] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and
its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from the
Group's equity therein, which present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associates and joint
ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets of the
associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group's interests in that
associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate
or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate or joint venture.

B8 /AE D AR A R] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the
interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or
joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation
is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of
goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group's performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or
an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

Revenue from sales of trucks, chassis, automobile parts, accessories
and others are recognised when the control of goods is transferred,
being when the goods are delivered to the customer’s specific location.
A receivable is recognised by the Group when the goods are delivered
to the customer’s specific location as this represents the point in time
at which the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the
passage of time is required before payment is due. The customers have
neither rights of return nor rights to defer or avoid payment for the goods
once they are accepted by the customers.
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3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the Group estimates the
amount of consideration to which it will be entitled using the most likely
amount, which better predicts the amount of consideration to which the
Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included in the
transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that such
an inclusion will not result in a significant revenue reversal in the future
when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the estimated
transaction price (including updating its assessment of whether an
estimate of variable consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully
the circumstances present at the end of the reporting period and the
changes in circumstances during the reporting period.

Warranties

If a customer has the option to purchase a warranty separately, the Group
accounts for the warranty as a separate performance obligation and
allocates a portion of the transaction price to that performance obligation.

If a customer does not have the option to purchase a warranty
separately, the Group accounts for the warranty in accordance with
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets unless
the warranty provides the customer with a service in addition to the
assurance that the product complies with agreed-upon specifications (i.e.
service-type warranties).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B —FFZHA=1—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Refund liabilities

The Group recognises a refund liability if the Group expects to refund
some or all of the consideration received from customers.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a
customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its promise is a
performance obligation to provide the specified goods or services itself
(i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to
be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service before
that good or service is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for the
provision of the specified good or service by another party. In this case,
the Group does not control the specified good or service provided by
another party before that good or service is transferred to the customer.
When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of
any fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for
arranging for the specified goods or services to be provided by the other
party.
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3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will
not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of warehouse that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use assets includes:
° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
less any lease incentive received,;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition
of investment property as a separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position. Right-of-use assets that meet the
definition of investment property are presented within “investment
properties”.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liabilities at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest
accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment
of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the related lease
liabilities is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market rental rates
following a market rent review, in which cases the related lease
liabilities is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the
right to use one or more underlying assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope

and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of the particular contract.
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3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by making
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use assets.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or
operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to
the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not part of the
original terms and conditions are accounted for as lease modifications,
including lease incentives provided through forgiveness or reduction of
rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a new
lease from the effective date of the modification, considering any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease as part of the
lease payments for the new lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE—FE-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that
the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
Such grants are are presented under “other income and expenses”.
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3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans including
state-managed retirement benefit schemes in the PRC are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised
as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave) after deducting any amount already
paid.
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HE—FE-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit before tax because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, and interests in associates
and joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions in
which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable to the
lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes requirements
to the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis.
Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable entity
by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than properties under construction for production
as described below). Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly attributable to bringing
the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of properties
which includes both leasehold land and building elements, the entire
consideration is allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in
the consolidated statement of financial position. When the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease building element and
undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties
are classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets other
than properties under construction and specialised production facilities
and moulds, over their estimated useful lives after taking into account
of their estimated residual values, using the straight-line method.
Specialised production facilities and moulds which can be identified in
relation to specific production processes are depreciated by reference
to the expected production volume of these facilities and moulds after
taking into account of their estimated residual values. The estimated
useful lives, residual values, the expected production volume and the
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.
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3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals.

Investment properties are initially measured at costs, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is
recognised so as to write off the cost of investment properties over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and development
expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project) is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it
will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset;
and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where
no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred.

Subsequent to the initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
investment properties, and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
investment properties carried at cost, intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, investment properties carried at cost, and intangible assets are
estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate assets are
allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or group
of cash-generating units to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit
or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
investment properties, and intangible assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with the
recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount
of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro-rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash- generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the Group must
incur to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is
the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value
of money is material).

Warranties

Provisions for the expected cost of assurance-type warranty obligations
under the relevant contracts with customers for sales of trucks and
chassis are recognised at the date of sale of the relevant products, at the
directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the Group's
obligation.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers
which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All of the Group’s financial assets recognised under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments ("HKFRS 9") are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss ("ECL") model on financial assets (including trade, bills and
other receivables, time deposits, bank balances) which are subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade and bills receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal
to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk,
e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological environment of the debtor that results
in a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE—FE-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on a debt
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the
debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting
date. A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if i) it has
a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse changes
in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to have low
credit risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of ‘investment
grade’ as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.

(ii) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of
default occurs when information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating
that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B —FFZHA=1—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v} Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data and forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for
all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade, bills and other receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and bills payables, refund liabilities and
other payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE—FE-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net amount
presented in the consolidated statement of financial position when, and
only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts; and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Write-down of inventories

Write-down of inventories require the estimation of the net realisable
value, which is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated cost of completion and estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. These estimates are based on the historical
selling prices of similar products, the current market conditions, forecast
usage and sale volume of similar products. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in customer taste or competitor actions in
response to severe consumer product industry cycles. The management
of the Group reassesses these estimates at the end of the reporting
period. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of inventories
is RMB1,035,550,000 (2020: RMB841,599,000), net of write-down for
inventories of RMB81,887,000 (2020: RMB65,210,000).
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision of ECL for trade, bills and other receivables

The Group assesses ECL for the trade, bills and other receivables
individually based on internal credit rating of these debtors. The estimated
loss rates are estimated based on the Group's historical observed
default rates taking into consideration forward-looking information that
is reasonable and supportable available without undue costs or effort. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are reassessed
and changes in the forward-looking information are considered. As at
31 December 2021, the total carrying amount of trade, bills and other
receivables is RMB2,443,910,000 (2020: RMB2,623,987,000), net of total
allowance for credit losses of RMB3,017,000 (2020: RMB3,631,000).

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The information
about the ECL for the Group's trade, bills and other receivables are
disclosed in note 36.
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5. lg& 5. REVENUE
(i) SHAERXAERSHHKS (i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
AEEHWZEIEMIINBREFHE RS « KB - The Group's revenue represents sales of trucks, chassis, automobile
AETH - MR EMELEN NS - B parts, accessories and others to external customers, that are recognised
RE—RHE®ER AEEREXZERER at a point in time. The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue
WA T from its major products:
—E-—%F TECTE
2021 2020
ARETTT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
L b Types of goods
HERAEAS Sales of light-duty trucks 1,097,316 809,591
SHENRE Sales of pick-up trucks 796,354 853,233
HERR RERE Sales of medium and heavy-duty trucks 1,003,879 1,130,088
HERS Sales of chassis 1,630,864 2,008,003
SHEAETH - BHREM Sales of automobile parts, accessories
and others 299,824 287,847
st Total 4,828,237 5,088,762
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5. IR (#8) 5.
() PHEEEAFFEAHHKS W) (i)

REVENUE (CONTINUED)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

TREIDBERABEENRE T O

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts with

AR ¢ customers disclosed in the segment information:
PHRENE RESH
5] RES HEREM
HBRERES BFERES Medium and Automobile
Light-duty Pick-up heavy-duty parts,
trucks trucks trucks accessories #8
and chassis and chassis and chassis and others Consolidated
AERFT ABRTR AEBFT AERFR ABRTT
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
HE-E--FT-A=t-HIEE  Fortheyear ended 31 December 2021
HELHERS Sales of light-duty trucks 1,097,316 = 5 = 1,097,316
HERFE Sales of pick-up trucks 5 796,354 5 = 796,354
HETHRENE Sales of medium and heavy-duty trucks = = 1,003,879 = 1,003,879
HEER Sales of chassis 1,565,206 5,680 50,979 - 1,630,864
HEREDE  PHRER Sales of automobile parts, accessories and others 5 = 5 299,824 299,824
Wi Revenue 2,662,521 802,034 1,063,858 299,824 4828237
HE-E-TET-A=1-HLEE  Forthe year ended 31 December 2020
HEAHERS Sales of light-duty trucks 809,591 = S = 809,591
HERRE Sales of pick-up trucks - 83,233 - - 83,233
HEPHRERE Sales of medium and heavy-duty trucks 5 = 1,130,088 5 1,130,088
HERS Sales of chassis 1,898,194 11,29 98,513 - 2,008,003
HERERH RN Sales of automobile parts, accessories and others - - - 287,847 287,847
s Revenue 2,707,785 854,529 1206601 27847 5,086 762

3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT




5. K&\
li) EFSWNEHEE

AEERBERBHEE R B EHERRET
MELEEPHERSE KR - TETM - E‘B
T R H A (B NHIFES7) - ERE - K&
AEEME - B REAOEN ST - Eﬂ
A EREEE R FIEEMAE - AEERE
BERPEBNRE - EEL - TEZMH - FMHERE
R BB R WS - HREHE T WA
RERE - RL BTN B REAMAE
K AEERBEFEEMERIN - EHOE - &
FHREKEIRE - B8 TETH - 8 REMw
E%/AEH‘MEF@X%FTQ RIZMARRHE 2
MR R AR AR B[R H SR A
$ KR8 - pE RBRBEURITERR, K
RITERNANANR - MAKERBL
RESHEAERE Ty IHE R }’iiﬁﬁ RS
HitpRIBAR =2+ _EARNEES

REAEEORESORT  TPAREIA
RAIXTHPRF - ANEBE R RFHBELRIA
AR KRS BEFGEEERRBNRES
B MHEWERTHR  ASERERER

f& o

RE - RE KR IETRM - B REAME
BN ELRTEEBBE  MEERAEE
mfI & MR RE - Bt - NEEREE
BEHERIEI7THRARER

n‘/-ﬁ 7f ﬁ&#ﬁﬁ Bﬁ ;E

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-F-—F1TA=1T—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with customers

The Group sells trucks, chassis, automobile parts, accessories and
others to customers, including independent dealers and certain related
parties (details are set out in note 37), according to the relevant sales
agreements. Revenues are recognised when control of trucks, chassis,
automobile parts, accessories and others has been transferred, being
when they have been shipped to the customers’ specific locations
based on the quantity of trucks, chassis, automobile parts, accessories
and others received by the customers. No provisions for returns of
trucks, chassis, automobile parts, accessories and others are set out in
the relevant sales agreements, except for replacement due to quality
problems. Payments of transaction price for sales of trucks, chassis,
automobile parts, accessories and others are agreed at the point when
the customers received them. Advance payments in forms of bank
remittance and/or bank bills from independent dealers are normally
required for sales of light-duty trucks, pick-up trucks, medium and heavy
duties trucks. Sales of chassis, automobile parts, accessories and others
to independent dealers and related parties are required to be settled in
three to twelve months according to the relevant sales agreements.

Under the Group's standard contract terms, customers have a right to
receive rebates paid by the Company. The Group uses its accumulated
historical experience to estimate the amount of consideration to which
it will be entitled using the most likely amount. A refund liability is
recognised for sales in which revenue has yet been recognised.

Sales-related warranties associated with trucks, vehicles and chassis
and automobile parts, accessories and others cannot be purchased
separately and they serve as an assurance that the products sold comply
with agreed-upon specifications. Accordingly, the Group accounts for
warranties in accordance with HKAS 37.
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5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

(iii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligation for contracts with customers

The Group had aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated
to remaining performance obligations which are mainly in respect of
sales of trucks, vehicles and chassis that are unsatisfied amounted to
RMB594,746,000 at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB372,138,000).

Based on the information available to the Group at the end of the
reporting period, the directors of the Company expect the transaction
price allocated to the above unsatisfied contracts as at 31 December
2021 and 31 December 2020 will be recognised as revenue in the
following year.

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is engaged in the manufacture and sales of four categories
of products-light-duty trucks and chassis, pick-up trucks and chassis,
medium and heavy-duty trucks and chassis and automobile parts and
accessories and others, and the chief operating decision makers (i.e.
the Company's executive directors) review the segment information by
these categories to allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performance.

Specifically, the Group's reportable segments under HKFRS 8 Operating
Segments are as follows:

Light-duty trucks and

manufacture and sales of light-duty trucks

chassis and chassis

Pick-up trucks and — manufacture and sales of pick-up trucks
chassis and chassis

Medium and heavy-duty — manufacture and sales of medium and
trucks and chassis heavy-duty trucks
and chassis

Automobile parts and — manufacture and sales of automobile parts,

accessories and accessories and others

others
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(i) Segment revenue and results

DEBSD AT

operating and reportable segment:

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

For the year ended 31 December 2021

] RE

5] B+E REXE o6 B

HRE R RES Rt

RES E®  Mediumand  Automobile

Light-duty Pick-up heavy-duty parts and
trucks trucks trucks  accessories 8
and chassis and chassis and chassis and others  Consolidated
ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000
P Segment revenue 2,662,521 802,034 1,063,858 299,824 4,828,231

E+ ] Result
Aar (BB Segment profit loss) a9 (33,100) 14,836 40924 299,857
ShERE Central administration costs (42,778)
BEEEBEE THRERRRER) Impairment losses under ECL model, net of reversal 614
BIBAA Finance costs (1,374)
FEER Research expenses (269,928)
ERBARRR Other income and expenses 273,190
EtfIERELTE Other gains and losses, net 85,653
MR Share of results of associates (5,616)
MeAELEEE Share of results of joint ventures 4,306
el Profit before tax 344,524
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6. SEIBHEE(ME) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(i) SRS ERGE (i) Segment revenue and results (Continued)

HE-_Z-_TFE+-_A=+—RHILEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

Al &
G FFE REHE T
[l R RES REf
REZ EZ  Mediumand Automobile
Light-duty Pick-up heavy-duty parts and
trucks trucks trucks accessories A
and chassis and chassis and chassis and others Consolidated
NREFT NREFT NEEFT NEEFT NEEFT
AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000
DR Segment revenue 2,707,785 864,529 1,228,601 287,847 5,088,762
£ Result
AR (BB Segment profit loss| 226,966 (10,969) (19,832) 63,969 260,134
EhERE Central administration costs (42,360)
BREEBEE THREBRRER) Impaiment losses under ECL model, net of reversal (218)
BBA Finance costs 1,589)
HEER Research expenses (228,950)
EHHARHAR Other income and expenses 279,182
EHAEREXFE Other gains and losses, net 2462
FhAEAE Reversal of provision for ltigation 53,633
PEBELEEE Share of results of associates 433
MhAELERE Share of results of joint ventures 2427
BRARA Profit before tax 325,154
BE TS Fh-_Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—H There have been no inter-segment sales during the year ended 31
IFFERmDEEEE o December 2021 and 2020.
B N 2RO I @I MM sE3H Bt The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments are the
NEFHE pﬁﬁz SHEE o DEEA (BB ER same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3. Segment
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profit (loss) represents the profit earned by (loss incurred from) each
segment without allocation of central administration costs, impairment
losses under ECL model, net of reversal, finance costs, research
expenses, certain other income and expenses, other gains and losses,
net, reversal of provision for litigation, share of results of associates and
share of results of joint ventures. This is the measure reported to the
chief operating decision makers for the purposes of resources allocation
and performance assessment.
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the year ended 31 December 2021

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(ii) Segment assets and liabilities

DRI The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by
reportable and operating segment:

At 31 December 2021

] RE
5] B+E REXE o B
HRE k RES Rt
RES E¥  Medumand  Automobile
Light-duty Pick-up heavy-duty parts and
trucks trucks trucks  accessories 8
and chassis and chassis and chassis and others  Consolidated
ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000
BE Assets
PHEE Segment assets 1,586,178 574,000 1,143,074 379,195 3,682,447
A EREEE Interchangeably used assets between segments
-0% BERR - property, plant and equipment 389,409
-[PRIEAE - right-of-use assets 44,738
-8 - inventories 314,646
&ﬂ%% Investment properties 19,235
MEErEER Interests in associates 51,131
RAELEER Interests in joint ventures 489,471
BIERRRLREHER Bank balances and cash and time deposits 5,405,835
EANAIEE Other unallocated assets 508,999
RBAE Consolidated total assets 10,905,911
gE Liabilities
NEaRE Segment liabilities 532,231 162,432 232141 - 926,804
TNEEAEH - EREEREMENTE Unallocated trade, bils and other payables 1,876,944
TARRERE Unallocated lease liabiiies 2,739
EAUAE AR Other unallocated liabiities 10,202
ABAE Consolidated total liabilties 2,838,689
B8 /AE D AR A R] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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6. HEPEE (| 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(i) SPEERAREGE (i) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)
R-ZE_ZEF+_HA=+—H At 31 December 2020
) i
an FfE kERE e
[l R RE# Rt
REZ EZ  Mediumand Automobile
Light-duty Pick-up heavy-duty parts and
trucks trucks trucks accessories A
and chassis and chassis and chassis and others Consolidated

ARRTE  ARRTL  ARRTL ARRTL ARETI
AUB 000 AUB 000 AUB 000 RUB 000 RUB 000

2E Assets
HHEE Segment assets 1,614,950 597,077 1,351,565 291,921 3855513
AR ARREE Interchangeably used assets between segments
-0%  BERRE - property, plant and equipment 393846
-FREEE - right-of-use assets 81,791
-k% ~ inventories 254,715
&ﬁ%% Investment properties 39,382
rEELEER Interests in associates 33,118
REEGEER Interests in joint ventures 487,333
BIERRAL TSGR Bank balances and cash and time deposits 5,548,025
ERFTHREE Other unallocated assets 272,618
LAREE Consolidated total assets 10,966,341
EL Liabilities
par - Segment liabiliies 425,665 139,063 206,228 5 770,956
AN ERER - ERRERAMERTE Unallocated trade, bills and other payables 2134925
ok HERE Unallocated lease liabiliies 62,378
ﬁ?MT iz BfE Other unallocated liabilities 10,657
GARER Consolidated total liabilties 2978916

116 3% 2021 ANNUAL REPORT
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6. HEPEE (| 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(i) SPEERAREGE (i) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)
REZDEEERDEL D EER For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating

resources between segments:

. BEEEHDREEERATEZ®RD I o All assets are allocated to operating and reportable segments other
|E/\*BZF'3 tREE ?xﬁ%% B than interchangeably used assets between segments, investment
BhEIED  NREELEZER R properties, interests in associates, interests in joint ventures, bank
THEHERSREBHER - UAREMA balances and cash and time deposits, and other unallocated assets
BARFEHZAADREERI & held by the head office; and
. FBEAEE I REEERATERD I o All liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable segments
MR D e 2 T ERFK ﬁ%ﬁmﬁfﬁﬁ other than unallocated trade, bills and other payables, unallocated
ﬂﬂfﬁ RIH - PRz HESERE lease liabilities and other unallocated liabilities of the head office.
ANRIZEMARI DB B ERRIN ©
(iii) Htta3EE (iii) Other segment information
WZZE-_—F+=-RA=+—H For the year ended 31 December 2021
hE RE
L] BFE REHE o B
fiRE R RES Rif
RES E®  Mediumand  Automobile
Light-duty Pick-up heavy-duty parts and
trucks trucks trucks  accessories AR 78

and chassis  and chassis  and chassis and others  Unallocated  Consolidated
ABRTFT  ARRFT  ARBTT  ABRTT  ARBFT  ABRFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000

SADBBRIATEEZE%E  Amountsincluded in the measure of segment profit or

loss or seqment assets:
TENE  BRERR Additions to property, plant and equipment 39 35,666 20,830 5 94,464 150999
NERPELE Additions to right-of-use assets - - = S 15,492 15,492
BYEAEEHY Amortisation of intangible assets - - 32,629 - 6,293 38922
% BRRAENE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 10,846 552 11,320 - 18,168 45,858
FREAENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets = = = = 20,660 20,660
RENENE Depreciation of investment properties - - - - 2,159 2,159

E$2)7E XD AR A A] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd 117
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6. SEREH (IR)
(iii) H b5 EBEH )
BE_ZT_ZF+_A=1T—HLHFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(iii) Other segment information (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

M B

a1 RFE  RERE  BfB4
Lk & REg REf

RES E%  Medumand  Automobile
Light-duty Pickup  heaw-duty partsand
trucks trucks trucks  accessories  AAAE )
andchassis  andchassis  andchassis  and others  Unallocated  Consolidated
NEEFT  \REFT  AREFT  AREFr  ARETT  AREFT
AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000
HANBERRATEEZEE:  Amounts included in the measure of segment profit o loss or segment
asses:
RENE  BRERE Additions to property, plant and equipment a0 3,931 12,965 S 161,748 179,084
NEEVEE Additions to intangible assets = 5 = 5 5,928 5928
TEFREAE Additions to right-of-use assets = 5 = 5 401 4,201
BYEERH Amortisation of intangble assets = 5 3177 5 5,469 38,646
0% - HRERkERE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 7,744 4361 11,249 5 12,829 36,183
FREAENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets = 5 5 5 32,9 3,09
RAMENE Depreciation of investment properties - 5 5 5 2,466 2,466
(iv) HEZFHE (iv) Geographical information
RIEBELERBERERTHERUAIN  KEEBEE Excluding deferred tax assets and time deposits, the Group’s non-current
ANE#®1,841,792,000 (=B =T F : A assets amounting to RMB1,841,792,000 (2020: RMB1,824,075,000) are

R#1,824,075,0000) ERBNEEM R
REERN - BRAFEUIIER 2 EOHEE
AR#66,275,000 (=T _ZFF : AR
72,168,00070)5) » REE Z AT E EAbiEEY
EFURPBEZEP -

v} FREREFRZEH

REXEEREMBATNA T (RER)3
B#AERAR (R +REFEDIN  REFE
AR EE — IR P IR A AN E B U A
10%FNE - BE-_ZE-_—F+=-_A=+—
ALLFE  KEEREEREWNBAT AT
SREH WA DB A AR,105,429,000
x(_7 _gi AFR#1,637,987,0007T) &

A*(Z—E=—Z%F : AR¥633,468,000
ﬁ) o

i HE_ZT_-_—&+_A=+—H1tF
E - WAL AREBBURATEBR10% °
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located in the PRC. Except for export sales to countries outside the PRC
amounting to RMB66,275,000 (2020: RMB72,168,000), all other sales of
the Group are made to customers located in the PRC.

(v) Information about major customers

Other than Qingling Group and its subsidiaries and T+ (R ER) 3 Bhik
BABRARA)("Isuzu Engine”), no other single external customer contributed
10% or more to the Group's total revenue for both years. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, revenue from Qingling Group and its
subsidiaries, and Isuzu Engine amounted to RMB1,105,429,000 (2020:
RMB1,637,987,000) and N/A* (2020: RMB633,468,000) respectively.

* Revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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7. HtUkARZH 7. OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES
2% —ECEF
2021 2020
AR¥TFiT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BATHE) - RIREE R s (i) Government grants, including release
from deferred income (note) 216,848 22,704
TEEE R SR TR 2 T B URA Interest income from time deposits and
bank balances 178,357 207,692
LR E 2 HERA Rental income from renting of
equipment 42,593 42,593
LA EME L BERA Rental income from renting of
investment properties and buildings 5,629 6,037
ZE—RFHFDREMIERAMG EE BM740) Receipt from other guarantors from
2015 Litigation (as defined in note 40) 9,355 -
FIERFSA Miscellaneous service income 10,568 6,353
HIEARF RS Miscellaneous service expenses (9,560) (6,197)
453,790 279,182

Note: The government grants mainly comprise the hydrogen fuel cell vehicles

et BRI EaESRHEL B/

ARHECEENERANEBR  SARM
AEEREESIT BT - KRR EEN
WMER -

HE-Z-_—F+-_RA=1+—HLEFE
$$lﬁﬁk@kﬂa/ﬂm$ﬁﬁslﬁﬂﬁ
B AR®180,000,000 (=%
&) - BEZHE BFEERZ=Z=
EoT-mESEMNRERE B AEE
%s’ﬁf@o

BE-_T-_—4%+-_RA=+—RHIFE -
HIEFEU A R 85 AR%830,000L(=F
—TF AR¥ET717,000T) 0 B8 o B
WA G BRI TESS ©

BB AN R E B AR E A E RN
ok V5 % BV B B 75 S5 i 15 B SR R 5 e
iiﬁ&ﬁk%*ﬁ%ﬁﬁil" A RAERE
= .

subsidies, which is compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised grants
of RMB180,000,000 (2020: nil) under the hydrogen fuel cell vehicles
subsidies. Under this scheme, the government aims to accelerate the
development of hydrogen fuel cell vehicle industry during 2021-2024.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, RMB830,000 (2020:
RMB717,000) was released to profit or loss from deferred income,
details of deferred income are set out in note 34.

The remaining balances of grants are incentives received upon fulfilling
the conditions for compensation of research expenses already incurred
or as immediate financial support with no future related costs nor
related to any assets.

B8 /AE D AR A R] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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8. FHERBRV|ATHREERS 8. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED

1R MRRIBO CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL
-5 —ERTEF
2021 2020
ARETTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(BEDRE/BBERA (Reversal of) impairment losses
recognised on:
— FEIBR K — trade receivables (540) 122
— H fth FEUAR — other receivables (74) 96
(614) 218
SE R A B E DA KTE36 ° Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 36.
9. HthF|ERIBXBE 9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET
=5 T -TF
2021 2020
ARETFTT AR TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HE—RIREME W FREWE) Gain on disposal of an investment
property, net (note) 79,566 -
b W E F 58 Net foreign exchange gains 12,541 1,763
I E W S 2 (B18) Was 558 (Loss) gain on disposal of property and
equipment, net (6,454) 699
85,653 2,462
FiaE . HEREMEZWREFHEFBERYIRME Note: Details of gain on disposal of an investment property, net are set out
20 - in note 20.

120 3% 2021 ANNUAL REPORT
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10. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

—E-—5 TECTE
2021 2020
ARBTFTT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRAZADEF S R GTA Profit before tax has been arrived at
after charging (crediting):
e REMER SN Salaries and other payments and 318,085 304,003
benefits
IRNERFT BRI 2L 12) (BT 72) Retirement benefit scheme 40,818 15,781
contributions (note 12) (note)
BEINRN(BIEEEREEME) Hit13) Total staff costs (including directors’ and 358,903 319,784
supervisors’ remuneration (note 13)
REEFREREE T Staff costs capitalised in inventories (151,646) (144,625)
207,257 175,159
mIEESE Amortisation of intangible assets 38,922 38,646
Y% - WEREEBITE Depreciation of property, plant and 45,858 36,183
equipment
REEHRERE Capitalised in inventories (25,353) (16,163)
20,505 20,020
HEBEREKAR Finance costs of lease liabilities 1,374 1,589
WEMENTE Depreciation of investment properties 2,159 2,466
FREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 20,660 32,292
ZEE N & Auditor’s remuneration
— 2B AR - Audit service 2,784 2,242
— IERER - Non-audit service 313 313
ERABEEKAZFENA Cost of inventories recognised as cost 4,250,600 4,388,192
of sales
FEMURERE GT ASHERA) Write-down of inventories, net (included 16,677 (9,389)
in cost of sales)
LA EE 2 WA Rental income from renting of 5,375 5,765
investment properties
B FERNEERERAZIREME Less: Direct operating expenses from (1,995) (2,272)
EEREEER investment properties that
generated rental income during
the year
3,380 3,493

KiiF: BE-Z=_—F+=-A=+—RHLFE"
BEEHTEHARENREFRG (T
£ AR¥28,200,0007T) @ EHRERE
FIEtEI R -

Note: For the year ended 31 December 2021,
government grants (2020: RMB28,200,000) have been offset against

retirement benefit scheme contributions.

B8 /AE D AR A R] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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11. FIRNREA

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

—E—f ZETF

2021 2020

ABRFIT AEETT

RMB’000 RMB’'000

BNHARE IR Current tax 5,555 12,813
BEFERE T Under provision in prior years 3,831 2,079
IR IE (BT 724) Deferred tax (note 24) 4,252 3,800
13,638 18,692

RECEANRAB A AREEBEELE
FIBRMAE) ( BARMIEBLBRE2012FF
125%) o B R S EN R E % B ) (BB R
MAEZESSEA05R) @ MR HFAELLIE
WHEFEBRNEEBEELXREETSEEE
B A BEELL BB B 70 % B A 7
ZE1%NEBECEMSHR(EEMERDM
Ko KRB RARARIZHIB AR EEEREA
BRAR(EREREDMBEXBNEEBN
MBSEANFFEHNERITESE  WARFETE
E¥BRABRBERESBRABEELLFEE
70% @ MEBBEBXRREFEZEERLEMS
FRIEE15% ©

AN - ARIECARNEE IR EER
BUREIRE) (BHES - IRFG B R RERE
BN EZEENE T -TFEEI35) - i
R AR ET R EP RSB EESE
BEFHBBEEZERAMGBRALELFIBA
0% AFE _E-_—F—HF—HBEE_ZT
ZEF+ A=+ HILZFHI5%HNEED
EETH -
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According to the Notice of the Enterprise Income Tax for Implementation
of Exploration and Development of Western Region (Notice of the State
Administration of Taxation No. 12 [2012]) and the Catalogue of Industries
Encouraged to Develop in the Western Region (Order of the National
Development and Reform Commission No. 40), companies located in the
western region of the PRC and engaged in the businesses encouraged
by the PRC government are entitled to the preferential enterprise income
tax (“EIT") rate of 15% if the operating revenue of the encouraged
business in the current year accounted for more than 70% of the total
income. The Company and EEE#%1E B2 F]("Qingling Moulds”), a
subsidiary of the Company, are engaged in the encouraged businesses
included in the related notice and catalogue and the total revenue of their
major businesses for the year accounted for 70% of their respective total
revenue, and therefore continue to enjoy the preferential EIT rate of 15%
for both years.

In addition, according to the Notice of the Continuation of the Enterprise
Income Tax for Implementation of Exploration and Development of
Western Region (Notice of the Ministry of Finance, State Administration
of Taxation and National Development and Reform Commission No. 23
[2020]), companies located in the western region of the PRC and engaged
in the business encouraged by the PRC government are entitled to the
preferential EIT rate of 15% from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2030
if the operating revenue of the encouraged business in a year accounted
for more than 60% of the total income in that year.
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HE—FE-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

FEEHEMTOBREERF("Qingling Technical Center”) and B2 GF
Y FTEETR /T $H & RIS B R 2 5)(“Shenzhen New Energy”), subsidiaries
of the Company, are subject to EIT rate of 25% (2020: 25%) for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before tax per consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

—E-— —ZomE

2021 2020
ARSFiT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BB AR Profit before tax 344,524 325,154
LABAATS R EI5%TE 2 HE(ZE=FF :  Tax at the applicable income tax rate of
15%) 15% (2020: 15%) 51,679 48,773
ARG AREENB c BRAZHBTE Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose 1,448 759
HERRAREE 2 BN STz (72 Additional tax benefit applicable to the
Group (note) (31,334) (24,488)
WBARTRME T2 Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries 1,168 1,108
DEHE D ERBE SR Tax effect of share of results of
associates 842 (65)
PEEEREFBIMBTE Tax effect of share of results of joint
ventures (646) (364)
RS EB ARG FABERE CMIEHE  Tax effect of reversal of provision for
litigation not taxable for tax purpose - (8,045)
BEFEREBTR Under provision in prior years 3,831 2,079
BRANAERER AR REER Utilisation of deductible temporary
differences previously not recognised (13,350) (1,065)
KEEZFBHTH Income tax expense for the year 13,638 18,692
Kiat - Note:

RIEFRER A EAR - LN E B AIREEN
BEEBERAMNI00% (ZTZFF : 75%)HFH -
HE-ZT-—F+-A=1+—RAILtFE ' HBEHRE
FzE &5 A ARKE31,334,000L(ZT_FTF : A
R#24,488,0007T) °

Pursuant to the relevant tax rules and regulation, expenses in research
nature are deductible at 100% (2020: 75%) of such expenses incurred
additionally. The related tax benefit is amounted to RMB31,334,000 (2020:
RMB24,488,000) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

B8 /AE D AR A R] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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12. BRFFEFIEHE

AEEEEFLIZRA
Bhpeg - Bt AEEBEER lﬁ%ﬁ“
AEBETMAMRNEENATEHREEZS
FHEIFTE MR - IRIBREFT S - AR AT
FAABAMBRFEERNRRES I F—EHE
TE2HTETELOIZFE - AFEIRIEAGR
TR BT RS NS A AR30,884,000
TL(ZZE-ZF : AR¥6,625,0007T) °

AEREEA R

AN - RIEEREENCEFSHE] - BR
ERR T —+FE+ A BRIDEFS

AFERENE L(BREAEENAERKET)
RIEFEFE - RECEFSFTEIEBIE

AEBAAERBE THMNERSREIENE
TITEZRTERN  WAERESEEREE
GABEMEMEEWRERPIY - tEFE
STEIZEEBYNASLE  A— By EEES
#E o  AFEEREABLTHEENBRERTHENE
FHARE Q34,000 t(Z T —ZF : ARK
9,156,0007T) °

R-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—8  BEHE
——®+=ZA=+— Etif%@ﬁﬁ*iﬁ
FEHE(—ZE-_FTE - &) -
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12. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group has a service agreement with its ultimate holding company,
Qingling Group, whereby the Group will reimburse the contributions
made by Qingling Group to a defined contribution pension scheme
administered by the municipal government in respect of the staff of the
Group. According to such scheme, the Company shall pay an amount
annually, calculated at a percentage of the total wages of the staff,
to a retirement fund administered by the municipal government. The
amount charged to profit or loss during the year under such arrangement
amounted to RMB30,884,000 (2020: RMB6,625,000).

In addition, on 1 December 2017, the Qingling Group established
a voluntary defined contribution enterprise annuities program (the
"Enterprise Annuities Plan"”) in accordance with the Qingling Group's
Enterprise Annuities Plan for its eligible employees (including eligible
employees of the Group). Contributions paid by the Group for its eligible
employees are made based on a percentage of their wages and salaries
and are charged to the Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Enterprise Annuities Plan. The assets of the
Enterprise Annuities Plan are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The amount charged to profit or loss
during the year under such arrangement amounted to RMB9,934,000
(2020: RMB9, 156,000).

As at 31 December 2021, no contributions (2020: nil) due in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2021 had not been paid over to the plans.
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13. EE  -EERTTHARZME 13. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS
BECEC-EtIRCT-ALER BECRCRETCAST-ALER
Year ended 31 December 2021 Year ended 31 December 2020
L ULES ELE
FHR  HRRE  bEM  ERRE IR EEEE 0 B Eha
R Rfth& (i) Kk HERL @it B Atds W#)  Eths  HERA &
Performance Performance
related Retirement relted Retirement
Salaries  incentive Other henefit Salaries ~ incentive Other benefit
andother  payments  benefits  scheme andother — payments  benefits  scheme
Fee  benefits (Note)  received contributions  Total Fee  benefits Notg)  received  contributions Total

ABRFT AERTE ARRFT ARRFT ABRTE ARRFT ARTT ARETT JRETT ARETT ARETT ARETI
RUBDO0  RWBY0  RMBUI  RWBUO  RMBYIO - RMBUN  RMBON  AWBUM  AUBUOD  AMBUX  AWBUM  AUBOD

UEs Executive directors
Bot LUO Yuguang - 5N - - 5 624 - 571 - - 18 589
ZERN(CEZ-EA=TEEA  YASUTATatsuya (appointed on 30
July 2021) - 135 - 86 - m NJA N/A N/A N/A NJA /A
ERE-(C3—FELA=TRZE)  MASUDA Yoichi(appointed on 30 July
2001) - - - - - - NJA N/A N/A N/A NJA NJA
MEAMZEZ-ELAZTAZ)  YAG! Naoto [appointed on 30 July
2001) - - - - - - NJA N/A N/A N/A N/A /A
ZRE L1 Juxing - 457 - - 53 510 - 457 - - 18 475
B XU Song - 457 - - 53 510 - 457 - - 18 475
3ER LI Xiaodong - 457 - - 53 510 - 457 - - 18 475
ME—(ZEZ-ELA=TAER)  HAYASHI Shuichi[resigned on 30 July
2021) - 160 - 8 - 24 - 355 - 204 - 559
—B(CE A=A MAEGAKI Keiichiro (resigned on 30
M%\ Juy2021) - - - ; ; ; : - - ; ; ;
WERD(ZE--ELAZTRER)  ADACHI Katsumi lresigned on 30 July
01 - - - - - - - - - - ; :
- 2,31 - 170 M2 2,619 - 2091 - 204 n 2573
BUEUTES Indgpendent non-executive directors
#E LONG Tao 120 - - - - 120 120 - - - - 120
RNL SONG Xiaojiang 120 - - - - 120 120 - - - - 120
YRk LIU Tignni 120 - - - - 120 120 - - - - 120
Y% LIV Erh Fei 120 - - - - 120 120 - - - - 120
" - - - - W W - - - - W
3 Supervisors
RE MIN Qing - 4 107 - 53 206 - 46 107 - 18 m
FXB(CE--FT-ATRAEE)  ZHANG Yongning fresigned on 15
December 2021) - # 9% - 32 167 - IK] % - 10 151
#R(CE--F-ATRAZD  PUQing (eppointed on 16 December
2001) - 2 4 - 2 8 NJA N/A N/A NA N/A NJA
- 8 205 - ) 381 - 89 205 - 8 30
480 2,326 205 170 299 3480 480 2386 205 204 100 3375
— e — e — — E— - e E— E— —
Biat - MEBSTIREEERHITEENERIER Note: The performance related incentive payment is determined by reference
RET YHENEZEES(H—BHTES to the individual performance of the supervisors and the executive
KB IEENTTE B #EAZ o director, approved by the remuneration committee (composed of an

executive director and four independent non-executive directors).
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13. EF EERTTHASM:
(#&)

MMe—hE(REZTRESEER  N_T_—
F+HAZTHEI  THRO(HVEZTA
BEB)BRRARBRERTBITTRERE
£ ﬁﬁixiﬁﬁiz T B IR B AT TR AR EL
B AR i 2 BRTS 1 S 1~ 2 SR B o

BE T —FR-Z-TF+_A=+—H
HEE - BEmE— %E(ﬁ%&ﬁé%&)
JAREAEEBZERERR)  FERDE
ERAIEE-REEIN  MEEEREENE
WEZME -

AEE— EW;ZEE}E@?EE&MW*?EE%E
REFBEREE - EUFAENETEE D5
ABAREESE,000(ZE-FF : TNEA) KA
R#84,000c(ZE =2 4F : AKR®204,000
JT) °

AAREMATEEREFOME HRERE
IR R e B X ) IS AR AR O BR 7S 1 2
ST HOSREN o

AARELFFTESOME TR /EFER
AR RIE R ATIRGE 2 BRI 1 S HOSREH

FR - AEEBERNARRESNEST NI
I B 1E AR S| 1% E AR B (B A H B R
HECEZZF | -

IEFHMESHET

AEBRUMERESALH - 5{4(4349?\
F ) ARTEERES  FEREEZ
*—iﬁ_y_giﬂ—iﬂiﬂ'—ﬁtifﬁﬁ@
& B R L FEE -

14. BAZELRS

wﬁ¢lm%%&v$%ﬁm¢ﬁ&ﬁ%%ﬁ
BARBEEATEHBRERPBIHEEFNI0%
@EEEEMEEE%@@AQEQ@ﬁ
—RAEERCEEREES(WER)) < AFE
BHRATBESEESHBEINS QAR EMEAR
50% A BB R - WAl AR BHBEFEE
E R IBAIR A £k (L AR E RN
INER « AEBEEBABEICRBAES
LAATRE 5 REE A - BHEEEAEERBA
BEHRETSERAEESEEIMELRD
25% ° %L RBBRRBEAGHE ©
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13. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Mr. HAYASHI Shuichi (upon appointed as a director, resigned on 30
July 2021), Mr. YASUTA Tatsuya (upon appointed as a director), who is
general manager of the Company and also assume the role as the chief
executive of the Company and his emolument disclosed above include
that for services rendered by him as the chief executive.

Save as Mr. MASUDA Yoichi (upon appointed as a director), Mr. YAGI
Naoto (upon appointed as a director), Mr. MAEGAKI Keiichiro and
Mr. ADACHI Katsumi, neither directors nor supervisors waived their
emoluments for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The Group has been providing accommodation and recuperation to Mr.
YASUTA Tatsuya and Mr. HAYASHI Shuichi at no charge. The estimation
money value of the benefit in kind is RMB86,000 (2020: N/A) and
RMB84,000 (2020: RMB204,000), respectively.

The emoluments of the Company's other executive directors and
supervisors are paid for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The emoluments of the Company’s independent non-executive directors
are mainly paid for their services as directors of the Company.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
and supervisors of the Company as an inducement to join or as
compensation for loss of office (2020: nil).

Five highest paid employees

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, 5
individuals (2020: 5 individuals) were executive directors and supervisors
whose emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are
included in the disclosure above.

14. TRANSFER TO STATUTORY SURPLUS RESERVE
FUND

Pursuant to the relevant laws in the PRC, each of the group entities
established in the PRC is required to transfer 10% of its profit after tax
as per statutory financial statements (as determined by the management
of the group entities) to the reserve fund (including the general reserve
fund and enterprise development fund where appropriate). The general
reserve fund is discretionary when the fund balance reaches 50% of
the registered capital of the respective entity and can be used to make
up for previous years' losses or, expand the existing operations or can
be converted into additional capital of the respective entity. Each of the
group entities may capitalise the statutory surplus reserve fund by way
of bonus issues provided that the remaining amount of statutory surplus
reserve fund after such distribution shall not be less than 25% of the
registered capital of each of the group entities. The amount shall be
submitted to shareholders’ general meeting for approval.



15. BAEELARE

TR —F R CTFRERFTEMARIER
EBRES - ARKE2,347,0000L 2 EB A&

SEBRBHBA Tﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁirh¢l
ARG RAARERELBHERRE 2B
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15. TRANSFER TO DISCRETIONARY SURPLUS
RESERVE FUND

No amount was appropriated to the discretionary reserve fund in 2021
and 2020. The balance of RMB2,347,000 in the discretionary reserve
fund was the amount appropriated by a subsidiary, Qingling Moulds, in
previous years at a percentage of the profit after tax of the respective
years in accordance with PRC GAAP and Articles of Association of
Qingling Moulds.

16. B2 16. DIVIDENDS
- Jle —ECEF
2021 2020
ABR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEWRAEIIHARE Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:
—E-TFERPBREIN -BRAREO 1T 2020 Final, paid — RMBO.1 (2020: 2019
(ZE=ZF : ZT-NFREBRBZF— Final, paid — RMBO.16) per share
BRARKO0.167T) 248,227 397,163

REHKRE ARREZEESINEES
——FF+ A=+ BLFEREREFBRA
R#0.1170 » £ AR#273,050,00070(=ZZF =
T HE ?_?EJr B=+—HItFE
KREAE B AR%248,227,000 T3 F A% A R #E
0.17T) @ BERENREEREBF NS HER
FAMEE -

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of
RMB273,050,000 or RMBO.11 per share in respect of the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: final dividend of RMB248,227,000 or RMBO.1
per share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2020) has been
proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject to approval by
the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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17. BEREF 17. EARNINGS PER SHARE
RARERFE AEEFRERBFIRIE TS The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to owners of
BERETHE - the Company is based on the following data:
2% Earnings
2% —ECEE
2021 2020
AR®FIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AU ESRERBF 2 & H) Earnings for the purpose of basic
(KR REEERFE ARNFEERH) earnings per share (Profit for the
year attributable to owners of the
Company) 322,080 300,989
Bfn® B Number of shares
—E_—f T -TE
2021 2020
AR®FIT AREFT
‘000 ‘000
UG EFRERZF 27 EE Number of shares for the purpose of
basic earnings per share 2,482,268 2,482,268

R AR A RIFE TSR E 6 2 1 BB TR SN VB No diluted earnings per share was presented as there were no potential
EEAR - IEZY|SRESRT - ordinary shares in issues in both years presented.
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18. Y% - BRER &R 18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
g&. &
B BERES KERSH RE ERIR @t
Moulds, Furniture,
plant and fixtures and Motor  Construction
Buildings machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total

ARRTE  ARRTL  ARRTL ARRTL ARRTL ARETI
AUB 000 AUB 000 AUB 000 AUB 000 AUB 000 RUB 000

M{! CosT

\ZE-2F-A-A At 1 January 2020 662,329 3,683,538 87,533 15,047 97,745 4,546,192
HE Additions - - - - 179,084 179,084
BRAERIR Transfer from construction in progress 9,603 11,698 1,850 426 (23,577) -
RE Disposals - (16,921) (229 (724) - (17,874)
R-Z-BF+-A=1-R At 31 December 2020 671,932 3678315 89,154 14,749 253,25 4,707,402
HE Additions - - - - 150,999 150,999
BREATETR Transfer from construction in progress 8,623 153 584 4520 3,004 (169,731) -
RE Disposals (1.215) (112,678) (3,595 (3.381) S (120,869)
RZE--F+-f=1-A At 31 December 2021 679,340 3719221 90,079 14,372 234,520 4,731,532
HERAE DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT

R-E-%%-5-H At 1 January 2020 484,557 3,174,740 62,976 12122 - 3,734,3%
EENERE Depreciation provided for the year 10,743 22,135 2862 43 5 36,183
REWH Eliminated on disposals - (16,188) (206) (652) - (17,046)
RZT-ZE+-A=1-A At 31 December 2020 495,300 3,180,687 65,632 11,913 - 3,753,532
EENERR Depreciation provided for the year 10,861 31,19 3,095 706 5 45,858
RERH Eliminated on disposals 1,004 (102,044) 3,235) 3,043) - (109,416)
RZF--F+Zf=1-A At 31 December 2021 505,067 3,109,839 65,492 9,576 - 3,689,974
IEEE CARRYING VALUES

2 s At 31 December 2021 174,273 609,382 24587 47% 234520 1,047,558
RZZ-FF+-f=1-A At 31 December 2020 176,632 497,628 850 283% 253252 953,870
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18. W3 - WE B Ek i (%)

Hiiyx  BERRBERIEREREE
R R EBRINH G KA RIBEERIZ
TONEEAHE R F U BERETIATE

{hist
TREH FIEREE
BF 204 10%
BE - BE RS
(EREEZER
EERIN 5E10% 10%
BRI - BB RERE b4 10%
AE 54 10%

AZENEEREABZINNEEEEARSA
R#271,383,000c (ZE-FF : ARK
284,413,00070) MEREERELEE(BIE
WEE - BRE RS D2 LSRG RIER
RIBAHEEE TIATE -

R-_ZE=-——F+-_A=+—8 " BEKELE
AR#3,858,637,000C(ZE-FF : AR¥E
3,913,681,00070) W% ~ iR KR E D BE
WERDERFR -

FEREMESHEA

AEERBELEHENHZHERERIETF -
ZEHENBBPRATAIEZIF(ZEZ
TFE1E3F)  cESHEHTBENEH
ENR - REPRELEHENEF - KA -
B E KRS EREE D B A A K 2,095,000
T(ZZEZZF : AR¥E2,240,0007T) & A
R#¥88,507,000t(Z T —TF : ARK
91,991,0007T) °
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress and specialised production facilities and moulds,
are depreciated on a straight-line basis based on their estimated useful
lives, after taking into account the estimated residual value, as follows:

Estimated
useful lives  Residual value
Buildings 20 years 10%
Moulds, plant and machinery
(other than specialised production facilities
and moulds) 510 10 years 10%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years 10%
Motor vehicles 5 years 10%

Specialised production facilities and moulds with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB271,383,000 (2020: RMB284,413,000) included in
moulds, plant and machinery which can be identified in relation to specific
production processes are depreciated by reference to the expected
production volume of these facilities and moulds.

As at 31 December 2021, property, plant and equipment with original
cost of RMB3,858,537,000 (2020: RMB3,913,681,000) have been fully
depreciated but still in use.

The Group as lessor

The Group leases out a number of equipment and buildings under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 3
years (2020: 1 to 3 years). None of the leases includes variable lease
payments. The carrying values of the buildings, and moulds, plant and
machinery under operating leases at the end of the reporting period
are RMB2,095,000 (2020: RMB2,240,000) and RMB88,507,000 (2020:
RMB91,991,000), respectively.
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19. FHEEE 19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
HELH BERET ] H5t
Leasehold  Warehouse
lands and buildings  Equipment Total
AREFT  AREFT ARETT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
W_EZ—F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2021
RHE Carrying amount 19,959 20,737 4,042 44,738
RZEZZE+_A=+—H At 31 December 2020
FEE Carrying amount 20,829 22,086 38,876 81,791
BE-T-—F+-A=1+-ALEE For the year ended 31 December 2021
nES® Depreciation charge 950 15,670 4,040 20,660
BE-T-TF+-A=1+-ALEE For the year ended 31 December 2020
nESH Depreciation charge 909 11,945 19,438 32,292
-5 —ERIEF
2021 2020
ABRETTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RS HAME A B RER & Expense relating to short-term leases 656 2,061
HERS A5 Total cash outflow for leases 23,276 33,815
RNEFREEE Additions to right-of-use assets 15,492 4,201
HE# Lease modification (31,885) =

RZEFE  FAEEHBRE - ZEMRER

ﬁ%i‘%i«% HEA R E TR 231E A
E3F(CT_TF  EAE3IF) - HEKK
EEERER AN - B8 BE TR RK
G o e B & HRRART A T AT B AR
HT AEEERARIER - WHEE SR AT
TTEARR -

7

ﬁ”&lﬁ%‘iiff%%f“* —IRMXANTARK - &
FEREST DEFMIEHANRE - Z5EY
EL:0FiEN iﬂﬂ%ﬂfﬁ?‘fﬁﬁiﬂ ©

For both years, the Group leases warehouses and buildings and
equipment for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed
term of 3 months to 3 years (2020: 3 months to 3 years). Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire these property

interests. The leasehold lands components of these owned properties are
presented separately only if the payments made can be allocated reliably.
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19. (ER#EEE R
AEBEERGHMARELIEN L ERES

£

AEEFEHRTRERPEY - R —F
RZB-BF+-A=+—H BHEEAS

EﬁiJ:Lﬁﬁgél’JL%ﬁfH ERMMSRNEHEE
/\*Eﬂ(/{

HERMRHRNE

N RZZ-——F+—_A=+—R0 AR¥
24,739,000t M E B (&8 A R #24,779,000
THHREERAEEERR (S T F
AR#62,378,000 cMHEEEMARE
60,962,000 CHIAEEEE FEEAE) - BrHFHA
BENHEEEFTHEREZI  HEBET
MR E b 224E - FAEEE NS BIEE A
BEER -
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19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Group has obtained the land use right certificates for all leasehold
lands.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for warehouse. As
at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the portfolio of short-term leases is
similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-term lease
expense disclosed above.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of RMB24,739,000 are recognised with related
right-of-use assets of RMB24,779,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
lease liabilities of RMB62,378,000 and related right-of-use assets of
RMB60,962,000). The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.
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20. EYE 20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

AEERQERESALRE T LHMET
BERAZM - BH—REER/IBF (T

The Group leases out certain leasehold lands and buildings under
operating leases with fixed rentals payable monthly. The leases typically

TF 35 run for a fixed period of 3 years (2020: 3 years).
EARTEEREER SEBATHRE The lease contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/or
HA4 5?%%51%%3’] LR o lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of lease term.
HELH gF &t
Leasehold
lands Buildings Total
ARMTFT AR TFT ARETFT
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
5% 3 COST
RZZEZTF—HA—HK At 1 January 2020 and 31 December
—EZTF+ZA=+—H 2020 24,388 145,915 170,303
BB (M) Disposals (note) (9,673) (19,954) (29,627)
B —F+ZA=+—H 31 December 2021 14,715 125,961 140,676
e DEPRECIATION
NZE-_TF—HF—H At 1 January 2020 9,449 119,006 128,455
FERE Provided for the year 473 1,993 2,466
RZZ2-_ZF+_A=+—H At 31 December 2020 9,922 120,999 130,921
FEBE Provided for the year 441 1,718 2,159
BB Eliminated on disposals (note) (2,451) (9,188) (11,639)
R-Z-_—F+=-H=+—H At 31 December 2021 7,912 113,529 121,441
Eﬁﬁ CARRYING VALUES
R-B-_—F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2021 6,803 12,432 19,235
RZBEZZF+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2020 14,466 24,916 39,382

i ARESEPREETBRSENEGERR R

Note: The Group entered into a demolition and relocation compensation
YR BMERE - RIEZBE - ZEEDWR

agreement with the government in Chongging, the PRC, in respect of
& A AREI7,554,000 TR SHHE - the urban renewal project. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group had
RN WA DM REBRBEMEERIREY received compensation amounted to RMB97,554,000 in cash. Prior to
E UN:X entering into the agreement, the land and its existing properties were
accounted as investment properties.

An investment property with carrying values of RMB17,988,000,
measured at the date of derecognition, the gain amounted to
RMB79,566,000 has been recognised in profit or loss (note 9).

IREEEAARY17,988,000 T H%E M
BHE DELILERAZBETE  KESHE
B AR¥79,566,0007 B MR A8 (M &
9) °
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20. BREMEGE

BA A R e - TR AR SR
oS BRI BB EEE L AT AR A5t
ST T

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The above investment properties are situated in the PRC held under
medium leases term and are depreciated on a straight-line basis based
on their estimated useful lives, after taking into account the estimated
residual value, as follows:

st Estimated
A {EREH FerEE useful lives Residual value
HETH 50 0% Leasehold lands 50 years 0%
BF 20F 10% Buildings 20 years 10%

AEBREMENR T _—F+-_A=+—8H
ZARBEAEANREAL476,000(—E-F
& 1 AR¥59,325,0007T) © A EBETIIEE
HmAEBEEREE BYGEMEEERE
EFtthEHEGBEERETARN(CEZ
FBEFRPFEMETHEETHARAR)
EHZ(HEETE °

RABETRBRAEETE - ERWEMRER
HA B R TISEE RIRE EMBRIE BZ
BRMENTSRATETHERER - 15
HeH2EYEATEHEBLMRGHNES AR
ML ENE B RITRETRHE - B3R
%E%%ﬁﬁ¢ii%ﬁwﬁ¥%¥m%%*

FELENWE - WK .:Jr&%%?xé%ﬁ’] mi5TE
Eﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%%l«x C ARBRAEEREYE

HRFE R e Eﬁit*ﬁiﬂ% MBETARL -
I A

WEJ%%Z“%F@M CWMEZERMERE
R REEATAR

AEBNREMELANREE ZPHNEN -
R-_ZT-_—&F+=-A= + ANAREBES
BEZR(ZZE-_ZTF =) DAEBESE
AR¥49,476,000 (=T _FF : AR
59,325,0007T) °
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The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31 December 2021
was RMB49,476,000 (2020: RMB59,325,000). The fair value has been
arrived at based on a valuation carried out by EEFEREENF G LHHE
HEMEBREMTAT(2020: EERBEHWE LwEETEERAAR)

independent valuers not connected with the Group.

The fair value was determined based on the income approach, where
the market rentals of all lettable units of the properties are assessed and
discounted at the market yield expected by investors for this type of
properties. The market rentals are assessed by reference to the rentals
achieved in the lettable units of the properties as well as other lettings of
similar properties in the neighbourhood. The discount rate is determined
by reference to the yields derived from analysing the sales transactions
of similar commercial properties in Chongging China and adjusted to take
into account the market expectation from property investors to reflect
factors specific to the Group's investment properties. There has been no
change from the valuation technique used in the prior year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of
the properties is their current use.

The Group's investment properties are office units located in Chongging.
The fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2021 is Level 3 (2020: Level 3)
and the fair value is RMB49,476,000 (2020: RMB59,325,000).
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21. EEE 21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
RWTERE S£EEERHK et
Production
Technology management
transfer fees system Total
ARMFr ARMTFT ARMTFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
5% 3 COST
RZZE_ZTF—HF—H At 1 January 2020 640,366 34,709 675,075
NE Additions = 5,928 5,928
7‘5/\_;_2¢+ A=+—HBK At31 December 2020 and 31 December
—E-—f%+=-A=+—H 2021 640,366 40,637 681,003
1] AMORTISATION
W_ZE-_ZTF—HF—H At 1 January 2020 394,418 19,358 413,776
FERE Provided for the year 33,177 5,469 38,646
RZZZZF+—A=+—H At 31 December 2020 427,595 24,827 452,422
FERE Provided for the year 32,629 6,293 38,922
W—_ZE-_—F+=-HA=+—8H At 31 December 2021 460,224 31,120 491,344
REE CARRYING VALUES
W_ZE-_—F+=-HA=+—H At 31 December 2021 180,142 9,517 189,659
RZZEZZEF+=-RA=+—H At 31 December 2020 212,771 15,810 228,581

BREERTRTIEARABD(E+R] - %A
BB AR IR) AT 7 O 01 838 2% 199 2 10 S A B9 %
MERE  B—FZMNREBENENMERETE
B WREAAERFEN T +FE+=F#
3 BEAAREERGER o RIERNEER
hads R 1 S SN RO BB TN EE A
RIBERR Y

EEEE% FIBHARA AT B g R AR D B A R A
EFZHFRAIE10F -

e~ = B = ST ﬁﬁ/éﬁ%ﬂﬁ‘*
RANE 5T AR #285,593,000 T (ZE=F
AR#271,333,0007T) E%&%\%{%ﬁﬁ@m{{@
)Eﬁo

Payments of technology transfer fees, representing lump sum royalties
under technology transfer agreements with Isuzu Motors Limited
("Isuzu”, the substantial shareholder of the Company), are capitalised as
intangible assets and are amortised over the license period ranging from
ten years to thirteen years, commencing from the use of the technologies
in production. Continuing royalties payable to Isuzu under the technology
transfer agreements are charged to profit or loss when incurred.

The production management system has an estimated useful life of
three to ten years and is expected to generate economic benefits to the
Company in the foreseeable future.

As at 31 December 2021, intangible assets with an original cost of

RMB285,593,000 in aggregate (2020: RMB271,333,000) have been fully
amortised but still in use.
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22. RBERRCHED

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

—E-—%f —E-TE
2021 2020
AR¥FIT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
REFE P ZIRERAR - R EW Cost of investment in associates,
unlisted 55,333 30,833
DB E DR WIERET - BREEIRRE Share of post-acquisition profit of
associates, net of dividends declared (4,202) 2,285
51,131 33,118

RI|EMR - AREZBEERFENATA

Details of the Group's associates at the end of the reporting period are as

N follows:
ERen EERR EMEINE FEEERE FRESECHEELAH BHCERRELS FERH
Principal Proportion of equity
Form of Place of place of interests held by Portion of Principle
Name of entity entity establishment operation the Group voting power held activities
B-§ -T-TF IZBZ-§ CE-%
2021 2020 2021 2020
ATRER(ER) ERTAEERLE i Ava HE mE 25% 25% 25% 2% R
(RTRERKIRE)WiHe)
Isuzu Qingling (Chongging) Engineering Co., Ltd Incorporated ~ The PRC The PRC 25% 25% 25% 25%  Technical
("Isuzu Qingling Engineering") (Note(a)) development
BREFAZARAR(RRBR)WZ0) &SRRy PE e 49% 49% 49% 49%  FEEE
ERERRBERLA Incorporated ~ The PRC The PRC 49% 49% 49% 49%  Sale of trucks
("Qingling Shinerary “) (Note(b))
it - Notes:
(a) A TRERBMHAZARPEKINFING (a)  Isuzu Qingling Engineering is a sino-foreign joint venture established in
BhE- the PRC.
(b) ERBRARHBEKINFESERE - (b)  Qingling Shinerary is a domestic joint venture in the PRC.

@i T-TF+-A=+—HILtFE K

ANEEB—BREKITERER - AEEE
BERERIO%ERE HE_T—_—F1+=
A=+—RIEFE  AEERERERIE
AR#24 500,000 L(ZZ =T F : ARK
24,500,0007T) °

3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has established
Qingling Shinerary with another shareholder. The Group owns 49% equity
interests in Qingling Shinerary. For the year ended 31 December 2021,
The Group injected capital of RMB24,500,000 (2020: RMB24,500,000) in

Qingling Shinerary.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

22, REELERZER (W) 22.

TS B ERB R BB RIEEBMERSEER
R MELEMBERAAZI 2 -

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

The summarised financial information below represents amounts shown
in the associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.

ZHECEESHVBRRPEAEREZ

The associate is accounted for using equity method in these consolidated

& o financial statements.
A+ EBe AR Isuzu Qingling Engineering
:¥:_$ —_ 3 - f‘f
2021 2020
ARSFIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MEVEE Current assets 35,460 43,181
EMBEE Non-current assets 2,550 4,320
BB E Current liabilities (1,948) (12,987)
EREBAE Non-current liabilities = -
= ZETF
2021 2020
ARSFTT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
e Revenue 25,028 32,297
FRE N RERE W EEE Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year 1,548 1,776
AEESHAETRERTINHAZEEF Group's share of profit of Isuzu
Qingling Engineering 387 444

573
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22. RHELEZEES(I#) 22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)
R+ H RS (1) Isuzu Qingling Engineering (Continued)
B R B RN SRR S A IS SR R Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the

HOB A2 R S IR T (B A SIER - carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

—E-—% TECTF
2021 2020
ARETFTT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
A+REREMHAEEESRE Net assets of Isuzu Qingling
Engineering 36,062 34,514
AEERETRERTITASEHEEERESLH Proportion of the Group's ownership
interest in Isuzu Qingling Engineering 25% 25%
AEES(hAHSRERPINFAREEFE The Group's share of net assets of
Isuzu Qingling Engineering 9,016 8,629
AEEFRTRERBMASERNEREE Carrying amount of the Group's
interest in Isuzu Qingling Engineering 9,016 8,629
BRER Qingling Shinerary
—E-—% TECTF
2021 2020
ARETFT ARHFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MENVE E Current assets 101,073 61,319
ERBEE Non-current assets 1,693 =
mENEE Current liabilities (15,040) (11,341)
ERBEE Non-current liabilities = -

138 %% 2021 ANNUAL REPORT
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22. RHELEZEES(I#) 22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)
ERER(E) Qingling Shinerary (Continued)

—E-—f —E-TF

2021 2020
ARETFT AREFr
RMB’000 RMB'000
WA Revenue 204,386 -
AEEEE RS LB Loss and total comprehensive expenses
for the year (12,251) (22)
AEESHERBREE Group's share of loss of Qingling
Shinerary (6,003) (11)
Y bl FE 4R 75 A ST R A B TS R R R Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
B A% (> 2 RE SRS T (B T T B carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the

consolidated financial statements:

—E_—F§ —E-TF

2021 2020
AR¥FT N
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRBRFEE Net assets of Qingling Shinerary 87,727 49,978
NEEEERERNATE L Proportion of the Group's ownership
interest in Qingling Shinerary 49% 49%
AEEEERSRFEETHNE Group's share of net assets of Qingling
Shinerary 42,986 24,489
BARFIRFED 2 R Adjustments for unrealised profit (871) =
AEBEERSRTEZNEDER Carrying amount of the Group's interest
in Qingling Shinerary 42,115 24,489

B8 /AE D AR A R] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd 139
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

23. REERRZHED
AEERAECE2REFBUTAR :

23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Details of the Group's investments in joint ventures are as follows:

—B—F —ETF
2021 2020
ARETFIT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

REERRZLERA - REM
NEREERERBREEHRCERERS

R-B_—FR_F_FF+_A=t—8H"
AEER TG L RETHEEER

Cost of investment in joint ventures,

unlisted 368,639 368,639
Share of post-acquisition results of

joint ventures, net of dividends

declared 120,832 118,694

489,471 487,333

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had interests in the
following joint ventures:

i £4] Bk BRRIEE  FEEENR FRARFCHERLE RECHFELE IEER
Principal Proportion of

Form of Place of place of equity interests held by Portion of  Principle

Name of entity entity establishment  operation the Group  Voting power held  activities

2021 2020 2021 2020

B REBRWiLe) Fial7avs PE

Isuzu Engine (Note (a)) Incorporated The

ERATR(ER) AEHERBERAH RalijAv s
(ERATHHE) W)

Qingling Isuzu (Chongging) Automobile Sales  Incorporated The
and Service Co., Ltd.("Qingling Isuzu Sales”)
(Note (b))

Bat -

(a) FATREFEAE—ENR - LFAALEF
B FRINEERE  FTERFEHHE
RS FRRE - AT EBHAMER
/324,260,000 7T (AR #¥2,110,104,000
) Atk BREERAQRS RS
HH50.61% * 30.06% K& 19.33% K FTH &
o AR A EEAMMRS EXRIEFIBE R+
REBE  BRESOENAIZAZARES
SLRESHN—F - ARAREEIELN
RRARKZEFIENS T —BRAE -

3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

R 19.33% 1933%  1933% 19.33%  EE)E LA
HangE
PRC The PRC 19.33% 19.33%  19.33% 19.33%  Manufacture of
engines and
relevant parts
e 50% 50% 50% 50%  ATHREAE
REtHEEE
PRC The PRC 50% 50% 50% 50% Sale of Isuzu
brand
automobiles
and autoparts

Notes:

(a) Isuzu Engine is a sino-foreign joint venture that was established in
the PRC in May 2007, and is principally engaged in manufacture of
engines and relevant parts. The registered capital of Isuzu Engine was
USD324,260,000 (RMB2,110,104,000), and each of Isuzu, Qingling
Group and the Company held 50.61%, 30.06% and 19.33% of equity
interests, respectively, therein. The Company has joint control of
arrangement with other two parties over Isuzu Engine by virtue of the
contractual right to appoint one out of the seven directors to its board
of directors, whose decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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HE—FE-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

23. REELRZHEG(H) 23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
b B A TR E £ - (b) Qingling Isuzu Sales is a sino-foreign joint venture that was established
b) Es —HRZZZEN
NN in the PRC in September 2008, and is principally engaged in selling
EEEPI}%L?’]EP&I B FE
NERER+ BRSNS R ST Isuzu brand automobiles and autoparts. The registered capital is
Y il / 4 USD20,900,000 and the Company contributed USD10,450,000
1':F H A& 4 %20,900,0003% 7T * A (RMB68,579,000), to Qingling Isuzu Sales. The Company has joint
ARIAER AT #HE£E 10,450,000 control of arrangement over Qingling Isuzu Sales by virtue of the
B contractual right to appoint three out of the six directors to its board
%E(AEMGS 579,0007T) ° ANA &)
HEESSBEESAANE of directors, whose decisions about the relevant activities require

unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

ﬁﬁ%é %ﬁ%f'ﬂ%fﬁz AEFEERE
EETN=% - HyEREEELAR
RARHKZZHREOE T —BRE

BECEURECREMAE BB E N E There are no significant restrictions on the ability of joint ventures to
ERRAEERRNENBES Jij{ﬁﬁ transfer funds to the Group in form of cash dividends, or to repay loans or
il o advances made by the Group.
SELRZMBERETE Summarised financial information of the joint ventures
REERSECECMBEREHINMT - Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's joint
THIE AR E AR RE R AN B SR ventures is set out below. The summarised financial information below
REEEEMBRRMET 2 25 - represents amounts shown in the joint ventures’ financial statements
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.
A EPERNFRE B HRERANERERET The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in these
B o consolidated financial statements.
A+#REE Isuzu Engine
=% ZEEF
2021 2020
AREFIT ARKTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MEVEE Current assets 1,523,134 1,791,748
ERBEE Non-current assets 1,210,327 954,703
mENEE Current liabilities (383,313) (330,595)
JERBBE Non-current liabilities (118,949) (169,845)
BESE Net assets 2,231,199 2,246,011
LEERBESERENA TSR The above amounts of assets and
liabilities include the following:
ReERRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,191,692 1,130,462
nEemERCNEIERNRIER Current financial liabilities (excluding
H A FET FRIE R ) trade and other payables and
3 provisions) (49,652) (48,036)
EnB A E (T EEEMNRER Non-current financial liabilities
HAth BT 5RIE R B ) (excluding trade and other payables
and provisions) (116,194) (165,628)

B8 /AE D AR A R] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd 141
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23. REELERZER (M)

23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

RSB EBE () Isuzu Engine (Continued)
- b 3 —ERTEF
2021 2020
ARSTFTT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Wz Revenue 1,180,565 1,324,727
F 5 F) W as 42 %E Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year 3,902 12,263
MARBEIRERAREERAIRE Dividends declared to and received by
the Company 2,168 5,347
TR FEREFBEATSE The above profit for the year include
the following:
e REE Depreciation and amortisation 56,876 54,087
FEUTA Interest income 44,944 51,584
FriSfisz i Income tax expense 1,003 1,042

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in Isuzu Engine recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

EXBb 2 P E R AR & B TS TR RE R Y
KA+ EB RS 2 REER LR -

=25 —ECEF
2021 2020
ARSFIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR BER EEFE Net assets of Isuzu Engine 2,231,199 2,246,011
AEER A HREB 2 A EERLB Proportion of the Group's ownership
interest in Isuzu Engine 19.33% 19.33%
PEARZIRGFEL 2 A Adjustments for unrealised profit (2,596) (4,045)
AEENAHRESH 2 EREE Carrying amount of the Group's
interest in Isuzu Engine 428,695 430,109
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23. REELRZER(HE)
LEERE

23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Qingling Isuzu Sales

—B_-— —ECEF
2021 2020
ARSTFTT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
MENEE Current assets 120,525 131,295
ERBEE Non-current assets 9,996 19,174
mENBE Current liabilities (1,744) (21,643)
ERBAE Non-current liabilities (7,900) (15,023)
BEFE Net assets 120,877 113,803
THEERBESEREATSEIE The above amounts of assets and
liabilities include the following:
ReERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 111,413 108,799
nBERE & EEEMNFKIER Current financial liabilities (excluding
HAb FE FRIE R EE) trade and other payables and
provisions) - (17,258)
FERBeREECTRERENFIER Non-current financial liabilities
H AT FRIE R B E) (excluding trade and other payables
and provisions) - (15,023)

B8 /AE D AR A R] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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23. REELRZHEG(H) 23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
BRARHE0E Qingling Isuzu Sales (Continued)
—B-—%F —ETF
2021 2020
ARETFT N
RMB’000 RMB'000
Wiz Revenue 14,049 35,633
FREN RERE W EEE Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year 7,104 112
T FEREFBEATSE The above profit for the year include the
following:
e KR Depreciation and amortisation 1,073 1,060
FEMA Interest income 4,068 3,755
it v B A R E AR A BT RS SRR FER Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
RER T TR e 7 IR EA R - carrying amount of the interest in Qingling Isuzu Sales recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:
—E-—% —E-TF
2021 2020
AR®TTT ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
ERATRIEECEEFE Net assets of Qingling Isuzu Sales 120,877 113,803
AEERERATRES 2 HEEREERILY Proportion of the Group's ownership
interest in Qingling Isuzu Sales 50% 50%
PARFRGEED 2 AR Adjustments for unrealised loss 338 323
AEERER A TREE 2 ERREE Carrying amount of the Group's
interest in Qingling Isuzu Sales 60,776 57,224
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24. BERREE

REAMBRRARZINNE - ETELEHEE
EREBEDTERE - UWTAEZHAGZRLT
TIRAEER AT

HE—FE-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

24. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The
following is the analysis of deferred tax balances for reporting purposes:

=5 —ECEF

2021 2020

ARETFIT AR¥TFT

RMB’000 RMB’'000

FEEFIIAE B Deferred tax assets 13,939 18,191

UTRAEERAFERZAIFECHERZE
BERRREERBBEARABES

RBERR  AEBRAFABBEENA

?uﬁ%ﬁa%'l‘é%%ﬁ?%?h? TF:ARE

89,000,0007T) - R=ZE-ZZTF+=-A=+—

B - ARE R R EATE AR RIS R

%%ﬁaﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂ# Bl Lt 1 AR PR B R AT I A0
B Z AR IR TSI B E -

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of nil (2020: RMB89,000,000) resulted from the provision
for litigation. As at 31 December 2020, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is
difficult to meet the condition that the deductible temporary differences
can be utilised under the EIT law.

BERRR
R EbEREL Bt
RHGERR% WREE BMAER  WEEN  MRAE  BEENR ERERE  REER an
ECL of trade Accrual
and other Impairment Write-down forselling Accelerated  Deferred  Right-of
receivables on properties of inventories  rebates depreciation  income use assets  Tax losses Total
NEETT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETr AGEFn ARETx ARETx
AMBO00  RMBO0O  RMBU0D  RMBO00  AMBOOD  RMBO0O  AMBUOO  RMBOG0  RMB000
RZT-FF-F-4 At 1 January 2020 578 90 11,190 13414 (4,585 1,304 - - 21991
RE&EET AR Credited (charged) to profit or loss - - (1,408) - (2,497) (107) M - (3,800)
RWZEZFF+ZA=+-B  At31 December 2020 578 90 9782 13,414 (7,082 1197 M - 18191
REREREA (Charged) credited to profit or loss = E 2501 {45000 (17,556) (125) (25 15653 (4.252)
RZE--F+ZA=1+-H  At31 December 2021 578 90 12,283 8914 (24,638 1,072 (13 1568 13,939

i == I N ZIREIM%%JEHEAE%
104,353,000 (=2 =ZF : &) n] BREH
RRFE - ZEHECHERBELERBEE -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had tax losses of
RMB104,353,000 (2020: nil) available for offsetting against future profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised of such losses.

B8 /AE D AR A R] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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25. R 25. INVENTORIES
—E-—% T -TE
2021 2020
ABRFIT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Bk Raw materials 538,165 490,635
FEE Work in progress 309,978 152,075
UKo Finished goods 187,407 198,889
1,035,550 841,599

26. BIGIER B RERHEME
B IB B R 1 R IE

RER - NEEZ BAIRR
HAth e WFR R FBR FIRANT

R RER

26. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

PREPAYMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s trade, bills and other

receivables and prepayments are as follows:

k- =t 3 e ke < 5
2021 2020
ABR¥FTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
FEURBR FURL(E 1B R B Trade receivables, less allowance for
credit losses 102,810 310,176
JEW SRR Bills receivables 2,083,402 2,254,999
E b RN IE RS IR K S Other receivables, less allowance for
credit losses 77,698 58,812
R EHE FRIE Prepayments for raw materials 142,530 42,734
A Y e B E R Value-added tax recoverable 10,585 52,139
FEU R Bh (B 52) Grants receivable (note) 180,000 =
2,597,025 2,718,860

Wt RZTBZ—F+=—A=+—8 6EBRE
RNEB BT B TERIEE T
FE N R4 B (T 5E7) » AL - REURHBY
R_T-_—F+-_A=+—H©ER-
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Note: As at 31 December 2021, there was reasonable assurance that the
Group will comply with the conditions attached and the grants under the
hydrogen fuel cell vehicles subsidies (note 7). Hence a grant receivable

was recognised as at 31 December 2021.



26. BUIRRR - BEURiE R K fnfE
W ¥R 1R B T £+ R 0 (#9)

RZE_—F+_A=+—HEZZE-_ZTHF
+—A=+—8 BFPANFTEENERIRRK
2 RIAARE102,810,0007T IR ZE 1B 7
B ARY2,695,0007T) X AR¥310,176,000
TR EEEEREARKS,235,0007T) ©

N-ZE-_ZTFE—A—0  BEEFANBKRERS
AR #92,729,0007T 0k AR #3,113,0007T
ERBKRER) -

HEEMZEERNTERIE6MEA - BRE
BB ARRINEERRIF)

RBEMYR - AEBREFHR2EZAH
( ﬁfﬁﬂﬁlﬁ?& RAMEE) 252 YRR
R EMBRERR - REDITT
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26. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, trade receivables
from contracts with customers amounted to RMB102,810,000 (net of
allowance for credit losses of RMB2,695,000) and RMB310,176,000 (net
of allowance for credit losses of RMB3,235,000), respectively.

As at 1 January 2020, trade receivables from contracts with customers
amounted to RMB92,729,000 (net of allowance for credit losses of
RMB3,113,000).

The credit period granted on sales of goods is mainly from 3 to 6 months
except for the subsidiaries of Qingling Group, to which a credit period of
1 year were granted.

At the end of the reporting period, the aged analysis of the Group's
trade receivables, net of allowance for credit losses, presented based on
invoice dates at the end of the reporting period, which approximated the
respective revenue recognition dates, is as follows:

:5:—* —_ 5 - E'E

2021 2020

ARSFT ARBTFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

3ME A AR Within 3 months 73,645 278,066
3Z6{EH Between 3 to 6 months 5,547 8,754
721218 H Between 7 to 12 months 6,658 3,439
1904 F Over 1 year 16,960 19,917
102,810 310,176

B8 /AE D AR A R] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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26. BUIRRR - BEURiE R K fnfE
W ¥R 1R B T £+ R 0 (#9)

RRERR - REERETAHZED 2 BUE
BRI

26. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the aged analysis of bills receivables of
the Group based on issue date is as follows:

—E_—F§ ZETF

2021 2020

AR¥TFT AR MFr

RMB’000 RMB’'000

KEENA Within 1 month 630,793 455,629
122{@A Between 1 to 2 months 319,575 485,101
2&3{E A Between 2 to 3 months 251,312 333,181
3%6{EA Between 3 to 6 months 801,996 939,638
621218 A Between 6 to 12 months 79,726 41,450
2,083,402 2,254,999

LRSI RIRITARER - RRHAE
TEAR -

R-TE-—F+-A=+—8  stALREEE
WERREHR AEEBEARK21,371, ooofz
(ZZT-ZTF : AR¥23,286,0007T) ° 5% 7H
RikE BEIE EIH ﬁEF'EilJ%%OEIiL‘AJ:
A ANRE10,195,000(Z 2284 : A
R¥11,272,00070) (A AZSEREABTERN
BMHIORBLRERALEE AL ERER
) THRABEY - AEEWARZFER
IR B A -

3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

All the above bills receivables are guaranteed by banks and their maturity
dates are within 12 months.

As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group's trade receivables
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of RMB21,371,000
(2020: RMB23,286,000) which are past due as at the reporting date.
Out of the past due balances, an aggregate of RMB10,195,000 (2020:
RMB11,272,000) has been past due 90 days or more and are not
considered as in default, as these debtors normally fully settled the
outstanding balances subsequently with reference to the debtors’
settlement pattern. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.
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26. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Included in the Group's trade and other receivables and prepayments at

RENMZEBIEEWREES 2 RE - SEEN the end of the reporting period are amounts due from related parties as
T follows:
—E-—% TECTE
2021 2020
ABRFIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EiEE Qingling Group - 210,095
EREENB AR Subsidiaries of Qingling Group 77,388 69,658
AR BRI Isuzu Qingling Engineering 21 13
B A TIREE Qingling Isuzu Sales = 682
77,409 280,448
FitEkREES ZRIBAESHE - EIER G The above amounts due from related parties are trade in nature,
BB o unsecured and interest-free.

RZBZ—F+A=+—0H st ALKERE
NERER I AE A TN 2 FUB
#)ANR#599,745,000L (ZZE T F : AR¥E
35,587,0007T) ©

FEMBRR ~ FEULERIZ K EoA e OB RO R (E AT
2 FHBEENHIFES6 ©

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’'s prepayments include
advance payments to independent suppliers of steel amounting to
RMB99,745,000 (2020: RMB35,587,000).

Details of impairment assessment of trade, bills and other receivables are
set out in note 36.
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27. EHER

TERAIEIGEARNZE - MERZFF
ﬂ?zm%ims%( T-TF :218%
14.18%)

TE R B E R LR IE SN RES6 -

28. RiTHBERAR

RITHEBAARE1,672,902,000T(Z 2 =%
F: AR¥1,040,566, ooom IR TIG AR
0.0001%%E0.42% (ZZF ~F4 : 0.0001% =
0.39%)&tH 8. °

RS E B R AT BB IAINE R DIERR
THREBRIREEHIIWT

27. TIME DEPOSITS

The time deposits are with a term from more than 3 months to 36
months and carry interest at rates ranging from 2.10% to 4.18% (2020:
from 2.18% to 4.18%) per annum.

Details of impairment assessment of time deposits are set out in note
36.

28. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances of RMB1,672,902,000 (2020: RMB1,040,566,000) carry
interest at market rates, which ranging from 0.0001% to 0.42% (2020:
0.0001% to 0.39%) per annum.

The bank balances and cash that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out
below:

-5 —ECTEF

2021 2020

ARSFT ARBTFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Yl United Stated Dollar (“USD") 11,691 19,630
RE(RHED Japanese Yen (“JPY") 2,892 3,096
BT (M8t)) European Dollar (“EUR") 43 2,126
}%TE([/%TEJ) Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD") 119 123
EX(ES) Great Britain Pound (“GBP") 3 3
14,748 24,978
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29. EFIRR - BARE R ME 29. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES

fTRIEA
RIBERIEAR - AEEMENED - EAEE At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s trade, bills and other
REMERRENT payables are as follows:
k- = 3 ZTTF
2021 2020
ARETFIT ARBETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R RA R ENRE Trade and bills payables 1,666,388 1,874,605
JETSHEERA Selling expenses payables 211,298 230,109
HE A REIE Other tax payable 2,802 2,311
HA R RIA A L) Other payables (note) 239,448 319,628
2,119,936 2,426,653
et - Note:
N-—E-——FE+—-A=+—H8 HEEFZE As at 31 December 2021, other payables amounted to RMB239,448,000
B ANRB239 448, 00075(* —EE AR (2020: RMB319,628,000), mainly including accrued continuing royalties
#319.628,0007T) ° 1 3E FE 5 15 18 B payable of RMB18,897,000 (2020: RMB27,450,000), accrual royalties and
?E}ﬂZ;%AEﬁ%18,897,OOOTE( ToFE A license fee of RMB61,523,000 (2020: RMB70,206,000) and payroll payable of
Ri#£27 450,0007T) ' JEAKMEREARK RMB24,480,000 (2020: RMB29,768,000).

61,523,000 (=ZZ=ZFF : AR%70,206,000
T0) R JERT TE AR ¥624,480,0000 (ZE T4 ¢
AR29,768,0007T) °
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29. EFIRR - BARE R ME 29. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES

R IR (%) (CONTINUED)
RERIR - AEEIEEERR, HEAH2 At the end of the reporting period, the age analysis of trade and bills
P2 FERTBR R R E T RIBH AR ES D AT ZA T - payables of the Group based on purchase date/bills issue date is as
follows:
—E-—% —E-TF
2021 2020
AR¥TIT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
3ME A AR Within 3 months 1,437,413 1,637,379
3£6fEA Between 3 to 6 months 197,792 233,198
721218 A Between 7 to 12 months 15,658 192
1218 A A E Over 12 months 15,525 3,836
1,666,388 1,874,605
MRIREHAEAR - BNEER  ENEE R EE Included in the balance of trade, bills and other payables at the end of the
I e R B FE PR REE T RO RIERA T ¢ reporting period are amounts due to related parties as follows:
% —ECEF
2021 2020
ARETFT ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
BB B AR Subsidiaries of Qingling Group 151,550 172,360
Bt Isuzu 80,420 97,656
F TSR BN Isuzu Engine 93,443 80,349
BiREH Qingling Group 14,822 1M
B A HIRHE Qingling Isuzu Sales 788 =
ERER Qingling Shinerary 2,547 -
343,570 350,376
FiFHIEAB S MY MK - 22 0 HEY These amounts are trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and the
B EEEA3IE6EA credit period granted on purchases of materials is 3 to 6 months.

RER A EREAR - B BR R % H fth B < R IE At the end of the reporting period, included in trade and other payables

AHFAARRSB0,420,000 T (ZE-F4F - are amounted aggregating to RMB80,420,000 (2020: RMB98,236,000),
AR#98,236,0007T) * BEEAIETILABEY which are denominated in JPY.
8 o
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R_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—8" ZK%@E’JMO
BEAARES94,746,000T(Z 2 -84 : A
K #372,138,0007T) F B HE AR EE[MTE
HQE\}E?AIEEGE\}E%Q‘FE&/—LEE’]EE o A
—E -+ - A=+—HHAHNABERNE
E-E -+ A=t HIEFENRER

R - AWABENEZEANARERETE
2 -

RZZE-ZF-A—RB ANEERARK
438,023,0007T °
BE-F-—F+_A=t—HILFE B

u,uz}\Eﬁ%sn 138,0007L(ZZ =T F : AR
#438,023,0007T) ZWAFTAFEHIE L BELE
ﬁ% °

RMEHER  AEEEMERSRHNANE
BEAARES 247,000 (ZE_FF : &)l
ENATRNEGHVEEAT CZEZEF + A
R#660,0007T) °
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30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's contract liabilities of
RMB594,746,000 (2020: RMB372,138,000) mainly represent the Group's
obligation to transfer trucks and vehicles to customers subsequently for
which the Group has received advance payments from the customers.
Contract liabilities as at 31 December 2021 will be recognised as revenue
for the year ending 31 December 2022. The increase in contract liabilities
was mainly due to the increase of the Group's truck orders.

As at 1 January 2020, contract liabilities amounted to RMB438,023,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue of RMB372,138,000
(2020: RMB438,023,000) recognised that was included in the contract
liability balance at the beginning of the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has contract liabilities due
to Qingling Shinerary amounted to RMB8,247,000 (2020: nil) and contract
liabilities due to Isuzu of nil (2020: RMB660,000).

B8 /AE D AR A R] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

153



154

‘\m 7f ﬁﬁ#&%% |Zﬁ ;I

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_FE-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

BREAR

REABKERBERPRAZTLPINNHEE
RF -

31. REFUND LIABILITIES

The refund liabilities are arising from selling rebates to customers at the

end of the reporting period.

32. HERE 32. LEASE LIABILITIES
—E-—5 T -TE
2021 2020
AR¥TFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
EEERE Lease liabilities payable:
1R Within one year 22,816 30,496
1F A EZ2F LA Within a period of more than one year
but not more than two years 1,923 31,882
24,739 62,378
B 12AARREERRGBEREER) Less: Amount due for settlement
within 12 months shown under
current liabilities (22,816) (30,496)
12BRBEERKG ABIETBAR) Amount due for settlement after 12
months shown under non-current
liabilities 1,923 31,882

HEARERNMETFHBEEREENT
4.05%%E4.48%(ZF_FF : 4.25%
4.48%) o

i

3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease
liabilities range from 4.05% to 4.48% (2020: from 4.25% 10 4.48%).
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33. SHARE CAPITAL

R-BZEF—-F—-R-
ZZ2Z¥+°A=1+-H
R-E_—-%¥+_-A=t+—-H
At 1 January 2020,

31 December 2020

and 31 December 2021
ARBFT

RMB000

i 2RITRER

Registered, issued and fully paid 2,482,268

RINEE

Number of shares
R-ZZ-FF-A-R"

—2 $$+ A=+—H

k=Z=—F+=A=+—H

At 1 January 2020,

31 December 2020

and 31 December 2021

&
‘000

SREBAREITHRG Shares of RMB1 each
-RNER — Domestic shares 1,243,616
—Hi% —H shares 1,238,652
2,482,268

Wﬁﬁxﬁqﬂ BT &R B A E

BUAARERERAKRI SEEH TR -
HH&?%':P BT R,/ S e B AR S B 58
LM\\}\iLA/%TEwﬁ%&LM\Eﬁ%)\ﬁEW7,%?%51»%
CoRgiiliig

RER R HR R RIRNE T A A RS
% - NERTIREBA R SHMERARS

HEE -

$ AV - EEITRBRBRARRFAL

Domestic shares are ordinary shares subscribed for and credited as fully
paid up in RMB by the PRC government and/or entities established in the
PRC. H shares are ordinary shares subscribed for in HKD and credited as
fully paid up in RMB by persons other than the PRC government and/or
entities established in the PRC.

Domestic shares and H shares rank pari passu in all respects with each
other. Domestic shares are not freely traded in The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

There were no changes in the registered, issued and fully paid share
capital of the Company during both years.
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34. EFEUT A — BT 6 Bh

SRIEA RS SR B BT BT MR IR R B O BUR
fHBNRAL -

ZABIEARERRBYZE - BB RREAK
B8RRI IRT /AL o SRS IRE
HEAME - BEMRBARELEENIZE20
FRIEREHIMH

AE R EWD AR R B IR @ EFHENE
Bi(ZZ-TF : AR¥S5,0007T) - ZRIFE
WEINEBE T AR AL A IREEERD
AERAFEHRNEAWA - ZBREHAFEERN
IR A S A AR #830,000L (2 - F
F . AR¥717,0000T) c R-ZE-—%F+_"A
=+—H  AR¥7152,000C(ZE-F4 :

AR #£7,982,0007T) 2 BR & i 5 Y -

35. BFERETHE

AREERHER - URRARENE TR
TREEE - FREEEEERESER S
BORSSRAE - ARE Y BRI
FERETE -

++ )ﬂﬂfh}

REBZERARBRBENRRHEE ARLER
(BREREBITRA - REEN R EAMFERE)

RAREETRBIZERNERE - EALEBRZ
—E5 - ARREBREEEZEEANEREE
ZEARARRR - AEEFSBRMKS
BT A RBETHEEERIRGEIE T
BT R B ANZEE o
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34. DEFERRED INCOME - GOVERNMENT GRANTS

The deferred income represents government grants subsidising the
Group's equipment for technology innovation and environmental
protection.

The amount represents unconditional government grants received by
the Group for acquisition of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets. The balance will be amortised based on the useful lives of
respective property, plant and equipment and intangible assets from 3 to
20 years.

No government grants have been received in the current year for
purchase of new equipment (2020: RMB5,000). The amounts received
in prior years have been treated as deferred income and are transferred
to income over the useful lives of the relevant assets. This policy
has resulted in a credit to income in the current year of RMB830,000
(2020: RMB717,000). As at 31 December 2021, carrying amount of
RMB7,152,000 (2020: RMB7,982,000) will be amortised in the future.

35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, retained profits
and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure from time to
time. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends and new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.
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36. &M TH 36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) &MI AR (a) Categories of financial instruments
8- —ECEF
2021 2020
AR¥TFIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
SMEE Financial assets
BB ATTENSMEE Financial assets at amortised cost 7,849,745 8,172,012
kof- A=K Financial liabilities
B Amortised cost 2,206,200 2,531,433

(b) £ELEREEHRRBR

FEENTECRT ABERIERR - BUE
BEEMBENFIR - EEEHR - RITEHR IR

& ENERRAEMSZE  REARE - HaE
NHEBERAEEE ZSeRTANFBERES
BRIMIERIEE - ERSERT ESENER
BEMSARGMERR EFIZRRR) - EHE
BRREE SRR o IR % ERBR AR
IR TN - AEEEHZERBNEESRE
EENEZSRBZ HATEERKES - &
BEEaEEEMEREERK - BERERLE
WEITEE BN

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade, bills and other
receivables, time deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and bills
payables, refund liabilities, other payables and lease liabilities. Details
of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. There has
been no significant change to the Group’s exposure to these risks or the
manner in which it manages and measures these risks. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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36. &ET A (8) 36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) SFEEMREEHBERBEKGE (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

G e Market risk

() SMNEEE (i) Currency risk

$%@yﬂ€‘§atﬁﬁ7|\ﬁ5?§§ ] T T S SN Several entities of the Group have foreign currency purchases, sales,

% o N2 B3 iR B ) BA 4 T SRR B LA B R A which expose the Group to currency risk. The Group manages its foreign

I:}_L W ASERER A B AR Fr PR SNE R o currency risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency
rates and will undertake necessary procedures to mitigate the currency
risk.

AT BRSBTS AR UIMESHE AT The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated
INERBE s B EEREK BB REE - monetary assets and monetary liabilities that are subject to currency risk
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

BE &

Assets Liabilities
—E--F§ —E-TE g% “ECEF
2021 2020 2021 2020
ARBFT AREFT ARBFT ANERETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
e usp 11,691 19,630 s =
5] JPY 2,892 3,096 80,424 98,236
BT EUR 43 2,126 s =

BURRE DT Sensitivity analysis

AEBzEERBREETKBE ZEER The Group is mainly exposed to the risk of fluctuations in USD and

B - BB GEUTEBERIIEE KN - #BER JPY. The management assessed the risks of fluctuations in EUR are

ZHAREHBUTHGEREE DT © insignificant and did not present the sensitivity analyses in the RMB
against EUR.
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(b) SMERREEEHREEE
5 R BR (18

) SMNEmE ()
BUBE 7 ()

TERFMAEBRZARE L ETLRBEAE
5% (=T -T4F : 5%)FENHFRE - 5% (=
T-TEF 5%) AT EEEABEAITRE
SNERBRFIRAZ HREL R  REREEREY
HNEPE RS IR AR B B) 2 ;T - URREDITE
BREMAEENINEHESEIAER - URER
AAREHFETNBEERS% (T _ZF :
5%)MEHAAZE - T (BB EEREAR
M HETKRBEAES%(ZZE-FF : 5%)iM
BHFENBRTE RN RGN - HARER
ET KR BEEE%(CE-FF :5%)  BlEg
HENBRHRBEFNEEEMARMTE
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2020: 5%)
increase in the exchange rate of RMB against USD and JPY. 5% (2020:
5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period
end for a 5% (2020: 5%) change in RMB against USD and JPY. A
(negative) positive number below indicates (decrease) increase in post-
tax profit for the year, where the RMB strengthen 5% (2020: 5%) against
USD and JPY. For a 5% (2020: 5%) weakening of the RMB against USD
and JPY, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax
profit for the year.

—E-—% T B
2021 2020
ARBFT ABRBTFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000

s A2k (E518) Profit or (loss)
ETT usD (497) (834)
H JPY 3,295 4,043

(i) FIREE

REBO R A BEN R E R T B ERIREE M X
SRR EMER REERERR

REEZBSRENXRER T ZETRERE
B2 SR BITHBR R EMTEREE 2T
=R &) o

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group's fair value interest risk relates primarily to time deposits
carried at fixed interest rates and lease liabilities.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the

fluctuation of deposit interest rate arising from the Group's bank balances
and time deposits carried at variable rate.
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36. &M TR

(b) SFARPREE E R KR ()
75463 1 R (1)

(i) FIFEESR )

HEEAH

AT SRR E DT TR R R 3RS BRI & I T
R RFMEZ RITHABRRMET o FIR L
H[EIE0.25% (ZF=FF : 0.25%) IAEE
EEABERIREFERRERA - WREK
EEBYHN RSB RLE B 2 G o

ﬁﬁTtﬂ/MﬁozmM_?_7¢
ozmwﬂﬁﬁﬁ@”EﬁHT  REER
HZE —FE+-A=Z+—BLFEZBHK
&mﬂT%?M/ﬂQAE%&%zwmﬂ_
T-TF R ARE2,211,0007T) ©
FERRAEBRELRITEL 2 FIRARAT
g( °

15 R M BE R B

EREREARENZ ZE T REBTHER
EHEMEAKBEEKRTHEBERNRR - &NKE
MERRREZHBERREEER - BRER
R EADREWIR - E TR RITAERR - A%
30 45 AR an s L M1 %ﬁ%ﬁu
BEEEESREERBNERRER

HMEAT

EEEHPELR BRI R ERTE

$EIE?£4NE1EJ¥E9I\%B§}EZW CEEAA
BERTY ZRFHEERPERERLDIK
h%@% FEEBFREMARTEFNGE
RRBEFD I - AREERESE R
ABRATPHAKEN - AKEEERBRR
NEREERBEX BT EEERFMIRITET
KEROFE - Bt - AREEEERSRE
EENERRBRTS © Fit - ARREERS
AEESNERRREBRERE -

HREERRR  AEEERED R —E)
HEEEFEEERBLEERERN - UHERER
BRAE s U [ 28 B R A 01508
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to bank balances carried prevailing deposit interest rate at the
end of the reporting period. 0.25% (2020: 0.25%) increase or decrease
in interest rate is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents the management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 0.25% (2020: 0.25%) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2021 would increase/decrease by RMB3,557,000
(2020: increase/decrease by RMB2,211,000). This is mainly attributable to
the Group’s exposure to interest rates on bank balances.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties default on
their contractual obligations resulting in financial losses to the Group.
The Group's credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to trade, bills
and other receivables, time deposits, bank balances. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets.

Trade and bills receivables arising from contracts with customers

Before accepting any new external customers, the Group uses an
internal credit scoring system to assess the potential customer’s credit
quality and assign credit limits thereto. Limits and scoring attributed
to customers are reviewed twice a year. Besides, recoverability of
the existing customers is reviewed by the management of the Group
regularly. The Group only accepts bills issued or guaranteed by reputable
PRC banks if trade receivables are settled by bills and therefore the
management of the Group considers the credit risk arising from the bills
is insignificant. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits and
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debtors.
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B EHIPTEL R BRI R ERFRR (B

BEAN - AREER B EREE TR R R IRR A
72 ERTE B (= A B AR BT E R (B Uk
R EWEE TIIREASBEATE - BPE
BREEFERFHELBRMBENRETE
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AEBEREREFELSEDG - BELRI
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B AR96,0007T) - 2L EEMNFEBHNA
BRET o
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AR RME MO BIEE BT RERNED
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade and bills receivables arising from contracts with customers
(Continued)

In addition, The Group performs impairment assessment under lifetime
ECL model for trade and bills receivables individually based on internal
credit rating, customers’ aging and historical observed default rates over
the expected life of the customers and adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. Reversal
of impairment losses of RMB540,000 (2020: impairment losses of
RMB122,000) is recognised during the year. Details of the quantitative
disclosures are set out below in this note.

Other receivables

For other receivables, the management of the Group makes periodic
individual assessment on the recoverability of other receivables based
on historical settlement records, past experience, and also quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. The management of the Group believes that there
are no significant increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial
recognition and the Group provided impairment based on 12m ECL.
Reversal of impairment losses of RMB74,000 (2020: impairment losses
of RMB96,000) is recognised during the year. Details of the quantitative
disclosures are set out below in this note.

Time deposits and bank balances

The management of the Group assesses that the Group’s time deposits
and bank balances are at low credit risk because they are placed with
reputable banks with high credit ratings assigned by either international
or PRC credit-rating agencies. The Group assesses 12m ECL for these
balances by reference to information relating to probability of default
and loss given default of the respective credit rating grades published by
external credit rating agencies. Based on the average loss rates, the 12m
ECL on these balances is considered to be insignificant and ECL is not
provided.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_FE-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) SFEEMREEHBERBEKGE (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
1= R B2 R st (B AT 1 (#8) Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
REEMASEARRSELRTEEENTE The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the
Al following categories:
AR {E FEER ik FEU R R Hfth &RIEE
Other financial
Internal credit rating Description Trade receivables  assets
iWE RSGEFEHNRBRIE - MR RIBEFIE ZHEHEAEA- 12 ATEEEREX
EERRE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and Lifetime ECL-not  12m ECL
does not have any past-due amounts credit-impaired
Bimes BEBABRERIABEERERERBES 2 HITEEAERAER- 12 ATEEREX
EERRE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but Lifetime ECL-not  12m ECL
usually settle in full credit-impaired
AT&E BB BRI E R I B IR VA TR R SHTEEEAEL- 2HEBEREBA-3F
EERBME EERRE ERRIE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit Lifetime ECL —not  Lifetime ECL — not
risk since initial recognition through information credit-impaired credit-impaired
developed internally or external resources
&8 EMREKAZEEFEEERE HTEEEAEL- 2HEHEREBL-E
ERRE FARE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit- Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL - credit-
impaired credit-impaired impaired
/6! BNRFABBABABRENMBEE - B FRIA T LAM S FRIE T LAMEE
NE BB RIBR 7 BT
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Amount is written off Amount is written off
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36. &ET A (8) 36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) EFEEERRRBEK R (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
1515/ B B it (E 7T 1e5 (#5) Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
REEMASEARRSERTEEENTE The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the
Al following categories:
\ 12EAZ2H 2021 2020
NBERTR  AEERFE  EHEREX HEeE HHLE
i3 Extemal Internal ~ 12-month or Gross Gross
Notes creditratng  creditrating  fifetime ECL carrying amount carrying amount
ARRFT ABRFT NEEFT NEEFT
RMB000 RMB'000 AMB 000 AMB 000
RSN B HEAR
Financial assets at amortised cost
FEEES: 2 TR BBk :ERHEREA(EA
Trade receivables N/A Lowrisk  5E) GEERRE)

et\me ECL (individual
assessment) (not
credit-mpaired) 104,806 312,015
B 2ERAERBAEA
Loss  sTfE) GEERRE)
Lifetime ECL (individual
assessment) (credit-

impaired) 699 105,505 1,3% 313411
BlEE 2% A NER REEEEREREAT
Bills receivables NA B GHEREE)

Lifetime ECL (indlvidual
assessment) (not

credit-mpaired) 2,083,402 2,254,999
AR 2 NER ek 12EABRERER
Other receivables N/A Lowrisk  (#:#1)

12m ECL fnote 1) 256,601 58,131
5 2EREERAL
Doubtful  (EASHE)GHERAE)
(it
Lifetime ECL (individual
assessment) (not
creditimpaired)
fnote 1) 1,363 976
BE 2URECREkEAT
Loss &) GHERRE) Wat7)
Lifetime ECL (individual
assessment) (credit-

impaired) (note 1) 56 258,020 101 59,208
BARHRATHE 3 AA TER 12EARBERER
Bank deposits and hank balances NA 12m ECL 1,672,902 1,040,566
ez 2 M TER 12EARBEREX
Time deposits NA 12m ECL 3,731,858 4,506,292
Bt - Note:
1. AETASEARREE  NEBEFRBE 1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group uses
B ERE R 2L B VA TR AR (S B Rk A & past due information to assess whether credit risk has increased
FEZE o significantly since initial recognition.
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36. &R T A (#8) 36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) SFEEMREEHBERBEKGE (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
1= R B2 R st (B AT 1 (#8) Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
ki@,
EEEERY
Not past due/
2021 No fixed
—E_—§ i repayment Bt
Past due terms Total
ARBFIT ARBTFTT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
H bR Other receivables 1,419 256,601 258,020
K,/
EETEXS
2020 Not past due/
—T-TF No fixed
Pkt repayment et
Past due terms Total
ARETFT ARETT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Hfth fE MR IE Other receivables 1,077 58,131 59,208
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

36. @M IR () 36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) SFEEMREEHBERBEKGE (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
BEER Allowance for impairment
RAFE - AERKIRRAREEEE B During the current year, the movements in allowance for impairment in
N respect of trade receivables were as follows:
2HRE 2HIRE
IS EREX
GEERAE) (FRAE)
Lifetime ECL (not Lifetime ECL @5t
credit-impaired)  (credit-impaired) Total
AREFT AREFT AREFT
AMB 000 AMB 000 RMB'000
RZT=ZFTF—H—H At 1 January 2020 2,833 280 3,113
RZZ-ZTF-H—BRRz @ Changes due to financial instruments
TAEH 29 recognised at 1 January 2020
~BEEARE - Transfer to credit-impaired (1,116) 1,116 =
-BERRESE — Impairment losses reversed 1,717) = (1,717)
NELSREE New financial assets originated 1,839 = 1,839
RZZE-TF+-A=+—H At 31 December 2020 1,839 1,396 3,235
RIZZ—F—-A—RABR & Changes due to financial instruments
TAEH &9 recognised at 1 January 2021
~BZEAKE - Transfer to credit-impaired 697 (697) -
-BRERESE — Impairment losses reversed (2,535) = (2,535)
NELSREE New financial assets originated 1,995 = 1,995
RZE-—F+-A=1+—A At 31 December 2021 1,996 699 2,695
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36. &ET A (8) 36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) ERRABETHEEHERBE(E) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
B (78) Allowance for impairment (Continued)

RAEE - BRSNS EN R EEEEE) During the current year, the movements in allowance for impairment in
T respect of other receivables were as follows:

E2 L 2HEH
EREX ERBX
CGHERRE)  (ERRE)

1288785 Lifetime ECL Lifetime
EAB%  (notcreditt  ECL (credit- @it
12m ECL impaired) impaired) Total

ABETFL  ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000

N_T-TF-A—H At 1 January 2020 285 15 - 300
\_:_%ﬁ A—B®AZ Changes due to financial instruments
SRIABY 2 recognised at 1 January 2020
-HE2HEHEREX - Transfer to lifetime ECL (67) 67 = =
—ERERESSE ~ Impairment losses reversed (218) (15) = (233)
-EEMORERL ~ Impairment losses recognised = = 1071 101
NELEHEAE New financial assets originated 228 = = 228
30:2: ZFE+ZA=1T—H At 31 December 2020 228 67 101 39
R F-A-A%ERZ Changes due to financial instruments
ﬁmﬂlﬁ%@(Z‘ ‘%) recognised at 1 January 2021
-BE2HEHEREX - Transfer to lifetime ECL (33) 33 - =
—-ERERESE - Impairment losses reversed (195) (67) = (262)
—EHERAESE — Impairment losses recognised = = (45) (45)
NELSHEAE New financial assets originated 233 = = 233
RZE-_—%+-A=+—H At 31 December 2021 233 33 56 322
EHmEER Concentration on credit risk
Bt 5126 AT % BR 2 FE W R i 75 3008 2 1= A AL R There is concentration of credit risk on amounts due from related

e AKEETHHGEEES 2 EERLTE parties, which have been disclosed in note 26 and the Group periodically
SKEZIEREBEAEE o BRI SN - NREE T H evaluated the related parties credit rating and also look for more
b JE LA BR 2k % EAth B U 2R IE (= RS I B non-related party customers. Apart from that, the Group does not

EEd  BROBNZERSHTREE - have significant concentration of credit risk on other trade and other
receivables, with exposure spread over a number of counter-parties and
customers.
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1R - ARREEREAEERA R AR
ERRESRNEMBEL -

TRAMAEEINTE A BERBRRZER
HZB8TENERE - TRBRESRBEZR
WERAEREGRAEEHERER IR
HED mame

n‘/-ﬁ 7f ﬁ&#ﬁﬁ Bﬁ ;E

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE—FE-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies on cash generated from
operating activities as a significant source of liquidity. Trade and bills
receivables can be received within 1 year based on the earliest date on
which the Group can require payments and bank balances can be drawn
on demand. The directors of the Company believe that the Group will
have sufficient funds available to meet its financial obligations in the
foreseeable future based on management working capital forecast.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment
terms. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay.

Sk
mEFHE EREIR-ER -EZEf Z@RE-% -ERE  GERE@R  ERCBEE
Weighted On demand Total Carrying
average o less than 3months undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 month 1-3 months to 1 year 1-2 years cash flows year end
% NEBTT NEETT NEETFT NEETT NEETT NEETT
% AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB000 RVB 000 RMB 100 RMB 100
R-B--E+Zf=1-A As at 31 December 2021
BRI RENES Trade and bills payables ER 1117821 mm 269,395 - 1,666,368 1,666,388
N/A
EREEBARAMENNE Selling expenses payables and other FER
Dayables N/A 86,793 102,026 261,927 - 450,746 450,746
EEEE Refund liabiities &R 22,008 47,893 19,165 - 89,066 89,066
N/A
HEEE Lease liabilties 4.05%%4.48% 1389 4441 17,620 1953 25403 2739
4.05% to 4.48%
1,228,011 433,532 568,107 1953 2,231,603 2,230,939
KRB RET_ A=t At 31 Decernber 2020
ESHRENES Trade and bills payables A 1,207,781 431,707 25,117 - 1,874,605 1,874,605
N/A
EfHEERRAMENTE Selling expenses payables and other R
Dayables N/A 51,125 30,780 467832 - 549,737 549,737
RERR Refund liabiltes TR 28240 63,069 15,782 - 107,091 107,091
N/A
el Lease liabilties 4.25%24.48% 249 5,672 2449 32,666 65,331 62378
4.25% 104.48%
1,289,640 531,228 743,230 32,666 2,596,764 2593811

B8 /AE D AR A R] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd 167



e PR RR M T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_FE-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

36. &R T A (#8) 36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) SFEEMREEHBERBEKGE (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

BHEREREEL LR BEHECFEBLHET Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that
EREMAEGBZ L EE are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

RAREBRE NG I IRER AR K The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
IRz SMEERERBEZREAELRER financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the

SREEBSE - consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
37. MEARH & 37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
NEBEMBEE HHEAMIRE26 - 2930 © The Group's related party balances are set out in notes 26, 29 and 30.
REEEEETEIT NS - The Group entered into the following transactions with related parties:
(i) HERKEREMELTNHES (i)  Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries
k-3 i S 23
RHEH Types of transactions 2021 2020
ARBFIT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
HEESTERSBERENBAR Sales of chassis to Qingling Group and its subsidiaries 1,056,533 1,578,697
HEABTHHEREMT : Sales of automobile parts and others to:
—EEBRBERRAR(EREE]) - EEEREEBR A" Qingling Casting”) 18,570 21,663
—ERERARERARAR(ERER]) - BEEERBEERARAR("Qingling Chair”) 11,399 9,325
- EEBRERERAR(ERER]) - BEEEREMRABMRAF"Qingling Axle”) 7517 8,465
-EEEREMAEARAF(ERZA) - BEEHRIRAEARAFT("Qngling Zhuan
Yong") 2,240 7,79
- BEERAERNBREEER DR (EHm)) - ERERAEHMBRZEERAF"Qingling
Jijia") 2,159 3,086
-EEERAERMRERRAR (EREA]) - EEERABRHZIEER A A" Qngling
Parts”) 2,018 2,810
~EEERBEERDA(EHRE) - BERBITEARAR("Qingling Forging”) 1,887 1,943
~EEERAEERDRERARA(ERER]) - EEBRABREDRERAF"Qngling
Chassis") 1,200 1,993
- ERERBEERAA(EREE) - BEEKERARAR("Qngling Cast
Aluminium”) 1,051 1,409
-BEERENARRAR(EREH]) - EEEREHABRAF"Qingling Plastics”) 748 757
-EREE - Qingling Group 106 39
~BEERMAAERERAR(ERR) - ERERRIAABRHER AT Qngling
Keyu") 1 6
48,896 59,290
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37. MEARH HERGR) 37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(CONTINUED)
(i) EEXNSERAENRBAFNESEE) (i) Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries
(Continued)
k- Sl —Z-FF
RHER Types of transactions 2021 2020
ARBFT ANREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RERERSEDHRS Purchases of trucks and automobile parts from:

—BRER - Qingling Axle 397,435 436,269
—BREN - Qingling Plastics 69,663 60,372
—BRER - Qingling Chair 61,775 65,718
-EREA - Qingling Zhuan Yong 50,228 5,107
—EREE - Qingling Forging 33,462 34,381
-EREE - Qingling Casting 21,250 28,353
—ERER - Qingling Cast Aluminium 9,737 9,915
—ERHm - Qingling Jijia 9,134 8,763
—EREH - Qingling Parts 5,111 4,503
-ERER - Qingling Chassis 3,823 5,192
-BREE - Qingling Group 1,097 =
—EREN - Qingling Keyu = 5,021
- EFRRERPMEEERAT - ERERERIREEER AR = 1,060
662,715 664,654
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37. MEH X5 s (1)

(i) HEBRREREHELTERES(HE)

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries

(Continued)

—E-f

—E—=

RHER/EHME Types of transactions/Nature of balances 2021 00
ARBFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB 000
BErEZHEABWZ) Lease liabilities for renting warehouse (note/:
—-BREH - Qingling Group 7,993 15,636
—E&RA - Qingling Keyu 1,001 1,958
-BRATHREE - Qingling Isuzu Sales 770 -
HEEECHERERS - Interest on lease liabilities for renting warehouse:
] - Qingling Group 544 878
—E&Ea - Qingling Keyu 72 113
—-BRATREE - Qingling Isuzu Sales 47 =
HiEEF REREW D) Lease liabilities for renting buildings (note/
-BiR&E - Qingling Group 807 1,579
—EHRE - Qingling Keyu 138 =
BEEF RERERS - Interest on lease liabilities for renting buildings:
-EREE - Qingling Group 58 91
—EHRE - Qingling Keyu " =
HEREIHEREW L) Lease liabilities for renting equipment (note):
—EiRiE - Qingling Forging 1,952 38,145
-BREE - Qingling Group 851 1,664
~BRATREE - Qingling Isuzu Sales 556 -
BERE AERERL - Interest on lease liabilities for renting equipment:
—BRRE - Qingling Forging 192 2,142
-BR&E - Qingling Group 61 9%
-BRATHREE - Qingling Isuzu Sales 34 -
HiFE - Notes:

Eie = e B RIS S E
B ANEEY ARSI A E RS - A%
EHFEREEERAERRCNEHBEN A&
EnERARE  EF R ABREE ST NETEH
HEHRADRP=F -

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group did not enter
into new lease agreements with the related parties. Except for short-term
lease in which the Group applied recognition exemption for right-of-use assets,
all lease agreements for the use of warehouse, buildings and equipment with
the related parties are for 3 years.
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(CONTINUED)

(i)  Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries (Continued)

ZE--% —2-F
2021 2020
ARBFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB 000
HIRRBWA Miscellaneous service income:
-EREE - Qingling Group 2,389 2,610
HHREF 2 EERA - Rental income from renting of buildings:
— B - Qingling Forging 21 211
—ERE - Qingling Keyu 43 61
MR B BERA Rental income from renting of equipment;
—BRER - Qingling Axle 383 383
(i) HA+RETHES (i) Transactions with Isuzu
N “EBEC-f —ECEF
R5EHE Types of transactions 2021 2020
ARBFIT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
BEAETHRDMN Purchases of automobile parts and components 154,852 288,970
HERBEREMEHELNEIMRRE Royalties and license fee paid on sales of trucks 17,655 20,812
and other vehicles
HERBTH - BHREM Sales of automobile parts, accessories and others 5,014 3,205
ERGAEE Appointment fee paid 81 13
EEMEER Quality evaluation fee paid 845 -
(iii) MRA+SHBHROXS (iii) Transactions with Isuzu Engine
2% ZZZEF
RoEH Types of transactions 2021 2020
ARBFIT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
BENETHREME Purchases of automobile parts and raw materials 960,756 1,179,322
HERETH - HEREM Sales of automobile parts, accessories and others 387,409 633,451
AR 2 WA Rental income from renting of equipment 42,210 42,210
HARKEME WA Rental income from renting of investment
properties 4,210 4,210
HRRBUA Miscellaneous service income 1,648 1,212
BIREE Dividends declared 2,168 5,374
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37. MEH X5 ek (1)

(iv) HEBRI+RAEHRSH

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

(CONTINUED)

(iv) Transactions with Qingling Isuzu Sales

N - 2 —ECEF
R5EHE Types of transactions 2021 2020
ARBFT AREFT
RMB’000 AMB'000
HERETH - PR EM Sales of automobile parts, accessories and others 13,293 15,498
BERERTETHMH Purchases of trucks and automobile parts 908 283
HRREME WA Rental income from renting of investment
properties 1,165 1,555
HIERBEA Miscellaneous service income 2 4
(v) HA+RERHTERARNRS (v) Transactions with Isuzu Qingling Engineering
N - 2 —ECEF
R5EHE Types of transactions 2021 2020
ARBFTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HIRRBBA Miscellaneous service income 101 185
HERBEH - B REM Sales of automobile parts, accessories and others 61 43
(vi) ig waRBHhRE(ER)BRLFTMH (vi) Transactions with It EEHRHE(EE)BRLF
ka3 i S 23
RHEH Types of transactions 2021 2020
ARBFIT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
HERE Sales of trucks 400 =
BEAEEN Purchases of automobile parts 53,757 =
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(CONTINUED)

(vii) Transactions with Qingling Shinerary

—E-—§ “E-TE

RHER Types of transactions 2021 2020

AREFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB 000

HERBERAETHH Sales of trucks and automobile parts 222,104 =
BHELEROX SN FiiEEETNR Except for the transactions with Qingling Shinerary, the above

ZIMEK EHRUFEIARAE L HER S
FFEEER S - AR RE AN GERE

1T

(viii) BRPEEMBFHRARRENHZS, &

AEECEEENEEREB I EEX P RK
FEEZEZEREA TS - HEIEHIRERF
Z2HER(BFHEEEE J)E’JI% AN - AR
EI$%7%‘:P@EUT‘T? FIEE S E B T &K

NEE— o B _ESC()VERFTHY BE EA R 8%
E@&ﬁf‘ﬁ% TLT‘IE’J 254N REE IR
EMBUSEABEREEBIR - XARESR
5 BASBEZERTIEREREAMEITE
BRSME  ZERAEEEREENELE=
70

transactions with related parties also constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules and are conducted in accordance with the terms of the
relevant agreements.

(viii) Transactions/balances with other government-related entities
in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently predominated
by entities directly or indirectly owned or controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by the PRC government (“government-
related entities”). In addition, the Group itself is part of a larger group
of companies under Qingling Group which is controlled by the PRC
government. Apart from the transactions with Qingling Group and its
subsidiaries disclosed in section (i) above, the Group also conducts
businesses with other government-related entities. The directors of the
Company consider those government-related entities are independent
third parties so far as the Group’s business transactions with them are
concerned.

B8 /AE D AR A R] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

173



n‘/-ﬁ 7f ﬁﬁ#ﬁﬁ |3ﬁ ;I

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_FE-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

37. MEARH HERGR) 37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(CONTINUED)
(viii) BEhEEMBFERERNES &5 (viii) Transactions/balances with other government-related entities
() in the PRC (Continued)
HEMBTIEEEENENRTS, BRI Material transactions/balances with other government-related entities are
as follows:

—E-—f —Z-FF

2021 2020

ARBFT AREFT

RMB'000 RMB'000

BHHE Trade sales 48,966 205,941

BHHRE Trade purchases 392,262 438,331

~E-f —ECEF

2021 2020

ARBFT ANREFT

RMB'000 RMB 000

BN REMEABTAEEENAE Trade and other balances due to other
government-related entities 39,919 49,341
KR E BT AE R ENRE Trade and other balances due from other

government-related entities 154,484 140,408
BESN - REER A F E B2 EE T B BT In addition, the Group has entered into various transactions, including
AT REMRET R EREETTZIELS B utilities services and surcharges/taxes charged by the PRC government,
EARRS R ET BB ZOE  BIE - 17 and deposits with certain banks and financial institutions which are
o ERHFRITR NS - ARFIESER government-related entities in their ordinary course of business. In view
BELENIFETESE - of the nature of these banking transactions, the directors of Company are

of the opinion that separate disclosure is not meaningful.
B EXFTHEZEEN  ARREERE BB Except as disclosed above, the directors of the Company are of the

HETRETHNR IR AEENESM S T opinion that transactions with government-related entities are not
BKRo significant to the Group's operations.
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

(CONTINUED)
(ix) EE EERITETHABZHFM (ix) Compensation of directors, supervisors and key management
personnel
ERNEE EELHMTIESEAEZMEW The remuneration of directors, supervisors and other members of key
T management during the year are as follows:
—BC-% e i 223
2021 2020
ARBFT AEBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
R TR Short-term employee benefits 4,443 3,725
BRAEA Post-employment benefits 617 181
5,060 3,906
38. *&iE 38. COMMITMENTS
RIBEEAFK - REE T EARRENT ¢ At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following capital
commitments:
“BEC-f “ToTF
2021 2020
AREFT ANEETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BATHBRNG A B RR BB E AR - Contracted for but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of:
—-BREBYE - R RRE - acquisition of property, plant and equipment 300,326 156,125
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39. EEHRRH
FEEMERHEA

PrEREHEBRNMBANRENMELEE B
EGREARKIFENAM -

HERWNARFTRBENKAT

39. OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENTS
The Group as lessor

All of the investment properties and equipment held for rental purposes
have committed lessees for the next 3 years.

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

2% i S 3

2021 2020

ABREFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB 000

—ER Within one year 52,812 54,526
F-4F In the second year = 54,526
52,812 109,052

40. EREDIB 0N

BN ARNR — T - TFFERHTEISH TER
BN _E—AFRENFR(=2Z—AFHK
D) ARAREESER(ERSEKHER
EURE ARSI, 000,000 FE—RF:R
“##Eﬁimﬁk Wﬂzéﬁﬁﬁqﬁ
&) o REZWH  AARRERNEREAY
HAE%%Q%Q%%~%%%§%E%W%
ETANEE  BEREARESEN T —T
FHRAR S ENEMIERARBNEEE(HE)
BIETANT] ©

BREARREZMNER  —T—AFHFACR
“EROREA A=+ B Bk BE
—EFEF_A=+—HLFE  AR%
53,633,000 A AR FAR B AR B DI D ¥ [ 48

(ZEE-_—F+A=T—HILFE B

=B IR A FA59,355,0007T (I FTEE A1)
WAE) - LHET AL
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40. PROVISION FOR LITIGATION

In respect of the litigation brought forward from 2015 (the “2015
Litigation"”), which was fully disclosed in note 38 to the 2020 annual
report of the Company, the Company entered into a formal settlement
agreement (the “Settlement Agreement”) with Qingling Zhuan Yong, a
related company which agreed with the plaintiff to take up the plaintiff's
position in the 2015 Litigation for a consideration of RMB89,000,000.
Under the Settlement Agreement, the Company agreed to pay Qingling
Zhuan Yong RMB89,000,000, representing the amount Qingling Zhuan
Yong agreed to pay the plaintiff to settle the 2015 Litigation. In return,
Qingling Zhuan Yong agreed to transfer to the Company the amount it
recovers, if any, from other guarantors involved in the 2015 Litigation.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the 2015 Litigation
had been settled as at 31 December 2020 and accordingly reversal of
provision for litigation of RMB53,633,000 had been reversed to profit and
loss during the year ended 31 December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Qingling Zhuan Yong
recovered RMB9,355,000, after deducting its costs incurred, and
transferred the amount to the Company.
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY

General information of subsidiaries

Details of the subsidiaries directly held by the Company at the end of the
reporting period are set out below.

BAFERRRN
ERRESER i1t R EmEx RRREANESY
NGRS Country of registration and  Form of business Registered Proportion of ownership interests directly held FEEH
Name of subsidiary operation structure capital by the Company Principal activities
8- it 3
2021 2020
BREAMWiHe) e Fiii 24 38,166, 8007 5056% 5056% FERENERHMER
Qingling Moulds Norela)/ The PRC Incorporated USD38,166,600 50.56% 5056%  Production of moulds for the
manufacture of automobile parts
BB H20) hE Fjiand 29,980,000 51.00% 5100% HRRREHR
Qingling Technical Center (Nozefy))  The PRC Incorporated 1SD29,980,000 51.00% 51.00%  Not yet commenced husiness
R D) e i 24 AR%9,000,0007 100.00% 10000% AETERERRH
Shenzhen New Energy Note(t)) The PRC Incorporated RMB3,000,000 100.00% 100.00%  Automobile retailing and after-
sales services
sz - Notes:
(a) BHREAEA MNP BEKSHRINE EERD (a) Qingling Moulds is a sino-foreign joint venture established in the PRC.
BRAR -
(b) BT 0 BRI ee R A A R B AR S AY (b) Qingling Technical Center and Shenzhen New Energy are limited liability
BREEAQT companies established in the PRC and operating in the PRC.

FRAUEMBRRIW KRB TEAERRSES

TEMBRAINRSRE
BEERKAAEERS
PR ©

[AARREERE DN
KHIBE N ES ZEX

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the
year.

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of principal subsidiaries
to transfer funds to the Group in form of cash dividends, or to repay loans
or advances made by the Group.

B8 /AE D AR A R] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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F LT EEME 2 TFFTE () 41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non-
controlling interests

BEEXFERERIF2 BB L FIIFER

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the

TR AR REEEAERE RN E

NG EEZ Company that have material non-controlling interests:
FRRERRALZ
AEREGRATEESL
Proportion ownership interests ~ SEEFRRERART RiFRRER
HEQRRE and voting rights held by non- Profit allocated to non- Accumulated non-controlling
Name of subsidiary controlling interests controlling interests interests
~e--%  CRORF O ZBI-§ CTOTF ZBC-§ CECEfF
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
% % ARBTT ARETT  ARRFT  ARETIL
% % RMB000 RMB 000 RMB'0000 RMB000
ERBAMNZ)
Qingling Moulds fnote &) 49.44 49.44 4,586 1,429 172,987 171,263
BB O Hiatb)
Qingling Technical Center (note b) 49.00 49.00 4,220 4,044 154,538 150,318
8,806 5473 321525 321,581
Bt Notes:
(a) ¢ AUREA MR ITSIELIER AT (@ The Company has control over Qingling Moulds by virtue of the
ZANREEeRLBEEhN=4  HiiA8 contractual right to appoint three out of the five directors to its board
SEEEH MR R AR E T L EK gﬂ%f o of directors, whose decisions about the relevant activities require half

consent of the board of directors.

(b)  ARBREREANEFMIZHIERFMA L - AT (b)  The Company has control over Qingling Technical Center by virtue of

ZRAZAREZTS -—REETHNE - E5t the contractual right to appoint two out of the three directors to its
B EBIERARR AL EEZEVEKER board of directors, whose decisions about the relevant activities require
B half consent of the board of directors.

ERARRREEAFEEER 2 SHER
ZBEREFEIMT - LATEH“&#ME){%
FEEBAN AR ELHATH SR o

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Company’s
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set out below.
The summarised financial information below represents amounts before
intragroup eliminations.
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F LT EEME 2 TFFTE () 41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

BREa Qingling Moulds

—EC-f “EoTE
2021 2020
ARBFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB 000
MEERE Current assets 420,827 397,015
FREEE Non-current assets 88,960 35,961
nBAaE Current liabilities (142,283) (71,987)
ARAIHA NEEER Equity attributable to owners of the Company 194,517 189,726
FeERiEs Non-controlling interests 172,987 171,263
ZBC-% - i X3
2021 2020
ARBFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB 000
Wega Revenue 106,124 85,466
53 Expense (91,684) (71,796)
FRR A Profit for the year 14,440 13,670

ANAIHEA NEL ST RERE Bl Profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to the owners of the Company 9,854 12,241

BRI EN R A B Profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to the non-controlling interests 4,586 1,429
ERIEERERRE Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 2,862 2,724
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41. ERTF)EEME 2 FRFES (18) 41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

BREAGE) Qingling Moulds (Continued)
—E-f —ECEF
2021 2020
ARBFTT ANEETFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
REEB I RERANFE Net cash inflow from operating activities 21,219 19,570
REZH RLMACRL)FE Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing
activities 362 (1,251)
BEEH RS TLFE Net cash outflow from financing activities (5,795) (5,513)
BERANFE Net cash inflow 15,786 12,806
BREHRD Qingling Technical Center
¢ —Eo%F
2021 2020
ARBFTT ANERETFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
RBBE Current assets 316,769 307,829
RBRE Current liabilities (1,386) (1,056)
KAREBAELER Equity attributable to owners of the
Company 160,845 156,455
FEIER S Non-controlling interests 154,538 150,318

180  #F#R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT



e R ERAR MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE—FE-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

41. ERTF)EEME 2 FRFES (18) 41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Bl (1) Qingling Technical Center (Continued)

—E--F —Z-FF
2021 2020
ARBFT AREFT
RMB000 RMB'000
VN Interest income 1,718 11,440
53 Expenses (3,108) (3,187)
FRa A Profit for the year 8,610 8,253

ADAIHR AEIERF RERA Bl Profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to the owners of the Company 4,390 4,209

RN ke BE Profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to the non-controlling interests 4,220 4,044
—E--F —ToTF
2021 2020
ARBFTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
MEEB I RERLFE Net cash outflow from operating activities (2,694) (2,966)
REGHZRERANFE Net cash inflow from investing activities 12,118 14,364
RemLERE Net cash inflow 9,424 11,398
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42. MEEHDFMEEARZANR 42. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

TRENAEEREEHFIELNEEEHE The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from
M(EIEES MBS ) - A THHELS financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities

E’]ﬁ{/\}Efﬁi//lbiaﬁ/\—jz*j(fﬁi/llhiﬁjﬁv\zﬁ arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or
EE AR EERNDBEAREIHE SN future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement
EHBEE- of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.
HRARE EER
Lease Dividend #at
liabilities payable Total
ARETFT AREFIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
“T-TF—A[—H At 1 January 2020 88,342 - 88,342
ﬁﬂﬁiﬁu mE Financing cash flows
BEARE Dividends paid - (397,163) (397,163)
B —EK BB MIHERARER S Dividends paid to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary - (2,724) (2,724)
HEABER Repayments of lease liabilities (30,165) = (30,165)
XHAFEER Payments of interest expense (1,589) = (1,589)
FRSEH Non-cash changes
EEIREKE Dividends declared - 397,163 397,163
B r—RE A B M IR R Dividends declared to a non-
FIRARE controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary - 2,724 2,724
FTIEAEA Lease addition 4,201 - 4,201
MEEENS Interest on lease liabilities 1,689 = 1,689
A—E-TF+_A=1+—H At 31 December 2020 62,378 - 62,378
R=—Z=-——%—f—H At 1 January 2021 62,378 - 62,378
mERERE Financing cash flows
BRERE Dividends paid = (248,227) (248,227
BN —RTE A B MIEHERARER S  Dividends paid to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary - (2,862) (2,862)
HEGEER Repayments of lease liabilities (21,246) = (21,246)
YAFEER Payments of interest expense (1,374) = (1,374)
FReE Non-cash changes
EEIRKE Dividends declared - 248,227 248,227
B —RkE AR MIEHER Dividends declared to a non-
BN controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary - 2,862 2,862
FIETHL Lease addition 15,492 - 15,492
HEEE Lease modification (31,885) = (31,885)
MEGENS Interest on lease liabilities 1,374 — 1,374
RZBZ—F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2021 24,739 - 24,739

3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT




n‘/-ﬁ 7f ﬁ&#ﬁﬁ Bﬁ ;E

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE—FE-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

43. FLTFMBRARR EIRE 43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

ZEBC-f “Z-TF
2021 2020
ARBFT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB 000
FRBEE Non-current assets
N BERERE Property, plant and equipment 1,026,497 932,037
ERELE Right-of-use assets 44,698 81,791
VIS Investment properties 19,235 39,382
BYEE \ Intangible assets 189,659 228,581
E\AWE’AE—IZ&Q Investments in subsidiaries 294,073 294,073
EAH” WAL Investments in associates 55,333 30,833
REEbEIRE Investments in joint ventures 368,639 368,639
FURIEéTE Deferred tax assets 13,939 18,191
EHE - Time deposits 2,840,873 2,025,640
TN BEREE RS Deposit paid for property plant and equipment 70,581 29578
4,923,527 4,048,745
RHEE Current assets
"B Inventories 922,932 786,630
EUES  EUERR AR REREN S Trade, bills and other receivables and
prepayments 2,528,432 2,653,786
A EIHE Tax recoverable 11,770 15,591
THER Time deposits 599,083 1,966,031
ihE A K Bank balances and cash 1,345,477 959,644
5,407,694 6,381,682
nBAR Current liabilities
AR EARERAMENTE Trade, bills and other payables 2,074,030 2,397,629
alakE Contract liabilities 567,575 368,511
LEERE Refund liabilities 89,066 107,091
HEER Lease liabilities 2,775 30,49
2,753,446 2,893,727
RHEERE Net current assets 2,654,248 3,487,955
BEEARDAR Total assets less current liabilities 7,571,775 7,536,700
BERE Capital and reserves
BA Share capital 2,482,268 2,482,268
RARERGE Share premium and reserves 5,086,432 5,014,568
fEanE Total equity 7,568,700 7,496,836
ERBAR Non-current liabilities
HERE y Lease liabilities 1,923 31,882
BB -BTEE Deferred income - government grants 7,152 7,982
9,075 39,864
1571,175 7,536,700

573
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43. ERTFMBFRAERR 6 h & 43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

(#8) RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)
ENFIREFRZET Movements in reserves of the Company
EERBLRS
BFEE - EFLEE Statutory REEH
Share Capital surplus Retained @zt
premium reserve  reserve fund profits Total

ABEFL  ARETFT  AREKTT ARETT ARETT
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000

—E-T5-F-H At 1 January 2020 1,764,905 572,210 1,171,020 1,620,835 5,128,970

Eﬂﬂmﬂ&‘ﬁ eYerice Profit and total comprehensive = = = 282,761 282,761
income for the year

FEDE Appropriation for the year - - 28,027 (28,027) -

BEXNZZ-NERERE 2019 final dividends paid - - - (397,163) (397,163)

—E-TF+-A=+-H At 31 December 2020 1,764,905 572,210 1,199,047 1,478,406 5,014,568

iﬂquﬂ&% ey alicey Profit and total comprehensive - = = 320,091 320,091
income for the year

FES Appropriation for the year = = 31,574 (31,574) =

E?ZH “TERBKE 2020 final dividends paid - - - (248,227) (248,227

“E-E5+ZA=+-H At 31 December 2021 1,764,905 572,210 1,230,621 1,518,696 5,086,432
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Re%EE CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
—BC-§ T Z-NEF B\ T—+HF
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ABRBFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000
WA Revenue 4,828,237 5,088,762 4,723,287 5253252 5,073,336
PR A A F Profit before tax 344,524 325,154 403,994 530,169 580,707
Fisfif Income tax expense (13,638) (18,692) (47,712) (68,654) (78,912)
FR@F Profit for the year 330,886 306,462 356,282 461,515 501,795
EEBR Attributable to:
RAREREBA Owners of the Company 322,080 300,989 345,308 453,772 496,926
FEE R Non-controlling interests 8,806 5,473 10,974 7,743 4,869
330,886 306,462 356,282 461,515 501,795
REMBERAE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION
e —IT-TF —T-hEF —T-)\F T—+F
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ARBFT ANRETT AREFT AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000
BEE Total assets 10,905,911 10,996,341 10,995,614 10,893,251 10,821,989
Bak Total liabilities 2,838,689  2,978916 2,914,764 2,769,137 2,759,142
R 1B% Total equity 8,067,222 7,987,425 8,080,850 8,124,114 8,062,847
FEBR Attributable to:
RAREREBA Owners of the Company 7,739,697 7,665,844 7,762,018 7,813,873 7,758,303
FEIER R Non-controlling interests 327,525 321,581 318,832 310,241 304,544
8,067,222 7,987,425 8,080,850 8,124,114 8,062,847
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In accordance with the pertinent regulations and based on the actual
situation of the Company, the board of directors of the Company resolved
that the proposed appropriation of profit for the year of 2021 be as
follows:

1. The appropriation of net profits after taxation shall be: 10% for
Statutory Reserve Fund, 0% for Statutory Public Benefit Fund (Note
1) and 90% for profit available for distribution.

2. A final dividend of RMBO0.11 per share in cash (Note 2). Subject to
the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company, the proposed final dividend is expected to
be paid to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of
shareholders of the Company on Thursday, 16 June 2022. Further
announcement will be made as to the exact form of payment.

Notes:

1. In accordance with the amendment to the Company Law of PRC on
27 October 2005 effective from 1 January 2006, and pursuant to the
Company's articles of association and the resolutions of the board
of directors of the Company, the Company decided not to accrue for
Statutory Public Benefit Fund from the year of 2006.

2. According to the regulations of the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the
People’'s Republic of China, Implementation Regulations on Enterprise
Income Tax Law of the People's Republic of China and the Notice of
Withholding and Payment of Enterprise Income Tax Regarding China
Resident Enterprise Paying Dividend to Non-Resident Enterprise
Holders of Overseas H Shares issued by China’s State Administration of
Taxation(Guo Shui Han [2008]N0.897 on 6 November 2008), any China
resident enterprise which pays dividend to non-resident enterprise
holders of overseas H shares for the year of 2008 and subsequent years
shall withhold and pay enterprise income tax at a unified tax rate of
10%.

As stated above, in respect of any non-resident enterprise holders of H
Shares (including HKSCC Nominees Limited, other custodians, corporate
nominees and trustees such as securities companies and banks, and
other entities or organizations) whose names appear on the Company’s
register of shareholders on the Record Date of Dividend, the Company
will pay the 2021 final dividend payable to such shareholders after
deducting enterprise income tax payable from the 2021 final dividend.

In respect of any individual holders of H shares whose names appear on
the Company'’s register of shareholders on the record date of dividend,
the Company will not deduct the enterprise income tax from the 2021
final dividend which such shareholders have right to receive.

Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
25 March 2022
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting (the
“AGM") of Qingling Motors Co., Ltd (the “"Company”) will be held
at New Conference Hall of the Company, 1st Floor, 1 Xiexing Cun,
Zhongliangshan, Jiulongpo District, Chongging, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") on Thursday, 2 June 2022 at 10:00 a.m. for the
purpose of considering and, if thought fit, passing the following ordinary
resolutions:

1. To consider and approve the report of the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board") for the year of 2021.

2. To consider and approve the report of the supervisory committee
of the Company for the year of 2021.

38 To consider and approve audited financial statements and the
independent auditor’s report of the Company for the year of 2021.

4. To consider and approve the proposal for appropriation of profit of
the Company for the year of 2021.

B To consider the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants LLP and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as the Company’s PRC and international auditors respectively for
the year of 2022 and to authorize the Board to determine their
remunerations.

By order of the Board
QINGLING MOTORS CO. LTD

LEI Bin
Company Secretary

Chongging, the PRC, 12 April 2022
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Notes:

Any shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to
appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote at the AGM on his/her
behalf in accordance with the articles of association of the Company. A
proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company.

In order to be valid, the proxy form and, if such proxy form is signed
by a person under a power of attorney or other authority on behalf of
the appointer, a notarially certified copy of that power of attorney or
authority shall be deposited at the legal address of the Company at 1
Xiexing Cun, Zhongliangshan, Jiulongpo District, Chongqging, the PRC
(in the case of proxy form of holders of domestic shares) or at the
Company’s H Share Registrars, Hong Kong Registrars Limited, at 17M
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
(in the case of proxy form of holders of H shares) not less than 24 hours
before the time for holding the AGM (i.e. not later than 1 June 2022 at
10:00 a.m. (Hong Kong time)) or 24 hours before the time appointed for
taking the poll.

Shareholders or their proxies shall produce their identity documents
when attending the AGM.

To ascertain the H shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM, the register of shareholders of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 3 May 2022 to Thursday, 2 June 2022 (both dates inclusive),
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. All duly
completed transfer forms relating to H shares accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's H Share
Registrars, Hong Kong Registrars Limited, at Shops 1712-16, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 29 April 2022.

Shareholders whose names appear on the register of shareholders of
the Company on Tuesday, 3 May 2022 are entitled to attend and vote at
the AGM.

Shareholders who intend to attend the AGM shall complete and lodge
the reply slip for the AGM at the Company’s legal address at 1 Xiexing
Cun, Zhongliangshan, Jiulongpo District, Chongging, the PRC on or
before Friday, 13 May 2022. The reply slip may be delivered to the
Company by hand, by post, by cable or by fax (at fax no.: (86) 23—
68830397).

Subject to the approval of the shareholders at the AGM, the proposed
final dividend will be payable to the shareholders whose names appear
on the register of shareholders of the Company on Thursday, 16 June
2022. To ascertain the H shareholders’ entitlement to the proposal final
dividend, the register of shareholders of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 9 June 2022 to Thursday, 16 June 2022 (both dates
inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
All duly completed transfer forms relating to H shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's
H Share Registrars, Hong Kong Registrars Limited, at Shops 1712-16,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 8 June 2022.
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The AGM is not expected to take more than half a day. Shareholders or
their proxies attending the AGM shall be responsible for their own travel
and accommodation expenses.

Pursuant to rule 13.39(4) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), all
votes of the shareholders at the meeting will be taken by poll except
where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which
relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by
a show of hands and the Company will announce the results of the poll
in the manner prescribed under rule 13.39(5) and rule 13.39(5A) of the
Listing Rules.

As at the date of this notice, the Board comprises 11 directors, of which
Mr. LUO Yuguang, Mr. YASUTA Tatsuya, Mr. MASUDA Yoichi, Mr. YAGI
Naoto, Mr. LI Juxing, Mr. XU Song and Mr. LI Xiaodong are executive
directors and Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. SONG Xiaojiang, Mr. LIU Tianni and
Mr. LIU Erh Fei are independent non-executive directors.

E$2/5H A1 B PR A R Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors:
LUO Yuguang (Chairman)
HAYASHI Shuichi (Vice Chairman and General Manager)
(resigned on 30 July 2021)
YASUTA Tatsuya (Vice Chairman and General Manager)
(appointed on 30 July 2021)
MAEGAKI Keiichiro
(resigned on 30 July 2021)
MASUDA Yoichi
(appointed on 30 July 2021)
ADACHI Katsumi
(resigned on 30 July 2021)
YAGI Naoto
(appointed on 30 July 2021)
LI Juxing
XU Song
LI Xiaodong

Independent Non-executive Directors:
LONG Tao

SONG Xiaojiang

LIU Erh Fei

LIU Tianni

SUPERVISORS

MIN Qing

ZHANG Yongning (resigned on 15 December 2021)
PU Qing (appointed on 15 December 2021)

COMPANY SECRETARY
responsible for PRC affairs: LEI Bin
responsible for Hong Kong affairs:  TUNG Tat Chiu Michael

AUDIT COMMITTEE

SONG Xiaojiang (Committee Chairman)
LONG Tao

LIU Erh Fei

LIU Tianni

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
SONG Xiaojiang (Committee Chairman)
LUO Yuguang

LONG Tao

LIU Erh Fei

LIU Tianni

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
LUO Yuguang (Committee Chairman)
LONG Tao

SONG Xiaojiang

LIU Erh Fei

LIU Tianni
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CORPORATE INFORMATION AVAILABLE AT
Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

LEGAL ADDRESS

1 Xiexing Cun

Zhongliangshan

Jiulongpo District

Chongging

the People’s Republic of China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Office 1601, 16th Floor

LHT Tower

31 Queen's Road Central

Central, Hong Kong

COMPANY’'S WEBSITE

www.gingling.com.cn

H SHARE REGISTRARS
Hong Kong Registrars Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

H SHARE LISTING PLACE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock code: 1122

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China, Huayu Road Branch

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Huafu Road Branch
Industrial Bank, Business Department of Chongging Branch
China CITIC Bank, Jiangbei Sub-branch

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP
Chongging Branch

43/F, World Financial Center

188 Minzu Road, Yuzhong District

Chongging 400010

the People’s Republic of China

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

35/F, One Pacific Place
88 Queensway, Hong Kong

B2 /AHE D AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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EREN LEGAL ADVISERS
BEEZLY) - as to Hong Kong laws:
FiESIERAITT Tung & Co.

BAERIR Office 1601, 16" Floor
SEAER31H LHT Tower

BEERAE 31 Queen’s Road Central
16121601 F Central, Hong Kong
FtRELLY) as to PRC laws:

R R AN (EE)REBAT Beijing Dongwei (Chongging) Law Firm
i A R AAE 17F, Building B, Cast iValley
EEMHILE No. 3 Yangliu Road

SIS 355 Yubei District, Chongging
EREABE1TE the People’s Republic of China
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